
CORRESPONDENCE 
11/28/2022 

Hiep Nguyen DOCUMENT NO. 11575-2022 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Betty Leland 
Monday, November 28, 2022 8:24 AM 
Commissioner Correspondence 

Subject: FW: Docket 20220156 - PSC to utility letter dated Nov 7, 2022 and utility response to 
PSC dated Nov 18, 2022 

Attachments: 24- Parent Affiliate Organizational Chart in PSC Certificaton of Annual report 2021 
WS832-21-AR copy.pdf; Hometown response to deficiencies 11427-2022.pdf; docket 
030998 2004 change in majority ownership 10457-2003 copy.pdf; Requirements for 
transfer of majority organizational control.pdf; PSC to Hometown deficiency letter Nov 
8 2022.pdf; From 2020 Annual Report WS832-20-AR.pdf; From 2020 Annual Report 
WS832-20-AR.pdf 

Good Morning: 

Please place this email in Docket #20220156. 

Thanks. 

Betty Leland, Executive Assistant to 
Commissioner Art Graham 
Florida Public Service Commission 
bleland@psc. state . fl. us 
(850) 413-6024 

From: Diana Danin <jeladil@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 22, 2022 4:58 PM 
To: Adam Teitzman <ATEITZMA@psc.state.fl.us>; Shaw Stiller <SStiller@psc.state.fl.us> 
Cc: mdeterding@sfflaw.com; Charles Rehwinkel <rehwinkel.charles@leg.state.fl.us>; Office of Commissioner Graham 
<Commissioner.Graham@PSC.STATE.FL.US>; Diana Danin <jeladil@gmail.com> 
Subject: Docket 20220156 - PSC to utility letter dated Nov 7, 2022 and utility response to PSC dated Nov 18, 2022 

Dear Mr. Teitzman and Mr. Stiller 
1. First, since I am named as an interested party I am 
wondering why I was not copied on this set of 
correspondence? Second, please make this 
communication and attachments part of the docket 
record. 
2. I continue my objection to the PSC approving the 
name change request submitted under docket 20220156. 
3. This request appears to be more than a simple name 
change. Utility should be required to comply 
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with all documentation requirements under PSC Rule 25-
30.037 governing a transfer of majority 
organizational control.   I've attached a copy of the rule 
and those requirements. 
4.  The last request for change of majority organizational 
control submitted to the PSC by this utility was, (according 
to  
Mr. Plescow of the PSC),  approved in 2005 under docket 
030998.  I've attached a copy of this docket to this email 
and 
call your attention to the organizational chart provided on 
PDF page 9 of  that document. 
5.  In Nov 2022, the PSC requested an organizational 
chart----- pre and post change in ownership/transfer of  
January 2019  ---  a ownership change that also occurred 
without proper notification to the PSC. 
6.  There is absolutely no similarity between the 2005 
organizational chart submitted to the PSC in 2005 
and either of the organizational charts submitted on 
November 18, 2022 by the utility.  Additionally,  the two 
organizational charts submitted in utility response of Nov 
18th are different from each other - with Second Merger 
Sub LLC 
deleted entirely from the post 2019 organizational chart.  I 
have attached a side by side picture of the charts.  
7.  Did this utility perhaps forget to report all their 
organizational changes to the PSC between 2005 and 
2022? 
Perhaps the utility gets away with this because the PSC 
fails to require proper completion of the Parent Affiliate  
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Organizational Chart form that must be submitted 
annually within their annual report.   I'm attaching a copy 
of the  
one attached to the 2021 annual report.   The blatant 
disregard for providing this information is apparent when 
you 
view this document. 
8.  An organizational chart does not identify the voting 
rights and who does the voting.  The only way to do  
that with respect to an LLC  is to obtain a copy of the 
Operating and Member Agreement which identifies  
voting members.  In all the documentation I have 
reviewed that is on file with the PSC for this utility, none 
of the Operating or Member agreements  for any of the 
LLC's appear to have ever been submitted.  The PSC 
needs to ask for all of them for all the entities.  This 
conglomerate is NOT publicly traded.  It is a privately  
owned multi-billion dollar company that seems to have 
failed to provide updated organizational charts.  
 
I am also attaching a form from utilities  2020 annual 
report that asks utility to "List below every 
corporation or person owning or holding directly or 
indirectly 5% or more of the voting securities  
of the utility".   But nothing reflects the various entities 
that are the members, managers, officers  
and partners of the entities reflected on the organizational 
chart.  Without that, how can the PSC  
even attempt to determine if there has been a change in 
majority organizational control and voting rights? 
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9.  I have brought a significant number of issues regarding 
this utility to the PSC  and I've provided back-up 
documentation.   I've proven that the utility moved its 
assets to a different business name and failed to 
file that change for more than 3 1/2 years.  I've proven 
that the utility continued to file their annual reports in a  
name they no longer use, which according to PSC rules 
equates to not filing their annual reports at all, with 
respect 
to fines. I've demonstrated that the PSC has authority to 
charge them over $18,000 in penalties for these 
deficiencies, and 
I hope you intend to do this when this docket is finally 
closed.   
 
I feel I have also demonstrated a change in majority 
organizational control since it was last reported to the PSC 
in 2005  
sufficient to require the PSC to order this utility to provide 
fully updated documentation that complies with rule 25-
30.037. 
If you find that the utility also should have reported their 
change in majority organizational control since it was last 
filed in 2005, and if that also has a penalty associated with 
it, perhaps you should charge them that penalty as 
well.  
 
Respectfully, 
Diana L. Danin 
938 East Palm Valley Drive 
Oviedo, Fl  32765 
407-733-2662 
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UTILITY NAMf CWS Communities LP dba Palm Valley 

PARENT/ AFFILIATE ORGANIZATION CHART 
Current as of 12/31/05 

YEAR OF REPORT 
December 31, 2021 

Complete below an organizational chart that shows all parents and subsidiaries of the utility. The 
chart must also show the relationship between the utility and the affiliates listed on E-7, E-10(a) and E-10(b). 

Hometown America, LLC I 

I 
I Water and Sewer Ooeratina Division I 

E-5 



ORIGINAL 
KATZ, KUTTER, ALDERMAN & BRYANT, P.A. 

Orlando Office 

Sulle 1400 
111 Nonh Orange Avenue 
ORLANDO, FL 32801 

(407) 841-7100 
!ax (407) 648-0660 

ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

www.kalzlaw com 

Tallahassee Office 

Suite 1200 
106 East College Avenue 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 
(850) 224-9634 

fax (850) 222-0103 

M1am1 Office 

Suite 409 
2999 NE 191"Street 

AVENTURA. FL 33180 
(305) 932-0996 

tax (305) 932-0972 

Reply to· Tallahassee Office 

October 23, 2003 

Washington, DC Office 

Suite 750 
801 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 

WASHINGTON, DC 20004 
(202) 393-6222 

fax (202) 393-5959 

Blanca S. Bayo, Director Via Hand-Delivery 
Division of Commission Clerk and 

Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Betty Easley Building, Room 110 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: Docket No. 05D99 B - k) S 

-~-

'-.: 
r-,--
\ 

(,: 
C 

Joint Application for Approval of the Transfer of Majority Organizational Control 
of Del Tura Phase I, LLC and CWS Communities LP as the Result of the 
Acquisition by Hometown America, L.L.C. of the Stock of Chateau 
Communities, Inc. 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Hometown America, L.L.C. and Chateau Communities, 
Inc. are the original and twelve copies of the Joint Application for Approval of the Transfer of 
Majority Organizational Control of Del Tura Phase I, LLC and CWS Communities LP as the 
Result of the Acquisition by Hometown America, L.L.C. of the Stock of Chateau Communities, 
Inc. Please open a docket to consider this matter. 

Please contact me if you have any questions . 

Enclosures 
cc: Kathryn G.W. Cowdery, Esq. 

Mark Koenig, Esq. 
Mr. Barry McCabe 

Si/)ely, 

/• ~ 'I 
V 
Nancy M. Burke 



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Joint Application for Approval ) 
of the Transfer of Majority Organizational ) 
Control of Del Tura Phase I, LLC ) 
and CWS Communities LP as the ) 
Result of the Acquisition by Hometown 
America, L.L.C. of the Stock 
of Chateau Communities, Inc. 

) 
) 
) 

Docket No. 0:3D9q 8- WS 

JOINT APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF THE TRANSFER OF MAJORJTY 
ORGANIZATIONAL CONTROL OF DEL TURA PHASE I. 

LLC AND CWS COMMUNTIES LP AS THE RESULT OF THE ACQUISITION BY 
HOMETOWN AMERICA, L.L.C. OF THE STOCK OF CHA TEAU COMMUNITIES, INC. 

Chateau Communities, Inc. ("Chateau") and Hometown America, L.L.C. ("Hometown"), 

by and through their undersigned attorneys, hereby file this Joint Application for Transfer of 

Majority Organizational Control of Del Tura Phase I, LLC and CWS Communities LP as the 

Result of the Acquisition by Hometown America, L.L.C. of the Stock of Chateau Communities, 

Inc. (the "Application"), and in support thereof state: 

1. The joint applicants are: 

Chateau Communities, Inc. 
6160 South Syracuse Way 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 

and 

Hometown America, L.L.C. 
150 North Wacker Drive, Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

(Referred to collectively as "Applicants") 

2. The name and address of the authorized representative of Chateau, and the person 

to receive a copy of all papers, pleadings, and filings in this case is: 

Kathryn G. W. Cowdery, Esq. 
Ruden, McClosky, Smith Schuster & Russell, P.A. 
215 South Monroe Street, Suite 815 

' . 



Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Telephone: (850) 412-2000 
Facsimile: (850) 224-2032 
Email: Kathryn.Cowdery@ruden.com 

The name and address of the authorized representative of Hometown, and the person to 

receive a copy of all papers, pleadings, and fi1ings in this case is: 

Nancy M. Burke, Esq. 
Katz, Kutter, Alderman & Bryant, P.A. 
106 East College Avenue, Suite 1200 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Telephone: (850) 224-9634 
Facsimile: (850) 222-0103 
Email: nburke@katzlaw.com 

3. Prior to transfer, Chateau holds majority organizational control of three 1 

wastewater and/or water utilities (together, the "Utilities") in accordance with the organizational 

chart attached hereto as Attachment "A": 

CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley 
Certificate Nos. 277-W and 223-S in Seminole County 
6160 South Syracuse Way 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 

CWS Communities LP 
Certificate No. 518-W in Lake County 
6160 South Syracuse Way 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 

and 

Del Tura Phase I, LLC 
Certificate No. 298-S in Lee County 
6160 South Syracuse Way 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 

4. Majority organizational control of the Utilities will be transferred to Hometown 

1 Previously, Chateau also held majority organizational control of CWS Communities LP 
d/b/a Crystal Lake Club, holder of Certificate Nos. 525-W and 454-S in Highlands County. On 
September 4, 2003, Crystal Lake Club was sold to Dockside Investors, an entity that is not 
affiliated with Chateau or Hometown. 
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as a result of the merger of Chateau into Hometown Communities, L.L.C., a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of Hometown. 

5. The transfer of majority organizational control of the Utilities is part of a larger 

merger/acquisition transaction. On May 29, 2003, Chateau, ROC Communities, Inc., CP 

Limited Partnership, Hometown, and Hometown America Holdings, L.L.C., a Delaware limited 

liability company and a member of Hometown, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, a 

copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment "B" (the "Merger Agreement"), pursuant to 

which, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, among other things, Chateau 

shall be merged with and into Hometown Communities, L.L.C., a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Hometown (the "Merger"), with the subsidiary remaining as the surviving entity, and a different 

wholly-owned subsidiary of Hometown shall merge into CP Limited Partnership (the 

"Partnership Merger" and, together with the Merger, the "Mergers"), with CP Limited 

Partnership, Fairways, Sun Coast Investment Group, Limited, Del Tura Phase I, LLC ("Del 

Tura"), and CWS Communities LP surviving the merger. The names "CP Limited Partnership" 

and "Chateau Communities LP," the name by which CP Limited Partnership is known and 

registered with the Secretary of State in Florida, will be changed to "Hometown Communities 

Limited Partnership." Pursuant to the Merger Agreement and subject to the terms and conditions 

set forth therein, upon consummation of the Merger, each share of common stock of Chateau 

will be converted into the right to receive $29.25 in cash. 

6. The transfer of the Utilities is contingent upon Florida Public Service 

Commission ("PSC") approval, consistent with the provisions of§ 367.071(1), Fla. Stat. A copy 

the Agreement as to Transfer of Florida Public Service Commission Certificated Utilities is 

attached hereto as Attachment "C." 
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7. After transfer, the Utilities will continue to be owned by their current owners, Del 

Tura and CWS Communities LP. The facilities in Seminole County will continue to be 

certificated in the name CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley, the facility in Lake County 

will continue to be certificated under the name CWS Communities LP, and the facility in Lee 

County will continue to be certificated under the name Del Tura Phase I, LLC. An 

organizational chart of the Utilities prior to and post transfer is attached hereto as Attachment 

"A." 

8. Hometown is not separately financing the purchase of the Utilities. It is acquiring 

all the stock of the parent companies at a price of approximately $2.2 billion through the 

assumption of approximately $1.2 billion debt and payment to shareholders of approximately $1 

billion in cash. 

9. Financial information regarding Hometown is included in Hometown's 2002 

Consolidated Financial Report, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment "D." 

10. Hometown does not have officers and directors. It is a manager-managed limited 

liability company with two members. The names and addresses of the two members and the 

manager are listed on Attachment "E" hereto. Also listed on Exhibit "E" are the names and 

addresses of the members, officers (there are no directors), and manager of Hometown 

Residential Manager, L.L.C., the manager of Hometown. 

11. The transfer is in the public interest because the Utilities' customers will continue 

to receive the same quality service to which they are accustomed. Regarding technical ability, 

the Utilities are retaining the local management teams that have operated the water and 

wastewater utilities for more than ten years. At this time, the Utilities provide safe and reliable 
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water service to their customers. Additional experience of Hometown in providing water and 

wastewater service is described in Attachment "F" hereto. 

The Utilities will continue to have the benefit of Utilities Director Mr. Robert S. Munro, 

who has been Utilities Director for the water and/or wastewater utilities owned by Chateau in 

Florida for more than ten years. The Utilities are staffed with licensed and trained personnel. 

Hometown is committed to providing safe and reliable water and wastewater service to its 

residents and customers. 

12. The Utilities will continue to have financial ability to provide service. Hometown 

will provide funding to the Utilities as needed. See Attachment "D" hereto, containing the 

consolidated financial statement of Hometown. Hometown will provide the financial stability 

required to maintain the Utilities in accordance with PSC standards and environmental 

regulations. Hometown will fulfill all of the Utilities' commitments, obligations and 

representations with regard to utility matters. The books, records, and original source documents 

of the Utilities shall be maintained in Florida, in compliance with Fla. Admin. Code R. 25-

30.115(1 ), and in accordance with the affidavit attached hereto as Attachment "G." 

13. After reasonable investigation, the systems being acquired appear to be in 

satisfactory condition and in compliance with all applicable standards set by the Florida 

Department of Environmental Protection. 

14. Since the ownership of the Utilities has not changed, no changes need to be made 

to the Certificates or Tariffs, and copies are therefore not attached hereto. Likewise, no changes 

have been made to the ownership of the real property upon which the utility facilities are located 

which property remains dedicated to public utility use. 
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15. In Seminole County, CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley's water system 

has the capacity to serve 831 ERCs, and its wastewater system has the maximum capacity and is 

currently serving, 536 ERCs. In Lake County, the CWS Communities LP's water system has the 

capacity to serve 292 ERCs. In Lee County, Del Tura's wastewater system has the maximum 

capacity and is currently serving 1181 ERCs. An application fee in the amount of $3,000.00 as 

provided by§ 367.145, Fla. Stat., and Fla. Admin. Code R. 25-30.020(2)(c), is attached hereto. 

16. The portion of the Purchase Price payable at Closing allocable or attributable to 

each certificated utility property is deemed by the parties to be at least the net book value of the 

utility assets as will be established by the PSC as part of this transfer docket. 

17. The affidavit required by§§ 367.0145{l)(e) and (2)(f), Fla. Stat., shall be filed no 

later than 15 days after the date of filing this application, as required by Fla. Admin. Code. R. § 

25-30.030. 

WHEREFORE, the Applicants request that the PSC approve the Joint Application for 

Approval of the Transfer of Majority Organizational Control of Del Tura Phase I, LLC and CWS 

Communities LP as the Result of the Acquisition by Hometown America, L.L.C. of the Stock of 

Chateau Communities, Inc., as set forth in this Application. 

A TED this & day of O c., to ber 2003. ,,, ... // 

a 
Fla. Bar 
Ruden, McClosky, Smit 

& Russell, P.A. 
215 South Monroe Street, Suite 815 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
(850) 412-2000 

Attorneys for Chateau Communities, Inc. 
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N~cy M. Bnfke 
Fla. Bar No.: 00toS891 
Katz, Kutter, Alderman & Bryant, P.A. 
106 East College A venue, Suite 1200 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
(850) 224-9643 

Attorneys for Hometown America, L.L.C. 



ATTACHMENT A 



Pre-Merger 

ROC Communities, Inc. 
3 7% owner as GP of: 

99% owner 
1.-----' 

~ ~ 
Chateau Communities, Inc. CP Limited Partnership (known in 
1 % GP of both: 46% owner as GP of: Florida as Chateau Communities LP) 

~ 99% owner as LP of both: 

l / ,r 

Fairways (General Partnership) CWS Communities LP 
99% owner as LP of: (d/b/a Palm Valley) 

.. i 
Sun Coast Investment Group, Limited 
100% owner and managing member of: 

' 

Del Tura Phase I, LLC 
Owner of wastewater utility assets 

Post-Merger 

Same organization except ROC Communities, Inc. and 
Chateau Communities, Inc. will be merged into 
Hometown Communities, L.L.C. , a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Hometown America, L.L.C., and the names 
"CP Limited Partnership" and "Chateau Communities 
LP" will be changed to Hometown Communities Limited 
Partnership. 

GP = General Partner 
LP = Limited Partner Attachment A 



ATTACHMENT B 



AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 

DATED AS OF MAY 29, 2003 

BY AND AMONG 

HOMETOWN AMERICA, L.L.C., 

HOMETOWN AMERICA HOLDINGS, L.L.C., 

CP LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 

CHA TEAU COMMUNITIES, INC. 

AND 

ROC COMMUNITIES, INC. 

W/747177v11 
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (th1s "Agreement"), dated as of May 29, 2003, by and 
among HOMETOWN AMERICA, L.L.C., a Delaware limited habihty company ("Purchaser"), 
HOMETOWN AMERICA HOLDINGS, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company and a member of 
Purchaser ("Parent"), CP LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Maryland hmited partnership ("Chateau OP"), 
CHA TEAU COMMUNITIES, INC., a Maryland corporation and a general partner of Chateau OP 
("Chateau"), and ROC COMMUNITIES, INC., a Maryland corporation and the other general partner of 
Chateau OP ("ROC"). 

RECITALS 

A. Parent and Purchaser have formed two Maryland limited liab11ity companies, the first of 
which newly formed lim1ted hability company (the "Merger Sub") shall have only one member, which 
one member shall be Purchaser, and the second of which newly formed lim1ted liability company (the 
"Partnership Merger Sub") shall have only one member, which one member shall be Merger Sub. 

B. The Board of Directors of Chateau has determined that it is advisable and in the best 
interest of Chateau and its stockholders, and the AdV1sory Board of Purchaser has determined that it is 
adv1sable and in the best mterest of Purchaser and its members, that, upon the terms and subject to the 
conditions set forth m this Agreement, Chateau will be merged with and into the Merger Sub, with the 
Merger Sub continuing as the sumving entity in the merger (the "Merger"), in which (except for any 
shares of Chateau Common Stock that are owned by Chateau or by Chateau OP immediately prior to the 
Effective Time, which shall automatically be canceled pursuant to Section 1.7(b)) each issued and 
outstanding share of common stock, par value $.0 I per share, of Chateau (the "Chateau Common Stock") 
will be converted mto the right to receive $29.25 m cash without interest (the "Common Stock Merger 
Consideration"). 

C. Parent and Purchaser shall cause Merger Sub, as the sole managing member of 
Partnersh1p Merger Sub, to deem 1t advisable and m the best interests of Partnership Merger Sub and its 
members, and Chateau and ROC, as the sole general partners of Chateau OP, deem it advisable and in the 
best interests of Chateau OP and its limited partners, that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, immediately prior to the Merger, Partnership Merger Sub shall merge with and 
into Chateau OP (the "Partnership Merger" and together with the Merger the "Mergers"), with the holders 
(the "OP Unit Holders") of each common umt of limited partner interest m Chateau OP (each, an "OP 
Unit" and collectively, the "OP Units") at the time of the Partnership Merger either (x) receivmg ( except 
for OP Units as to which appraisal nghts are exercised and perfected pursuant to applicable Law and OP 
Units held by Chateau and ROC) cash m the amount of the Common Stock Merger Consideration, 
without interest, per OP Umt (each such OP Unit Holder a "Selling OP Unit Holder") or, (y) if, in 
accordance with the tenns and subject to the cond1t1ons specified herein, the holder of such OP Units so 
elects, Partnership Secunties (as defined herein) (each such OP Unit Holder a "Continuing OP Unit 
Holder"). 

D. Upon the terms and subject to the cond1t1ons set forth herein, Merger Sub and Chateau 
shall execute Articles of Merger (the "Articles of Merger") in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and shall file such Articles of Merger in accordance with Maryland law to effectuate the 
Merger. 

E. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, Partnership Merger Sub and 
Chateau OP shall execute Articles of Merger (the "Partnership Articles of Merger") in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit B and shall file such Partnership Articles of Merger m accordance wrth 
Maryland law to effectuate the Partnership Merger. 



F. As a condition and inducement to Purchaser's willingness to enter into this Agreement 
and consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, Purchaser has required each of Rees F. Davis, Jr., 
C.G. Kellogg, Tamara D. Fischer, Edward R. Allen, James M . Hankins, Steven J. Sherwood, John A. 
Boll, Rhonda G. Hogan, James A. Williams, D. Keith Cobb, James T. Mestdagh, and Robert Jordan (the 
"Specified Holders") to enter mto a voting agreement, of even date herewith (the "Voting Agreements"), 
pursuant to which, among other things, each Specified Holder agrees to vote all shares of Chateau 
Common Stock beneficially owned by such Specified Holder (including shares of Chateau Common 
Stock issued upon conversion of options of Chateau beneficially owned by the Specified Holder) in favor 
of the Merger and to vote all OP Units beneficially owned by such Specified Holder in favor of the 
Partnership Merger; 

G. Parent, Purchaser, Chateau OP, Chateau and ROC desire to make certain representations, 
warranties and agreements in connection with the Mergers. 

AGREEMENT 

In consideration of the premises and the mutual representations, warranties, covenants and 
agreements contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of wh1ch are hereby aclmowledged, mtending to be legally bound, the parties hereto hereby 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

THE MERGER 

Section 1.1 The Merger. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, and m accordance with Sections 3-101 et seq. of the Maryland General Corporation Law (the 
"MGCL"), and Sections 4A-701 et seq . of the Maryland Limited Liability Company Act (the "MLLCA"), 
Chateau shall be merged with and mto Merger Sub, with Merger Sub being the surviving entity (the 
"Sumving Company"). 

Section 1.2 The Partnership Merger. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth 
in this Agreement, and m accordance with Sections 10-208 et seq. of the Maryland Revised Uniform 
Limited Partnership Act (the "MRULPA"), and Sections 4A-701 et seq. of the MLLCA, immediately 
prior to the consummation of the Merger, Partnership Merger Sub shall be merged with and into Chateau 
OP, with Chateau OP bemg the surviving entity (the "Sumving Partnership"). The sole general partner 
of the Surviving Partnership shall be Merger Sub. 

Section 1.3 Closing. The closing of the Mergers (the "Closing") will take place commencing 
at I 0:00 a.m., local time, on the date to be specified by the partles, which shall be no later than the third 
business day after satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set forth in Article V (other than those 
conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied or waived at the Closmg, but subject to the satisfaction or 
waiver of those conditions), but in any event shall not be ear her than 90 days after the date hereof unless 
an earlier date is consented to by Purchaser (the "Closing Date''), at the offices of Wachtell, Lipton, 
Rosen & Katz, 51 West 52nd Street, New York, NY 10019, unless another date or place is agreed tom 
writing by the parties hereto. 

Section 1.4 Effective Time. As soon as practicable following the satisfaction or waiver of 
the conditions set forth in Article V, (a) Merger Sub and Chateau shall execute and file the Articles of 
Merger, in accordance with the MGCL and the MLLCA, with the State Department of Assessments and 
Taxation of the State of Maryland (the "Department"), and shall make all other filings and recordings 
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required under such statutes with respect to the Merger, and (b) Partnership Merger Sub and Chateau OP 
shall execute and file the Partnership Articles of Merger, in accordance with the MRULP A and the 
MLLCA, and shall make all other filings and recordings required under such statutes with respect to the 
Partnership Merger. The Mergers shall become effective ( each an "Effective Time" and collectively, the 
"Effective Times") at such time, as permitted by the MGCL, the MLLCA or the MRULPA, as the case 
may be, as (i) Merger Sub and Chateau shall agree should be specified in the Articles of Merger and (ii) 
Partnership Merger Sub and Chateau OP shall agree should be specified in the Partnership Articles of 
Merger. Unless otherwise agreed or contemplated by the terms hereof, the parties shall cause the 
Effective Times to occur on the Closing Date with the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger occurring 
immediately before the Effective Time of the Merger. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, 
m the event that every condition to the Closmg has been satisfied or waived pursuant to the terms hereof 
other than approval of the Partnership Merger and related transactions by the holders of the 8.125% Sen es 
A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Units of Chateau OP (the "Series A Units"), then, in such event, 
Purchaser and Chateau shall reasonably cooperate (1) to effect the Merger and the transactions related 
thereto (but not the Partnership Merger and the transactions related thereto) at the Effective Time on the 
Closing Date pursuant to the terms hereof, (2) at the Effective Time of the Merger, (a) to issue to the 
holders of Series A Units a notice of redemption, which redemption shall be effective 31 days after the 
Closing (the "Second Closing Date") in accordance with the terms of the Chateau OP Agreement, and (b) 
to commit to effect the Partnership Merger, including making available the Partnership Merger 
Consideration, in each case upon the terms (including Section 1.9) hereof, (3) on the Second Closing 
Date, (x) to redeem such Series A Units and (y) to effect the Partnership Merger pursuant to the terms 
hereof, with the redemption of the Series A Units occumng immediately before the Partnership Merger, 
and (4) to amend the Chateau OP Agreement as of the Effective Time of the Merger so as to eliminate the 
right of holders of OP Units to have OP Units converted or redeemed dunng the period from the Closing 
Date through the Second Closing Date. In the event the provisions of the prior sentence become 
applicable because every condition to the Closing has been satisfied or waived pursuant to the terms 
hereof other than approval of the Partnership Merger and related transactions by the holders of the Series 
A Units and there shall accordingly be a Second Closing Date on which the Effective Time for the 
Partnership Merger shall occur, then (x) provision shall be made by Purchaser and Chateau so that holders 
of OP Units shall have the right and ability to exchange their OP Units for the Partnership Merger 
Consideration following the Effective Time of the Merger and prior to the Effective Time of the 
Partnership Merger, subject to the otherwise applicable terms hereof with respect to the receipt of the 
Partnership Merger Consideration, and (y) references herein to the Closing Date and the Effective Time 
shall be deemed, as appropriate, to be references to either the Closing Date or the Second Closing Date, 
and to either the Effective Time of the Merger or the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger, in each 
case as appropnate m the context m which such terms are used. 

Section 1.5 Operating Agreement; Directors; Officers. The Operating Agreement of Merger 
Sub, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time of the Merger, shall continue m full force and 
effect after the Merger as the Operatmg Agreement of the Surviving Company, until further amended m 
accordance with the terms of such Operating Agreement and applicable Maryland law. The directors or 
managers of Merger Sub at the Effective Time of the Merger shall, from and after the Effective Time of 
the Merger, be and become the directors or managers of the SurYlving Company until their successors 
shall have been duly elected and qualified or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in 
accordance with the governmg instruments of the Surviving Company and applicable Law. The officers 
of Merger Sub at the Effective Time of the Merger shall, from and after the Effective Time of the Merger, 
be and become the officers of the Survtving Company until their successors shall have been duly 
appointed and qualified or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the 
governing instruments of the Survtvmg Company. 
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Section 1.6 Agreement of Limited Partnership and Certificate of Limited Partnership. The 
Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Chateau OP, dated as of January 22, 1997, 
as amended (the "Chateau OP Agreement"), and the Certificate of Limited Partnership of Chateau OP as 
in effect as of the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger, shall continue in full force and effect until 
the Partnership Merger, upon the consummation of which, the Limited Liabihty Company Agreement of 
Partnership Merger Sub shall become the Partnership Agreement of the Surviving Partnership (the 
"Surviving Partnership Agreement"), with such changes necessary to reflect the issuance, rights and other 
terms of the Partnership Secunties, until further amended m accordance therewith and applicable 
Maryland Jaw. 

Section 1.7 Conversion of Equity Secunties in the Merger. At the Effective Time, by virtue 
of the Merger and without any act10n on the part of the holder of any shares of capital stock of Chateau or 
membership interests of Merger Sub: 

(a) Membership Interests of Merger Sub. The issued and outstanding membership interests 
of Merger Sub immediately pnor to the Effective Time of the Merger shall remain outstanding as the 
issued and outstandmg membership mterests of the Surviving Company. 

(b) Cancellation of Chateau-Owned Stock. Each share of Chateau Common Stock 
beneficially owned by Cbateau shall be treated m the Merger in the same manner as any other authorized 
but unissued share of Chateau Common Stock. All authorized but unissued shares of Chateau Common 
Stock shall be cancelled for no consideration in the Merger and shall not have any right to the Merger 
Consideration. 

(c) Common Stock Merger Consideration. Each share of Chateau Common Stock issued and 
outstanding immediately pnor to the Effective Time of the Merger (other than shares to be canceled in 
accordance with Section l.7(b)) shall be converted into the right to receive the Common Stock Merger 
Consideration. At the Effective Time of the Merger all shares of Chateau Common Stock shall no longer 
be outstanding and shall automatically be canceled and shall cease to exist, and each holder of a 
certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time of the Merger represented any such shares (each a 
"Certificate") shall cease to have any nghts with respect thereto, except the right to receive the Common 
Stock Merger Consideration described above and to receive any dividends declared, in accordance with 
the terms hereof, payable to holders of record of shares of Chateau Common Stock as of a record date 
preceding the Effective Time of the Merger, and unpaid as of the Effective Time of the Merger. 
Following the Effective Time of the Merger, upon surrender of Certificates representing shares of 
Chateau Common Stock m accordance with Section 1.8, the Surviving Company shall pay to the holders 
of such Certificates as of the Effective Time of the Merger any such dividends which remain unpaid at the 
Effective Tune. 

(d) Stock Opt10ns and Restricted Stock. 

(i) In connection with the Merger, (A) each option (each, a "Chateau Option" and 
collectively, the "Chateau Options") to purchase Chateau Common Stock granted under Chateau's 2002, 
2001, 1999, 1997 and 1993 Equity Compensation Plans or under the CWS Communities Trust 1998 Long 
Term Incentive Plan or under any other stock option plan pursuant to which options to purchase Chateau 
Common Stock have been granted to Chateau employees and service providers (collectively, the 
"Chateau Option Plans") which 1s outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time of the Merger, 
whether or not then vested or exercisable, shall become fully vested and exercisable, and (B) any 
restrictions or limitations with respect to Chateau Common Stock awarded under the Chateau Option 
Plans shall termmate or lapse so that such shares shall be freely transferable (and whereby the provisions 
of Section 1.7(c) shall apply to such shares m accordance with their terms). At the Effective Time of the 
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Merger, Purchaser shall pay Chateau sufficient cash to enable Chateau to pay, and Chateau shall pay, to 
each holder of a Chateau Option, subject to applicable withholding, cash m an amount equal to the 
product of (i) the number of shares of Chateau Common Stock subject to such Chateau Option and (ii) the 
excess, if any, of the Common Stock Merger Consideration over the exercise price per share provided for 
in such Chateau Option. Notw1thstanding the foregoing, if the exercise price per share provided for in 
any Chateau Option exceeds the Common Stock Merger Consideration, no cash shall be paid with regard 
to such Chateau Option to the holder of such Chateau Option. Immediately following the Effective Time 
of the Merger, all outstanding Chateau Options shall automatically be canceled. 

(e) Adjustments to Merger Consideration. The Common Stock Merger Consideration 
payable upon the cancellation of Chateau Common Stock shall be adJusted to reflect fully the effect of 
any reclassification, combination, subdivision, stock spht, reverse spht, stock dividend (including any 
stock dividend or distribution of secunties convertible into Chateau Common Stock), reorganization, 
recapitalization or other like change with respect to Chateau Common Stock (or for wluch a record date is 
established) after the date hereof and pnor to the Effective Time of the Merger. 

Section 1.8 Surrender of Certificates. 

(a) Paying Agent. Prior to the Effective Time of the Merger, Purchaser shall designate a 
bank or trust company reasonably acceptable to Chateau to act as agent for the payment of the Merger 
Consideration upon surrender of Certificates representing Chateau Common Stock (the "Paymg Agent"). 
Purchaser shall take all steps necessary to enable, and shall cause, the Sumving Company to provide to 
the Paying Agent 1mmed1ately following the Effective Time of the Merger the Common Stock Merger 
Consideration payable in exchange for the shares of Chateau Common Stock pursuant to Section 1.7(c), 
plus any amounts payable m respect of unpaid dividends as contemplated by Seen.on l.7(c) (such 
consideration being hereinafter referred to as the "Exchange Fund"). 

I 

(b) Exchange Procedure. As soon as practicable after the Effective Time of the Merger, the 
Paying Agent shall mail to each holder of record of a Certificate (i) a form of letter of transmittal (which 
shall specify that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates held by such 
Person (as defined herein) shall pass, only upon proper delivery of the Certificates to the Paying Agent 
and shall be in customary form and have such other provisions as Purchaser may reasonably specify) and 
(11) instructions for use in effecting the surrender of the Certificates m exchange for the Common Stock 
Merger Consideration. Upon surrender of a Certificate for cancellation to the Paying Agent or to such 
other agent or agents as may be appomted by Purchaser, together with such letter of transmittal, duly 
completed and validly executed, and such other documents as may reasonably be required by the Paying 
Agent, the holder of such Certificate shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor the Common Stock 
Merger Consideration in respect of the shares formerly represented by such Certificate pursuant to 
Section l.7(c), and the Certificate so surrendered shall forthwith be canceled. In the event of a transfer of 
ownership of Chateau Common Stock that is not registered m the stock transfer books of Chateau, 
payment may be paid in exchange therefor to a Person other than the Person m whose name the 
Certificate so surrendered is registered, if such Certificate shall be properly endorsed or otherwise be in 
proper form for transfer, and the Person requesting such payment shall pay any transfer or other Taxes 
required by reason of the payment to a Person other than the registered holder of such Certificate or 
establish to the satisfaction of Purchaser that such Tax has been paid or is not applicable. No interest 
shall be paid or shall accrue on the Merger Consideration or on any unpaid dividends payable upon 
surrender of any Certificate. 

(c) No Further Ownership Rights. All cash paid upon the surrender of a Certificate m 
accordance wtth the terms of this Article I shall be deemed to have been paid in full satisfaction of all 
rights pertaining to the shares of Chateau Common Stock formerly represented by such Certificate. At 
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the close of business on the day on which the Effective Time of the Merger occurs the stock transfer 
books of Chateau shall be closed, and there shall be no further registration of transfers on the stock 
transfer books of the SUTVIving Company of the shares of Chateau Common Stock that were outstandmg, 
immediately pnor to the Effective Time of the Merger. If, after the Effective Time of the Merger, 
Certificates are presented to the Surviving Company or the Paymg Agent for transfer or any other reason, 
they shall be canceled and exchanged as provtded in this Article I. 

( d) Termination of Exchange Fund. Any portion of the Exchange Fund that remains 
undistributed to the holders of Chateau Common Stock for one year after the Effective Time of the 
Merger shall be delivered to the Surviving Company, upon demand, and any holder of Chateau Common 
Stock who has not theretofore complied Wlth this Article I shall thereafter look only to the Surviving 
Company for payment of its claun for Merger Consideration. 

(e) No Liability. Neither Purchaser, the Chateau OP nor the Surviving Company shall be 
liable to any Person for any part of the Merger Consideration or for unpaid dividends or for any 
distributions with respect thereto delivered to a public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned 
property, escheat or similar Law (as defined herein). Any amounts remaining unclaimed by holders of 
any such shares five years after the Effective Time of the Merger or at such earlier date as is immediately 
prior to the time at which such amounts would otherwise escheat to, or become property of, any federal, 
state, local government, or agency or any court, regulatory or administrative agency or commission or 
other governmental authonty or instrumentahty, domestic or foreign (a "Governmental Entity"), shall, to 
the extent permitted by applicable Law, become the property of the Survivmg Company free and clear of 
any claims or interest of any such holders or their successors, assigns or personal representatives 
previously entitled thereto. 

(f) Investment of Exchange Fund. The Paying Agent shall invest any cash included in the 
Exchange Fund, as directed by Purchaser, on a daily basis; provided, however, that such mvestrnents shall 
be m (i) obligations of or guaranteed by the United States of America and backed by the full faith and 
credit of the Umted States of America, (ii) commercial paper obligations rated A-1 or P-1 or better by 
Moody' s Investors Service, Inc. or Standard & Poor's Corporation, respectively, (iii) certificates of 
deposit maturing not more than 180 days after the date of purchase issued by a bank organized under the 
laws of the Uruted States or any state thereof having a combined capital and surplus of at least 
$500,000,000, or (iv) a money market fund havmg assets of at least $3,000,000,000. Any mterest and 
other income resulting from such investments shall be paid to Chateau OP. 

(g) Lost Certificates. If any Certificate shall have been lost, stolen, defaced or destroyed, 
upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the Person claimmg such Certificate to be lost, stolen, 
defaced or destroyed and, if required by the Survivmg Company, the posting by such Person of a bond in 
such reasonable amount as the Surviving Company may direct as indemnity agamst any claim that may be 
made against it with respect to such Certificate, the Paying Agent shall pay in respect of such lost, stolen, 
defaced or destroyed Certificate the Merger Considerat10n. 

(h) Withholding Rights. Purchaser, Chateau OP, the Surviving Partnership, the Surviving 
Company or the Paymg Agent, as apphcable, shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from the 
consideration otherwise payable pursuant to this Agreement to any holder of shares of Chateau Common 
Stock, such amounts as it 1s required to withhold with respect to such payments under the Code (as 
defined herein) or any other provision of state, local or foreign tax law. 

(1) Tax Treatment. Chateau hereby confirms, covenants and agrees that this Agreement shall 
constitute its plan of liquidation within the meamng of Section 562(b )(1) of the Code and that its Board of 
Directors has ( or prior to that date on which the Effective Time of the Merger occurs, will) adopt thts 
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Agreement as such a plan of liquidation and all distnbut10ns of the Common Stock Merger Consideration 
shall be treated as liquidatmg distributions, except as may be required by a Determination as defined 
under Section 1313(a) of the Code (a "Determination"). 

Section 1.9 Convers10n of Equity Securities m the Partnership Merger. At the Effective 
Time of the Partnership Merger, by virtue of the Partnership Merger and without any action on the part of 
any OP Unit Holder or holder of membership interests of Partnership Merger Sub: 

(a) Ownership Interests of Partnership Merger Sub. The issued and outstanding membership 
interests in Partnership Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger 
shall be converted mto the number of OP Units held by OP Unit Holders (other than the number of OP 
Umts converted into Partnership Secuntles) as of such time. 

(b) Partnership Merger Consideration. The consideration to be paid to the OP Unit Holders 
and Series A Unit Holders m the Partnership Merger is as follows (the "Partnership Merger 
Consideration" and, together with the Common Stock Merger Consideration, the "Merger 
Consideration"): 

(1) Each OP Unit outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time of the 
Partnership Merger (other than OP Units held by Chateau and ROC and other than any D1ssentmg OP 
Umts) shall be exchanged for cash in the amount of the Common Stock Merger Consideration per OP 
Umt, without interest, provided that 1f any OP Umt Holder submits to Purchaser a duly and validly 
completed Form of Election (as defined herem) in accordance with the procedures and time periods 
specified in Section 4.2(c), and otherwfae satisfies the requirements set forth herem and therein, such OP 
Unit Holder shall instead receive for each OP Unit then held by 1t a Preferred Security Unit in the 
Surviving Partnership (the "Partnership Secunty"), the terms of which Partnership Security shall be set 
forth in the Surviving Partnership Agreement and which shall reflect the terms set forth m the term sheet 
attached hereto as Exh1b1t C. 

(ii) Any OP Units outstanding and held by Chateau or ROC immediately prior to the 
Effective Time of the Partnership Merger shall remam outstanding. 

(iii) At the Effecbve Time of the Partnership Merger, each holder of a Chateau OP 
Unit outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger shall cease to have 
any rights with respect thereto except the nght to receive the applicable Partnership Merger Consideration 
and to receive any distributions declared, m accordance with the terms hereof, payable to holders of 
record of Chateau OP Units as of a record date precedmg the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger, 
and unpaid as of the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger. Following the Effective Time of the 
Partnership Merger, upon dehvery to the Paymg Agent of such duly executed documents, includmg a 
Form of Election, as may be reqmred by the Paying Agent or Purchaser, in accordance with the terms 
hereof, the Surviving Partnership shall pay to such former holders of OP Units as of the Effective Time of 
the Partnership Merger any such distributions which remain unpaid at the Effective Time of the 
Partnership Merger. 

(1v) Effective as of the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger, without any further 
act or action on behalf of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary or any holder of OP Units, all DRO (Deficit 
Restoration Agreements) elections and agreements set forth on Section 2. l(k)(vii) of the disclosure letter 
dated as of the date of this Agreement and delivered to Purchaser in connection with the execution hereof 
(the "Chateau Disclosure Letter") shall be terminated and shall no longer require Chateau to incur or 
maintain any recourse or nonrecourse mdebtedness of any amount thereafter, nor shall Chateau nor any 
Chateau Subsidiary have any continumg rights or Iiabihties thereunder. 
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(c) Objectors' Rights to an Appraisal. Anything m thts Agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding, each OP Unit outstanding immediately pnor to the Effective Time of the Partnership 
Merger and held by a holder who has not voted in favor of the Partnership Merger or consented thereto in 
writing and who has demanded appraisal ("Dissenting OP Unit Holder") for such OP Unit in accordance 
with Section 10-208(f) of the MRULP A, to the extent such Sect10n 10-208(£) of the MR.ULP A provides 
for appraisal rights for such OP Umts in the Partnership Merger ("Dissentmg OP Units"), shall not be 
converted mto or be exchangeable for the right to receive the Partnership Merger Consideration, unless 
and until such Dissenting OP Unit Holder fails to perfect or withdraws or otherwise loses his right to 
appraisal and payment under the MRULPA. If, after the Effective Time of the Partnership Merger, any 
such Dissenting OP Umt Holder fails to perfect or withdraws or loses his right to appraisal, such 
Dissenting OP Units shall thereupon be treated as if such OP Units had been converted as of the Effective 
Time of the Partnership Merger mto the right to receive the Partnership Merger Consideration, if any, to 
which such Dissentmg OP Unit Holder is entitled, without mterest or dividends thereon. Chateau OP 
shall give Purchaser (1) prompt notice of any demands received by Chateau OP for appraisal of OP Units, 
attempted wntten withdrawals of such demands, and any other instruments served pursuant to the 
MRULPA and received by Chateau OP relating to OP Unit Holders' rights to appraisal with respect to the 
Partnership Merger, and (it) the opportunity to direct all negotiations and proceedings with respect to any 
exercise of such appraisal nghts under the MRULPA. Neither Chateau OP nor Chateau or any Chateau 
Subsidiary shall, except with the prior written consent of Purchaser, voluntarily make any payment with 
respect to any demands for payment of fair value for partnership interests ofChateau OP, offer to settle or 
settle any such demands or approve any withdrawal of any such demands. 

(d) Senes A Units. Each Series A Unit that ts outstanding tmmediately pnor to the Effective 
Time of the Partnership Merger and that has not been previously redeemed shall cease to have any rights 
with respect thereto except the right to receive such amount in cash as would have been payable had the 
Senes A Units been redeemed as of the Effective Date of the Partnership Merger. 

(e) Adjustments to Partnership Merger Consideration. The Partnership Merger 
Consideration shall be adjusted to reflect fully the effect of any reclassification, combination, subdivision, 
spht, reverse split, dtstnbution of securities convertible mto OP Units, reorganization, recapitalization or 
other hke change with respect to OP Units occurring ( or for which a record date is established) after the 
date hereof and prior to the Effective Time. 

(f) Withholdmg Rights. Purchaser, Chateau OP, the Surviving Partnership, the Surviving 
Company or the Paying Agent, as applicable, shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from the 
consideration otherwise payable pursuant to this Agreement to any holder of shares of OP Units, such 
amounts as 1t is requtred to withhold with respect to such payments under the Code (as defined herein) or 
any other provtsion of state, local or foreign tax law. 

(g) Tax Treatment of the Partnership Merger. The parties hereby confirm, covenant and 
agree to treat the Partnership Merger, for all income tax purposes as (1) a sale by the Selling OP Unit 
Holders of their OP Units m Chateau OP to Purchaser in exchange for cash, and (it) for Continuing OP 
Unit Holders, tax-deferred exchange of their former partnership interest m Chateau OP for Partnership 
Securities, mcluding filing Chateau OP Tax Returns consistent with such treatment, and no party shall 
take any position inconsistent with such treatment. 

Section 1.10 Procedures for Exchange of OP Units in the Partnership Merger. Except for the 
provisions relating to the Certificates, all other provisions of Section 1.8 shall apply to Chateau OP and 
the OP Units with respect to the Partnership Merger, except as otherwise provided in Section 1.9. 
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ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1 Representations and Warranties of Chateau. Chateau, Chateau OP and ROC 
represent and warrant to Purchaser, the Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub as follows: 

(a) Organization, Standmg and Corporate Power of Chateau. Chateau is a corporation duly 
mcorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the State of Maryland and has the 
requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its 
business as now being conducted. Chateau is duly qualified or licensed to do business and is in good 
standmg m each jurisdiction in which the nature of the business it is conducting, or the ownership, 
operation or leasmg of its properties or the management of properties for others makes such qualification 
or licensmg necessary, other than in such Jurisdictions where the failure to be so qualified or licensed, 
individually or in the aggregate, would not have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau 
Material Adverse Effect. For the purposes of this Agreement, a "Chateau Material Adverse Effect'' is any 
event, change, circumstance or effect which would have or would reasonably be expected to have a 
material adverse effect on (1) the business, assets, liabibhes, properties (includmg their mortgageability or 
the terms on which they are mortgageable), condition (financial or otherwise) or results of operations of 
Chateau, Chateau OP and the Chateau Subsidiaries (as defined herein) taken as a whole, or (ii) the ability 
of Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries to perform any of its or their obligations hereunder or 
consummate any of the transactions contemplated hereby, provided that a Chateau Material Adverse 
Effect shall not include any change with respect to Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary resulting from or 
attributable to (i) general national, international or regional economic or financial conditions, (ii) the 
announcement, pendency or consummation of this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents or the 
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, or (iii) conditions genera11y affecting the industries in 
which Chateau and the Chateau Subs1d1aries operate. Chateau has heretofore made available to Purchaser 
complete and correct copies of Chateau's charter, as amended (the "Chateau Charter"), and by-laws, as 
amended (the "Chateau By-laws"). Each Jurisdiction in which Chateau 1s qualified or licensed to do 
business and each assumed name under which it conducts business m any jurisdiction are identified in 
Section 2. l(a) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter. 

(b) Chateau Subsidiaries: Interests in Other Persons. (i) Each Chateau Subsidiary that is a 
corporation is duly incorporated, valtdly existmg and m good standmg under the Laws of its jurisdict10n 
of incorporation and has the requ1s1te corporate power and authonty to own, lease and operate its 
properties and to carry on tts business as now bemg conducted. Each Chateau Subsidiary, including 
Chateau OP, that is a partnership, limited liabihty company or trust is duly organized, validly existing and 
in good standing under the Laws of its jurisdiction of organization and has the requisite power and 
authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its busmess as now being conducted. 
Each Chateau Subsidiary, including Chateau OP, is duly qualified or licensed to do business and is in 
good standing in each jurisdiction in whlch the nature of its business or the ownership, operation or 
leasing of its properties or the management of properties for others makes such qualification or licensing 
necessary, other than m such jurisdictions where the failure to be so qualified or licensed, individually or 
m the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect. All 
outstanding shares of capital stock and other equity securities of each Chateau Subsidiary that is a 
corporation have been duly authonzed, are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and are not 
subject to any preemptive nghts and are owned by Chateau or another Chateau Subsidiary, except as 
disclosed in Sectlon 2.l(b)(i) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, and are so owned free and clear of all 
pledges, claims, liens, charges, encumbrances and secunty interests of any kind or nature whatsoever 
( each, a "Lien" and collectively, "Liens"). All equity interests and other eqmty securities in each Chateau 
Subsidiary, including Chateau OP, that 1s a partnership, limited liability company, trust or other entity that 
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have been duly authorized and are validly issued and are owned by Chateau or another Chateau 
Subsidiary, except as disclosed in Section 2.1 (b)(i) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, and are so owned 
free and clear of all Liens. Chateau has heretofore made available to Purchaser complete and correct 
copies of the charter, by-laws or other organizational documents of each of the Chateau Subsidiaries, each 
as amended to date. Section 2.1 (b )(1) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter sets forth (A) all Chateau 
Subsidianes and their respective JUnsdictions of mcorporahon or organization, (B) each owner and the 
respective amount of such owner' s equity mterest in each Chateau Subsidiary, and (C) a list of each 
jurisdiction m wluch each Chateau Subsidiary is qualified or licensed to do busmess and each assumed 
name under which each such Chateau Subsidiary conducts busmess in any Jurisdiction. 

(ii) Except for the capital stock of, or other eqmty mterests in, the Chateau 
Subsidiaries and the other interests disclosed in Section 2. l(b)(ii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter (the 
"Chateau Other Interests"), neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidiaries owns any capital stock or 
other ownership interest in any Person. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, neither Chateau 
OP nor any other Chateau Subsidiary owns any capital stock or other equity secunties of Chateau. 

(c) Capital Structure. 

(i) Capital Stock. 

(A) As of the date of this Agreement, the authorized capital stock of Chateau 
consists of (1) 90,000,000 shares of Chateau Common Stock and (2) 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, 
par value $0.01 per share, of which 1,500,000 shares have been designated as 8.125% Series A 
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the "Series A Preferred Stock"). All of the capital stock and 
other securities of ROC are owned by Chateau except as set forth on Section 2.l(c)(i) of the Chateau 
Disclosure Letter. 

(B) As of the date of this Agreement, (1) 29,411,826 shares of Chateau 
Common Stock are issued and outstanding, and (2) no shares of Series A Preferred Stock are issued and 
outstanding. 

(C) As of the date of this Agreement, (1) 2,951,753 shares of Chateau 
Common Stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of outstanding Chateau Options, (2) 5,557,026 
shares of Chateau Common Stock were reserved for issuance upon exchange of OP Umts for shares of 
Chateau Common Stock pursuant to the Chateau OP Agreement, and (3) 1,500,000 shares of Series A 
Preferred Stock were reserved for issuance upon redemption and exchange of the outstanding Series A 
Units pursuant to the Chateau OP Agreement. 

(D) As of the date of this Agreement, except as set forth above in this 
Section 2. l(c), no shares of capital stock or other voting securities of Chateau or options relatmg to 
capital stock of Chateau or any of its Affiliates are issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding, and there 
are no outstanding restricted shares of Chateau Common Stock, perfonnance share awards, stock 
appreciation rights or dividend equivalent nghts relating to the capital stock of Chateau. All outstanding 
shares of capital stock of Chateau are duly authorized, vahdly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and 
not subject to preemptive rights. 

(E) 
Subsidiary outstanding. 

There is no Voting Debt (as defined herein) of Chateau or any Chateau 

-10-



{F) Except as set forth in Section 2.l(c)(i)(F) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter, all dividends or distributions on secunt1es of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary that have been 
declared or authonzed pnor to the date of this Agreement have been paid in full. 

(ii) Partnership Umts. 

(A) As of the date of thts Agreement, 5,557,026 OP Units; 29,411,828 units 
of common general partner interest m Chateau OP (the "GP Umts"), and 1,500,000 Series A Units are 
validly issued and outstanding, fully paid and nonassessable and not subject to preemptive nghts. 

(B) Each OP Umt may, under certain circumstances set forth in the Chateau 
OP Agreement, be redeemed for shares of Chateau Common Stock on a one-for-one basis. The holders 
of Series A Umts have the nght, under certain circumstances, to exchange such units for shares of 
Series A Preferred Stock on a one-for-one basts pursuant to the terms of the Senes A Units. 

(C) Chateau is a general partner of Chateau OP and holds 16,301,887 GP 
Units representing a 55.43% general partner interest in Chateau OP and a 46.60% partnership interest in 
Chateau OP. ROC is the other general partner of Chateau OP and holds 13,109,941 GP Units 
representing a 44.57% general partner mterest in Chateau OP and a 37.50% partnership interest in 
Chateau OP. Section 2.l(c){u)(C) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter sets forth the name, number and class 
of GP Umts, OP Units and Senes A Umts held by each partner in Chateau OP. 

(iii) Miscellaneous. 

(A) Except as set forth in this Section 2.l(c) or in Section 2. l(c)(ili)(A) of the 
Chateau Disclosure Letter, there are issued and outstanding or reserved for issuance: (1) no shares of 
capital stock, Voting Debt or other votmg secunties of Chateau; (2) no securities of Chateau or any 
Chateau Subsidiary or securities or assets of any other entity convertible into or exchangeable for shares 
of capital stock, Voting Debt or other voting secunties of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary; and (3) no 
options, warrants, calls, nghts (mcludmg preemptive rights), commitments or agreements to which 
Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary is a party or by which 1t is bound in any case obligating Chateau or 
any Chateau Subsidiary to issue, deliver, sell, purchase, redeem or acqmre, or cause to be issued, 
delivered, sold, purchased, redeemed or acquired, additional shares of capital stock, Voting Debt or other 
voting securities of Chateau or of any Chateau Subsidiary, or obligating Chateau or any Chateau 
Subsidiary to grant, extend or enter into any such option, warrant, call, right, commitment or agreement. 

(B) Except for the Transaction Documents (as defined herein), there are not 
any stockholder agreements, voting trusts or other agreements or understandings to which Chateau or any 
Chateau Subsidiary is a party or by which it is bound relating to the voting of any shares of capital stock 
of Chateau or partnership mterests m Chateau OP. Except as set forth in the applicable organizational 
documents of any Chateau Subsidiary or as imposed and required by lenders in connection with 
bankruptcy remote or special purpose entities that are Subsidiaries, there are no restrictions on Chateau's 
ability to vote the eqmty mterests of any of the Chateau Subsidiaries. 

(C) Except as set forth m Section 2. 1 ( c )(ii1)(C) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter, no holder of securities in Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary has any right to have such securities 
registered by Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary, as the case may be. 

(D) Except as set forth in Section2.l(c)(iii)(D) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter, there are not any Chateau Subsidiaries in which any officer or director of Chateau or any Chateau 
Subsidiary owns any capital stock or other securities. Section 2. l(c)(in)(D) of the Chateau Disclosure 
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Letter sets forth a true, accurate and complete list of: (1) the name of any such officer or director owning 
capital stock or other securities m any Chateau Subsidiary, (2) the name of the entity or entities in which 
such officer or director o'WJ'ls an interest, and (3) the type and amount of capital stock or other securities 
owned by such officer or director m such entities. There are no agreements or understandings between 
Chateau or any Chateau Subs1d1ary and any Person hsted in Section 2. l(c)(i1i)(D) of the Chateau 
Disclosure Letter that could cause such Person to be treated as holding any capital stock or security in 
Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary as an agent for, or nommee of, Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary. 

(d) Authority: No V10lations: Consents and Approval; OP Umts. 

(i) The Board of Directors of Chateau has unanimously approved and declared 
advisable the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents and has 
directed that the Mergers be submitted for consideration at a special meetmg of the Chateau stockholders 
(the "Chateau Stockholder Meetmg") and resolved to recommend that the stockholders of Chateau vote in 
favor of this Agreement and the approval of the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated hereby 
and by the other Transaction Documents and mclude such recommendation in the Proxy Statement. 
Chateau and ROC, in their capacity as general partners of Chateau OP, have approved and declared 
advisable this Agreement, the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated hereby and by the 
Transaction Documents and have been authorized to seek the written consents and approvals of the OP 
Unit Holders to this Agreement, the Partnership Merger and the other transactions and matters 
contemplated hereby, and recommend to the OP Unit Holders approval of such matters, and to include 
such recommendation in the Partner Solicitation Materials. Chateau has all requisite power and authority 
to enter into this Agreement and all other documents to be executed by Chateau in connection with the 
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (each, a "Transaction Document" and collectively, the 
"Transaction Documents") and, subject, with respect to the consummation of the Merger, to receipt of the 
Chateau Stockholder Approval (as defined herein), to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby 
and thereby. Chateau OP has the requisite hmited partnership power and authority to enter into this 
Agreement and, subject to, with respect to the Partnership Merger, the matters specified m Section 2.l(d) 
of the Chateau Disclosure Letter and the Chateau Partner Approval (as defined herein), to consummate 
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Each Chateau Subsidiary that is a party to any 
Transaction Document has all reqws1te power and authority to enter mto such Transaction Document and 
to consummate the transactions contemplated thereby. The execution and dehvery of the Transaction 
Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby have been duly 
authorized by all necessary action on the part of Chateau and each applicable Chateau Subsidiary, subject, 
with respect to the consummation of the Merger, to the matters specified in Section 2.l(d) of the Chateau 
Disclosure Letter and receipt of the Chateau Stockholder Approval, and, with respect to the 
consummation of the Partnership Merger, to receipt of the Chateau Partner Approval. The Transaction 
Documents have been duly executed and delivered by Chateau and each applicable Chateau Subsidiary 
and, subJect, wtth respect to the consummat10n of the Merger, to receipt of the Chateau Stockholder 
Approval and with respect to the consummation of the Partnership Merger, to the matters specified in 
Section 2. l(d) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter and receipt of the Chateau Partner Approval, and 
assuming the Transaction Documents to which Purchaser, the Merger Sub and the Partnership Merger 
Sub are parties constitute the valid and binding obligation of Purchaser, the Merger Sub and the 
Partnership Merger Sub, enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject, as to enforceability, to 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other Laws of general applicability relating to or 
affecting creditors' rights and to general pnnciples of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is 
considered m a proceeding in equity or at Law). 

(1i) Except as set forth in Section 2. l(d)(ii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, the 
execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents by Chateau or each applicable Chateau Subsidiary 
does not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, and compliance with 

-12-



the provisions hereof or thereof, will not, conflict with, or result in any violat10n of, or default (with or 
without notice or lapse of time, or both) under, or give rise to a right of termmation, cancellation or 
acceleration of any matenal obliganon, or give rise to a right of purchase under, result m the creation of 
any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries under, require 
the consent or approval of any thud party or otherwise result m a material detriment or default to Chateau 
or any of the Chateau Subs1dianes under, any provision of (A) the Chateau Charter or the Chateau By­
laws or any provision of the comparable charter or organizational documents of any of the Chateau 
Subsidiaries, (B) any Material Contract (as defined herein) (it being understood that no representation is 
being given as to whether the Surviving Company and the Chateau Subsidiaries will be in compliance 
with any financial covenants contained therein following the Merger), or (C) assuming the consents, 
approvals, authorizations or penruts and filings or notifications referred to in Section 2. l(d)(iii) are duly 
and timely obtained or made and the Chateau Stockholder Approval has been obtained, any judgment, 
order, decree, statute, Law, ordinance, rule or regulation applicable to Chateau or any of the Chateau 
Subsidiaries, or any of their respective properties or assets, other than, in the case of clauses (B) or (C), 
any such conflicts, violations, defaults, rights, Liens or detriments that, mdividually or in the aggregate, 
would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Matenal Adverse Effect. 

(Iii) Except as set forth in Section 2. l(d)(iii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, no 
consent, approval, order or authonzation of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or pennit from any 
Governmental Entity, 1s required by or with respect to Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries in 
connection with the execut10n and dehvery of the Transaction Documents by Chateau or each of the 
applicable Chateau Subsidiaries or the consummation by Chateau or the applicable Chateau Subsidiaries 
of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, except for: (A) the filing with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (the "SEC") of (1) (a) a proxy statement in prehminary and definitive form 
relating to the Chateau Stockholder Meetmg held in connection with the Merger (the "Proxy Statement") 
or (b) other documents otherwise reqmred in connectrnn with the transactions contemplated hereby and 
(2) such reports under Section 13(a) of the Secw,ttes Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange 
Act"), and such other compliance with the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder, as may 
be required in connection with the Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby or 
thereby; (B) the filing of the Articles of Merger with, and the acceptance for record of the Articles of 
Merger by, the Department; (C) such filings and approvals as may be required by any applicable state 
takeover Laws or Environmental Laws (as defined herein) as more specifically described in 
Section 2.l(d)(iii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter; and (D) any such consent, approval, order, 
authorization, registration, declarat10n, filing or permit that the failure to obtain or make (1) individually 
or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect or 
(2) individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to, materially imparr the ability of 
Chateau to perform its obligations hereunder or prevent or delay in any material respect the 
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

(e) SEC Documents. Chateau and Chateau OP have made available to Purchaser (by public 
filing with the SEC or otherwise) a true and complete copy of each report, schedule, registration statement 
and definitive proxy statement filed by either Chateau or Chateau OP with the SEC since January 1, 2000 
(the "Chateau SEC Documents"). As of their respective dates, the Chateau SEC Documents complied in 
all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities 
Act"), or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder 
applicable to such Chateau SEC Documents and none of the Chateau SEC Documents contained any 
untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or 
necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
nusleading, except to the extent such statements have been modified or superseded by later Chateau SEC 
Documents filed and publicly available prior to the date of this Agreement. The consolidated financial 
statements of Chateau and Chateau OP included m the Chateau SEC Documents complied in all material 
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respects with the applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC 
with respect thereto, have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
("GAAP") applied on a consistent basis during the periods involved (except as may be mdicated in the 
notes thereto, or, in the case of the unaudited statements, as permitted by Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X 
under the Exchange Act) and fairly presented, in accordance with applicable requirements of GAAP and 
the applicable rules and regulations of the SEC (subject, m the case of the unaudited statements, to 
normal, recurring adjustments, none ofwh1ch are material), the consolidated financial position of Chateau 
and the Chateau Subsidianes, taken as a whole, as of their respective dates and the consolidated 
statements of mcome and the consohdated cash flows of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries for the 
periods presented therein. Other than Chateau and Chateau OP, no other Chateau Subsidiary is required 
to make any filing with the SEC. 

(f) Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Except as disclosed or reflected in the Chateau 
SEC Documents filed with the SEC pnor to the date ofth1s Agreement or as disclosed m Section 2.l(f) of 
the Chateau Disclosure Letter, since March 31, 2003, there has not been: (1) (A) any declaration, setting 
aside or payment of any dividend or other distribution (whether in cash, stock or property) with respect to 
any of Chateau's capital stock; (B) any amendment of any term of any outstanding equity security of 
Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary; (C) any repurchase, redemption or other acquisition by Chateau or 
any Chateau Subsidiary of any outstanding shares of capital stock or other equity securities of, or other 
ownership mterests in, Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary; or (D) any change m any method of 
accounting or accountmg practice or any tax method, practice or election by Chateau or any Chateau 
Subsidiary; or (ii) any split, combination or reclassification of any of Chateau's capital stock or any 
issuance or the authonzatlon of any issuance of any other secunt1es m respect of, in lieu of or in 
substitution for, or giving the right to acquire by exchange or exercise, shares of its capital stock or any 
issuance of an ownership mterest in, any Chateau Subsidiary. Except as disclosed in the Chateau SEC 
Documents filed prior to the date hereof, or as disclosed in Section 2.1 (f) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter, from March 31, 2003, (i) Chateau and the Chateau Subsidianes have conducted their businesses in 
the ordinary course consistent with past practice, (ii) there has not been any Chateau Material Adverse 
Effect, and (ni) except as disclosed m the Chateau Disclosure Letter, neither Chateau nor any Chateau 
Subsidiary has taken any of the actions set forth in Section 3 .1 (b ). 

(g) No Undisclosed Matenal Liabilities. Except as disclosed in the Chateau SEC 
Documents, or as set forth m Section 2.1 (g) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, there are no liabilities or 
obligations of Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries, whether (x) accrued, contingent, absolute or 
determmed or (y) otherwise required by GAAP to be set forth on a balance sheet of Chateau or Chateau 
OP, other than: (i) liabilities adequately proVIded for on the balance sheet of Chateau and Chateau OP 
dated as of March 31, 2003 (mcludmg the notes thereto), or (ii) liabilities mcurred in the ordinary course 
of busmess subsequent to March 31, 2003 that would not be or would not reasonably be expected to be a 
Chateau Material Adverse Effect. 

(h) No Default. Except as set forth m Section 2. l(h) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, 
neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidianes is m default or v10lation (and no event has occurred 
which, with notice or the lapse of time or both, would constitute a default or violation) of, and no notice 
of any default or acceleration of Indebtedness has been received from any lender in connection with, any 
term, cond1t1on or provision of (1) the Chateau Charter or the Chateau By-laws or the comparable charter 
or organizational documents of any of the Chateau Subsidiaries, (ii) any Material Contract (as defined 
herein), or (iii) any order, writ, mjunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation applicable to Chateau or any 
of the Chateau Subsidianes, except in the case of (m) for defaults or v10lations which, individually or m 
the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect. Section 
2.1 (h) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter includes an explanation of the nature of any such default disclosed 
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therein, penalties associated therewith and actions taken by Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary, if any, to 
cure or renegotiate said contracts. 

(i) Compliance with Applicable Laws. Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries hold all 
certificates, permits, licenses, vanances (including building permits and certificates of occupancy), 
exemptions, orders, franchises and approvals of all Governmental Entities necessary for the lawful 
conduct of their respective businesses and the occupancy and operation of the Chateau Properties (the 
"Chateau Permits"), except where the failure so to hold such Chateau Permits, mdividually or in the 
aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Matenal Adverse Effect. Chateau and the 
Chateau Subsidiaries are m compliance with the terms of the Chateau Permits, except where the failure to 
so comply, individually or m the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material 
Adverse Effect. Except as disclosed m the Chateau SEC Documents, the businesses of Chateau and the 
Chateau Subsidiaries are not bemg conducted in v10lation of any Law, except for violations which, 
individually or m the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse 
Effect. 

(J) Litigation. Except as disclosed in the Chateau SEC Documents or as set forth m 
Section 2.1 (i) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter and except for routine litigation arising from the ordinary 
course of business of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries which are adequately covered by insurance 
and which, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material 
Adverse Effect, there ts no suit, claim, investigation, action or other proceedmg (including any mortgage 
foreclosure proceeding) pendmg or, to the Knowledge (as defined herein) of Chateau, threatened against 
or affecting or involving Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary or any of the Chateau Properties that, 
individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse 
Effect. Except as disclosed in the Chateau SEC Documents or m Section 2. l(i) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter, neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidianes, nor any of their respective properties or 
assets, is subJect to any order, writ, Judgment, injunction, decree, determmation or award which has or is 
reasonably ltkely to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect. 

(k) Taxes. 

(i) Each of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries has timely filed all Tax Returns 
(as defined herein) required to be filed by it (after giving effect to any filing extension properly granted by 
a Governmental Entity having authonty to do so), except where the failure to file would not individually 
or m the aggregate be material to Chateau. Each such Tax Return 1s accurate and complete in all material 
respects. Chateau and each Chateau Subsidiary has paid ( or Chateau has paid on its behalf), all Taxes that 
are shown as due and payable on such Tax Returns. All matenal Taxes which Chateau or the Chateau 
Subsidiaries are required by Law to withhold or collect, including Taxes reqmred to have been withheld 
in connection with amounts paid or owmg to any employee, independent contractor, creditor, stockholder 
or other third party and sales, gross receipts and use taxes, have been duly withheld or collected and, to 
the extent required, have been paid over to the proper Governmental Entities. The most recent financial 
statements contained in the Chateau SEC Documents filed with the SEC prior to the date of this 
Agreement reflect an adequate reserve for all material Taxes payable by Chateau and the Chateau 
Subsidianes for all taxable penods and portions thereof through the date of such financial statements. 
Chateau and each Chateau Subsidiary has estabhshed (and until the Closing Date shall continue to 
establish and mamtam) on its books and records reserves that are adequate for the payment of all Taxes 
not yet due and payable. Smee December 31, 1997, Chateau has mcurred no liability for any material 
Taxes under Sections 857(b), 860(c) or 4981 of the Code, m.s Notice 88-19, Treasury Regulation 
Section l .337(d)-5, or Treasury Regulation Section l.337(d)-6 including any material Tax arising from a 
prohibited transaction described in Section 857(b)(6) of the Code, and neither Chateau nor any of the 
Chateau Subsidiaries has mcurred any matenal liability for Taxes other than in the ordinary course of 
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business other than transfer or similar Taxes arising in connection with the sales of property. No event 
has occurred, and no condition or circumstance exists, which presents a risk that any material Tax 
described in the precedmg sentence will be imposed on Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary. No 
deficiencies for any Taxes have been asserted or assessed in writing (or to the Knowledge of Chateau or 
any Chateau Subsidiary, proposed) against Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries, including claims 
by any taxmg authority in a Jurisdiction where Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary does not file Tax 
Returns but in which any of them 1s or may be subject to taxat10n, which individually or in the aggregate 
would be material, and no requests for waivers of the time to assess any such Taxes have been granted 
and remam in effect or are pending. There are no Liens for Taxes upon the assets of Chateau or the 
Chateau Subs1dianes except for statutory Liens for Taxes not yet due. 

(ii) Chateau (A) for all taxable periods since its inception and ending at the Effective 
Time, Chateau has been subject to taxation as a real estate investment trust (a "REIT") within the 
meaning of the Code and has satisfied the requirements to qualify as a REIT for all such years, (B) has 
operated, and intends to contmue to operate, consistent with the requirements for qualification and 
taxation as a REIT through the Effective Time, and (C) has not taken or omitted to take any action which 
could reasonably be expected to result m a loss of its status as a REIT, and no challenge to Chateau's 
status as REIT is pending, or to Chateau's Knowledge, is or has been threatened. Each Chateau 
Subsidiary which is a partnership, 3omt venture or !united habihty company has since its acquisition by 
Chateau been classified for federal income tax purposes as a partnership or disregarded entity and not as a 
corporation or an association taxable as a corporation, or a "publicly traded partnership" within the 
meaning of Section 7704(b) of the Code. Neither Chateau nor any Chateau Subsidiary holds any asset (x) 
the disposition of which would be subject to rules similar to Section 1374 of the Code as announced in 
IRS Notice 88~19 or Treasury Regulation Section 1.337(d)-5 or Treasury Regulation Section l.337(d)-6, 
(y) that is subject to a consent filed pursuant to Section 34l(f) of the Code and the regulations thereunder. 
Each Subsidiary of Chateau that is or 1s taxed as a corporation or is treated as an association taxed as a 
corporation for federal mcome tax purposes and that is owned directly or indirectly by Chateau or ROC is 
listed in Section 2.1 (k)(ii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter and, except as set forth in Section 2.1 (k)(ii) of 
the Chateau Disclosure Letter, is either a "qualified REIT subsidiary" within the meaning of Section 
856(i)(2) of the Code or a "taxable REIT subsidiary" within the meaning of Section 856(1)(1) of the Code. 
Each subsidiary of Chateau that is a "taxable REIT subsidiary" within the meaning of Section 856(1)(1) of 
the Code is set forth m Section 2.1 (k)(ii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter. Each subsidiary of Chateau 
that is a "qualified REIT subsidiary" within the meaning of Section 856(i)(2) of the Code is set forth in 
Section 2. l(k)(ii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter. As of the Effective Time, each subsidiary of Chateau 
that 1s a "qualified REIT subsidiary" w1thm the meanmg of Section 856(i)(2) of the Code shall have been 
merged or otherwise converted mto a hm1ted liability company that is treated as a disregarded entity for 
federal income tax purposes. Chateau is not a foreign person withm the meaning of Section 1445(b)(2) of 
the Code. 

(iii) Neither Chateau nor ROC has any earnings and profits attnbutable to Chateau or 
any other corporation m any non-REIT year withm the meaning of Section 857 of the Code. Neither 
Chateau nor any of its Subsidiaries has made any election, and 1s not required, to treat any of its assets or 
the assets of any Subsidiary as owned by another person for tax purposes ( other than by reason of a 
Subsidiary being a "qualified REIT subsidiary" or a "disregarded entity" for federal income tax purposes 
and any comparable provision of state, local or foreign law). 

(iv) Except as set forth m Section 2.1 (k)(1v) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, neither 
Chateau nor the Chateau Subsidiaries have made any payments, are obligated to make any payments, or 
are parties to an agreement that could obligate them to make any payments that will not be deductible 
under Section 280G of the Code. Chateau and the Chateau Subsidianes have disclosed to the IRS all 
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positions taken on thetr federal income Tax Returns which could give rise to a substantial understatement 
of Tax under Section 6662 of the Code. 

(v) Except as set forth in Section 2.l(k)(v) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, neither 
Chateau nor any of its Subs1d1aries has received or is subject to any written ruling of a taxing authority 
related to Taxes or has entered mto any written and legally binding agreement with a taxing authority 
relating to Taxes. 

(vi) Other than the Limited Partner Tax Agreements listed on Section 2.l(k)(vi) of 
the Chateau Disclosure Letter, neither Chateau nor any of its Subsidiaries (a) 1s a party to or is otherwise 
subject to any Tax allocation or shanng agreement, or (b) has any liability for Taxes of another person 
under law, by contract or otherwise except for withholding Taxes incurred in the ordinary course of 
business that have been properly withheld but are not yet required to be deposited with a Tax authonty. 

(VIi) Neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidiaries has entered into or is 
subject, directly or indirectly, to any Limited Partner Tax Agreements (as defined herein) other than those 
that are disclosed m Section 2.1 (k)(vii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, true and correct copies of which 
have been provided to Purchaser and Parent. Chateau and each of its Subsidiaries have complied with all 
material terms of the Limited Partner Tax Agreements. Other than the restnctions on the Chateau 
Properties listed m Section 2.1 (k)(vu) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter which are imposed by those 
Lmuted Partner Tax Agreements hsted as items I, I(A), II, ill and IV in said Section 2. l(k)(vii) of the 
Chateau Disclosure Letter, there are no restnctlons on the sale, exchange, or other disposition, financing 
or other transactions applicable to any Chateau Properties or with respect to any of their respective assets 
and no obligations to mamtain any particular amounts of debt. 

(vm) None of Chateau or any of its Subsidiaries has distributed stock of another 
person, or has had 1ts stock distributed by another person, in a transaction that was purported or intended 
to be governed in whole or m part by Code Section 355. 

(1x) This Agreement shall constitute Chateau's plan of hquidation within the meaning 
of Section 562(b)(l) of the Code and Chateau's Board of Directors pnor to that date on which the 
Effective Time of the Merger occurs, will adopt this Agreement as such a plan of liquidation. 

(x) Except as set forth in Section 2. l(k)(x) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, Chateau 
has the right to make or to require, and, after the Effective Time will contmue to have the right to make or 
to reqmre, each Chateau Subsidiary that is subject to federal income tax as a partnership to make, in the 
manner provided in Section 1.754-l(b) of the Treasury Regulations, an election under Section 754 of the 
Code (and any corresponding elections under state or local tax law) to adjust the basis of its property as 
provided in Sections 734(b) and 743(b) of the Code. 

(xi) To the Knowledge of Chateau as of the Closmg Date, neither Chateau nor any 
Chateau Subsidiary is a party to any understanding or arrangement described in Section 611 l(c), Section 
611 l(d) or Section 6662(d)(2)(C)(m) of the Code, or has "participated" in a "potentially abusive tax 
shelter" within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Sect10n 1.6011-4 (without regard to Section (b)(3) 
thereof). 

(xii) All mterests m Chateau OP and in each Chateau Subsidiary which is a 
partnership, joint venture or limited liabihty company were issued m a transaction or transactions that 
were not required to be registered under the Securiues Act (as defined herem). 
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(xiii) The representations specified in tlus Section 2.1 (k) are subject, as of the date 
hereof (but not as of the Closing Date), to the matters set forth in Section 2.l{k)(xiii) of the Chateau 
Disclosure Letter. 

(1) ERISA: Pension and Benefit Plans. 

(i) All "employee pension benefit plans," as defined in Section 3(2) of the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), maintained or contributed to by 
Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries or any trade OT business (whether OT not incorporated) which 
is under common control, or which is treated as a single employer, with Chateau under Section 414(b), 
(c), (m) or (o) of the Code (a "Chateau ERISA Affihate") (the "Chateau Pension Plans") intended to 
qualify under Section 401(a) of the Code have been determined by the IRS to be so qualified and such 
determination has not been modified, revoked or lirmted, and, to the Knowledge of Chateau as of the 
Closing Date, there are no existing circumstances and no events have occurred that could adversely affect 
the qualified status of any Chateau Pension Plan or its related trust. 

(ii) Neither Chateau nor any Chateau ERISA Affiliate or Chateau Subsidiary 
currently sponsors, contributes to, maintains or has liability (whether contingent or otherwise) under (A) a 
"mult1employer plan" (as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA) or (B) an employee benefit plan 
subject to Part 3 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA, to Section 412 or 4971 of the Code, or to Title IV of 
BRISA. . 

(iii) Each Chateau Employee Benefit Plan (as defined herein), related trust (or other 
funding or financing arrangement, 1f applicable) and all amendments thereto are listed in 
Section 2.1(1)(1ii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, true and complete copies of which have been made 
available to Purchaser, as have the most recent summary plan descriptions and material modifications 
thereto, Form 5500s and, with respect to any Chateau Employee Benefit Plan intended to be qualified 
pursuant to Section 401 (a) of the Code, a current determination letter. Except as specifically provided in 
the foregoing documents made available to Purchaser, there are no amendments to any Chateau Employee 
Benefit Plan that have been adopted or approved nor has Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary undertaken 
to make any such amendments or to adopt or approve any new Chateau Employee Benefit Plan. 

(iv) Neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidianes has received any claim or 
notice that any Chateau Employee Benefit Plan is not m comphance with, and each Chateau Employee 
Benefit Plan is in fact in material compliance with, its terms and all applicable Laws, regulations, rulings 
and other authority issued thereunder and all other applicable governmental Laws, regulations and orders, 
and prohibited transaction exemptions, including the requirements of ERISA and all Tax rules for which 
favorable Tax treatment is mtended. 

(v) There are no actions, disputes, smts, claims, arbitration or legal, administrative or 
other proceeding or governmental mvestigation (other than routine claims for benefits) pending (or, to the 
Knowledge of Chateau, threatened) allegmg any breach of the terms of any Chateau Employee Benefit 
Plan or of any fiduciary duties thereunder or violation of any applicable Law with respect to any such 
plan. 

(vi) All contributions, premiums and other payments required by Law or any Chateau 
Employee Benefit Plan or applicable collective bargaimng agreement or other contractual undertaking, to 
have been made under any such plan to any fund, trust or account established thereunder or in connection 
therewith have been made by the due date thereof. 

-18-



(vii) Each Employee Benefit Plan that is an employee welfare benefit plan under 
Section 3(1) of ERISA 1s either funded through an insurance company contract and is not a "welfare 
benefit fund" with the meaning of Section 419 of the Code or 1s unfunded. Chateau and the Chateau 
Subsidiaries have no liability for life, health, medical or other welfare benefits to former employees or 
beneficiaries or dependents thereof, except for health continuation coverage as required by Section 4980B 
of the Code or Part 6 of Title I ofERISA. 

(viii) Each individual who renders services to Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary who 
is classified by Chateau or by such Chateau Subsidiary, as applicable, as having the status of an 
independent contractor or other non-employee status for any purpose (including for purposes of taxation 
and tax reportmg and under Chateau Employee Benefit Plans) is properly so characterized. 

(1x) All individual employment, termmation, severance, change in control, retention 
bonus, post-employment and other compensation agreements, arrangements and plans existing pnor to the 
execution of this Agreement or which will exist prior to the Closing, which are between Chateau or a 
Chateau Subsidiary and any current or former director, officer or employee thereof, including the name 
and title of such current or former director, officer or employee, and the type of agreement are listed in 
Section 2.1(1)(1x) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter (collectively, the "Chateau Severance Agreements"). 

(m) Labor and Employment Matters. 

(i) Neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidiaries is a party to any collective 
bargaining agreement or other current labor agreement with any labor union or organization, and there is 
no question involving current umon representation of employees of Chateau or any of the Chateau 
Subsidiaries, nor does Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries know of any activity or proceeding of 
any labor organization ( or representative thereof) or employee group (or representative thereof) to 
organize any such employees. 

(ii) Except as would not be reasonably expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse 
Effect, (A) there is no unfair labor practice charge or grievance arising out of a collective bargaining 
agreement or other grievance procedure pending, or, to the Knowledge of Chateau or any of the Chateau 
Subsidiaries, threatened agamst Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries, and (B) each of Chateau and 
the Chateau Subsidianes ism compliance with all applicable Laws and collective bargaining agreements 
respectmg employment and employment practices, terms and conditions of employment, wages and hours 
and occupational safety and health. 

(iii) Except as set forth m Section 2. l(m)(iii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter or as 
would not be reasonably expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect, there is no complaint, 
lawsuit or proceeding in any forum by or on behalf of any present or former employee, any applicant for 
employment or any classes of the foregoing, alleging breach of any express or implied contract of 
employment, any Law or regulation govemmg employment or the termmation thereof or other 
discriminatory, wrongful or tortuous conduct in connection with the employment relationship pending, or, 
to the Knowledge of Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries, threatened against Chateau or any of the 
Chateau Subsidiaries. 

(1v) There is no stnke, slowdown, work stoppage or lockout pending, or, to the 
Knowledge of Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries, threatened, against or mvolving Chateau or 
any of the Chateau Subsidiaries. 

(v) Except as set forth in Section 2.1 (m)(v) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, neither 
the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated 
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hereby will ( either alone or in conJunct1on with any other event) result in, or cause the accelerated 
vesting, funding or delivery of, or increase the amount or value of, any payment or benefit to any 
employee, officer or chrector of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary, or result in any limitation on the right 
of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary to amend, merge, tenninate or receive a reversion of assets from 
any Chateau Employee Benefit Plan. The maximum aggregate payments and benefits (excluding 
amounts payable pursuant to Section 1. 7( d) and excludmg amounts payable pursuant to the Chateau 
Communities, Inc Corporate Transition Guidelines, a true, correct and complete copy of which has 
previously been provided to Purchaser) that could become due under the Chateau Severance Agreements 
are $9 million. Section 2.l(m)(v) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter sets forth (A) the maximum cash 
amount that could be payable (excluding amounts payable pursuant to Section l.7(d) and any gross-up 
amounts payable with respect to any "excess parachute payments" (as defined under Section 280G of the 
Code) under the Chateau Severance Agreements) as a result of the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby to each individual who is party 
to an indivtdual Chateau Severance Agreement or who is a participant in the Chateau Communities Inc. 
Change in Control Plan for Certain Executive Employees and (B) the maximum amount of assets deferred 
under the CP Limited Top Hat Plan that could become distributable as a result of the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

(n) Intangible Property. Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries own, possess or have 
adequate nghts to use all trademarks, trade names, patents, service marks, brand marks, brand names, 
computer programs, databases, mdustnal designs and copyrights necessary for the operation of the 
businesses of each of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Chateau Intangible 
Property"), except where the failure to possess or have adequate rights to use such properties, individually 
or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect. All of 
the Chateau Intangible Property is owned or licensed by Chateau or the Chateau Subsidiaries free and 
clear of any and all Liens, except those that, individually or m the aggregate, would not reasonably be 
expected to have a Chateau Matenal Adverse Effect, and neither Chateau nor any such Chateau 
Subsidiary has forfeited or otherwise relinquished any Chateau Intangible Property which forfeiture has 
resulted in, individually or in the aggregate, or would reasonably be expected to result in a Chateau 
Material Adverse Effect. To the Knowledge of Chateau, the use of Chateau Intangible Property by 
Chateau or the Chateau Subsidiaries does not conflict with, infringe upon, violate or interfere with or 
constitute an appropriation of any nght, title, interest or goodwill, including any mteUectual property 
right, trademark, trade name, patent, service mark, brand mark, brand name, computer program, database, 
industrial design, copyright or any pending apphcatJon therefor, of any other Person, and there have been 
no claims made, and neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidiaries has received any notice of any 
claim or otherwise knows that any of the Chateau Intangible Property is mvalid or conflicts with the 
asserted nghts of any other Person or has not been used or enforced or has failed to have been used or 
enforced in a manner that would result in the abandonment, cancellation or unenforceability of any of the 
Chateau Intangible Property, except for any such conflict, mfringement, vtolation, interference, claim, 
invahdity, abandonment, cancellatton or unenforceability that, individually or in the aggregate, would not 
reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Matenal Adverse Effect. 

(o) Environmental Matters. For purposes of this Agreement, (x) "Environmental Law" 
means any Law of any Governmental Entity relating to pollution, human health, safety or protection of 
the environment or natural resources, including the federal Comprehensive Envtronmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 ("CERCLA") and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
of 1976, (y) "Hazardous Material" means (A) any petroleum or petroleum products, radioactive materials, 
asbestos-containing matenals, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, and transformers and other equipment 
that contain dielectric fluid contaming greater than 50 parts per milhon polychlorinated biphenyls 
("PCBs"); and (B) any chemicals, matenals, substances or wastes which are defined as or included in the 
definition of "hazardous substances," "hazardous wastes," "hazardous materials," "extremely hazardous 
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wastes," "restncted hazardous wastes," "toxic substances," "toxic pollutants" or words of similar import, 
under any applicable Environmental Law, and (z) "Environmental Claims" means all actions, suits, 
demands, demand letters, claims, hens, notices of noncompliance or vtolation, notices of liability or 
potential liability, investigations, proceedings, consent orders or consent agreements relating to any 
Environmental Law, any EnVlronmental Permit or the Release of any Hazardous Materials. To the 
Knowledge of Chateau and Chateau OP, except as disclosed in Section 2. l(o) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter and except as would not have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect: 

(1) Neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subs1d1aries has received written notice 
that any administrative or compliance order has been issued that is still m effect, any complaint has been 
filed that remains unresolved, any penalty has been assessed that has not been paid or any investigation or 
review 1s pending or, threatened by any Governmental Entity with respect to any alleged failure by 
Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary to have any perm.it, approval, identification number, hcense or other 
authorization required under any applicable EnVlronmental Law (an "Environmental Permit") or with 
respect to any treatment, storage, recycling, transportation, disposal or "release" (as defined in 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9601 (22) ("Release")) by Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary of any Hazardous Material in violation of 
any Environmental Law. 

(ii) (A) Except in compliance with applicable Envtronrnental Laws there are no 
asbestos-containing materials present on any property owned or operated by Chateau or any Chateau 
Subsidiary, (B) there are no regulated levels of PCBs present on any property owned or operated by 
Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary, and (C) there are no underground storage tanks, actlve or abandoned, 
used for the storage of Hazardous Matenals currently present on any property owned or operated by 
Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary. 

(iit) Neither Chateau nor any Chateau Subsidiary has received written or, to the 
knowledge of Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries, oral notice of a claim, that has not been 
resolved, (A) to the effect that it 1s liable to a third party, including a Governmental Entity, as a result of a 
Release of a Hazardous Matenal into the environment in v10lation of any Environmental Law at any 
property currently or formerly owned or operated by Chateau or a Chateau Subsidiary, (B) asserting a 
violation of applicable EnV1ronmental Laws relating to any of the Chateau Properhes, or (C) asserting that 
Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries or the operation or condition of any of the Chateau Properties 
is m violation of any Envrronmental Law. 

(1v) No property now owned or operated by Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary is 
listed on the National Prionties List promulgated pursuant to CERCLA or on any similar state list of sites 
where such listing requires active mvest1gation or clean-up. 

(v) Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries are in compliance with all applicable 
Environmental Laws and all Envtronmental Permits. 

(Vi) Neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subs1d1aries have Released Hazardous 
Materials on any of the Chateau Properties, except in compliance with applicable Environmental Laws; 
and there is no condition (x) at any Chateau Property or (y) to the Knowledge of Chateau and the Chateau 
Subsidiaries, caused by Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries at any real property formerly owned, 
leased, subleased, licensed, managed, occupied or operated by Chateau or any of the Chateau 
Subs1d1aries, that m the case of either (x) or (y) is in violation of Environmental Laws or would 
reasonably be expected to give nse to an Environmental Claim. 
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(vii) There are no Environmental Claims pending, or to the Knowledge of Chateau or 
the Chateau Subsidianes threatened, against Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries or any of the 
Chateau Properties. 

(viii) Neither Chateau nor any Chateau Subsidiary currently has a duty under any 
applicable Environmental Law to place any restriction relatmg to the presence of Hazardous Material at 
any Chateau Property. 

(p) Properties. 

(1) (A) Colony Cove, located in Sarasota, Florida, and The Colony, located in Palm 
Spnngs, California, are the only real properties in which Chateau or a Chateau Subsidiary holds a 
leasehold interest, and except as hsted m Section 2.1 (p )(i)(A) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, Chateau 
or a Chateau Subsidiary owns good and marketable fee simple or leasehold title to each of the real 
properties (including any and all improvements located on such properties) reflected on the most recent 
balance sheet of Chateau or Chateau OP included in the Chateau SEC Documents and as identified in 
Section 2.l(p)(i)(A) of the Chateau D1sclosure Letter (each, a "Chateau Property" and collectively, the 
"Chateau Properties"), which are all of the real estate properties owned or leased by Chateau and the 
Chateau Subsidiaries, free and clear of Liens, easements, nghts of way, rights of first refusal, covenants, 
conditions, restnctions, title defects, wntten agreements, Laws, ordinances and regulations affecting 
building use or occupancy (includmg zoning regulations and building codes), or reservations of an 
interest m title (collect1vely, "Chateau Property Restrictions") except for (1) debt and other matters 
identified on Section 2.l(p)(i)(A)(l) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, (2) inchoate Liens imposed for 
construction work m progress or otherwise incurred m the ordinary course of business for amounts not yet 
delinquent or which are bemg contested m good faith by appropriate proceedings and, in each case, with 
respect to which adequate reserves or other appropriate provisions are bemg mamtained by Chateau or a 
Chateau Subsidiary, (3) mechanics' , workmen' s and repairmen's Liens (other than inchoate Liens for 
work in progress) which have heretofore been bonded or insured, (4) Chateau Property Restrictions 
imposed or promulgated by Law or by any Governmental Entity which are customary and typical for 
similar properties and all matters djsclosed on the existing title policies identified in Section 2.l(p)(i)(B) 
of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, and (5) real estate Taxes and special assessments that are not yet 
delinquent or that are bemg contested in good faith by appropnate proceedings and, in each case, with 
respect to which adequate reserves or other appropriate provis10ns are bemg mamtained by Chateau or a 
Chateau Subsidiary. To the Knowledge of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries, none of the matters 
described in clauses (2) through (5) m the 1mmed1ately preceding sentence (includmg, without limitation, 
matters disclosed on any existmg title pohcies identified in Section 2.l(p)(i)(A) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter) has or would reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Chateau Material 
Adverse Effect; (B) except as hsted in Section 2. l(p)(i)(B) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter or as would 
not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Matenal Adverse Effect, neither Chateau nor any Chateau 
Subsidiary has received wntten notice to the effect that there are any (1) condemnation or rezonmg or 
proceedings or any utility service moratoriums or other moratoriums that are pending or, to the 
Knowledge of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries, threatened with respect to any material portion of 
any of the Chateau Properties or (2) zoning, buildmg or smular Laws or orders that are presently being 
violated or will be violated by the continued maintenance, operat10n or use of any buildings or other 
improvements on any of the Chateau Properties or by the contmued mamtenance, operation or use of the 
parking areas; and (C) except as listed in Section 2.l(p)(i)(C) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter or as 
would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect, neither Chateau nor any 
Choteau Subsidiary has received wntten notice that it is currently in default or violation of any Chateau 
Property Restnctions. 
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(ii) Except as listed m Section 2.l(p)(ii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter or, 
individually or in the aggregate, as would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse 
Effect, all properties currently under development or construction by Chateau or the Chateau Subsidiaries 
and all properties currently proposed for acqmsition, development or commencement of construction 
prior to the Effective Time by Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries are listed as such in Section 2.1 (p )(ii) 
of the Chateau Disclosure Letter. Except as listed m Section 2.l(p)(ii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter or 
as, individually or in the aggregate , would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material 
Adverse Effect, all executory agreements entered mto by Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries 
relating to the development or construction of real estate properties (other than agreements for 
architectural, engineering, planning, accounting, legal or other professional services or agreements for 
material or labor) are listed in Section 2.l(p)(n) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter. 

(iii) Section 2.l(p)(iii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter sets forth the rent roll for 
each of the Chateau Properties (the "Rent Roll") as of May 27, 2003 . Except as disclosed in 
Section 2.1 (p )(iii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, the information set forth in the Rent Roll is true, 
correct and complete m all material respects as of the date thereof. 

(iv) Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to 
have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect, no tenants or other third parties have been granted options to 
purchase or rights of first refusal which would require consent to, or be triggered by, the Merger. 

(v) Section 2. l(p)(v) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter contains a list of any unfunded 
capital improvements being conducted by Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary m excess of $100,000 at 
any one Property. 

(vi) Except as set forth m Section 2. l(p)(vi) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter or as 
would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect, the w,ater serving each 
Chateau Property is potable water furnished by the local municipality in which each such Chateau 
Property 1s located; provided, however, that if the water system is privately owned or operated, neither 
Chateau nor any Chateau Subsidiary has received any uncured written notice that there is a requirement 
that it be connected to the mumcipal, county or other public system serving such Chateau Property. 

(vii) Except as set forth m Section 2. l(p)(vii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter or as 
would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Matenal Adverse Effect, the sanitary sewer (waste 
removal) system for each Chateau Property is operated by the municipality in which each such Property is 
located, and neither Chateau nor any Chateau Subsidiary has received an uncured written notice that the 
sanitary sewer (waste removal) system is not in compliance with applicable laws and regulations; 
provided, however, that if any such system is privately owned or operated, neither Chateau nor any 
Chatea'tl Subsidiary has received any uncured notice that there 1s a requirement that it be connected to the 
municipal, county or other public system serving such Chateau Property. 

(viii) A reputable title msurance company has issued policies of title insurance insuring 
the fee simple or leasehold, as applicable, title of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries with respect to all 
of the Chateau Properties in amounts at least equal to the original cost thereof, and, to Chateau' s 
Knowledge, such policies are valid and in full force and effect and no claim has been made under any 
such policy. 

(ix) Except as disclosed in Section 2. l(p)(ix) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, or 
except as would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Material Adverse Effect, to the Knowledge 
of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries, no port10n of any Chateau Property lies in any flood plain or 
mcludes any wetlands or vegetation or species protected by any applicable laws. 
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(x) Except as would not reasonably be expected to have a Chateau Matenal Adverse 
Effect, Section 2.1 (p )(x) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter contains a complete and accurate list of all 
bmding commitments, letters of intent or sim.1lar written agreements made or entered into by Chateau or 
any of the Chateau Subs1d1aries as of the date hereof (x) to sell, mortgage, pledge or hypothecate all or 
any portion of any Chateau Property, or to otherwise enter mto a matenal transaction in respect of the 
ownership or financing of all or any port10n of any Chateau Property, or (y) to purchase or acquire an 
option, right of first refusal or similar right in respect of any real property or properties. 

(q) Insurance. Section 2.l(q) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter sets forth an msurance 
schedule of Chateau. Chateau and each of the Chateau Subsidiaries maintains insurance with financially 
responsible insurers in such amounts and covering such risks as are in accordance with normal industry 
practice for companies engaged the ownership and operation of manufactured housing communittes 
(taking into account the cost and availability of such insurance). Except as set forth in Section 2.l(q) of 
the Chateau Disclosure Letter, neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidiaries has received any 
written notice of cancellation or terrrunat10n with respect to any existing material insurance policy of 
Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries. 

(r) Opinion of Financial Advisor. The Board of Directors of Chateau has received the 
opinion of Goldman, Sachs & Co. ("Goldman. Sachs"), dated as of the date of this Agreement, to the 
effect that, as of such date, the Common Stock Merger Consideration is fair from a financial point of view 
to the holders of Chateau Common Stock, a copy of which opmion will promptly be made available to 
Purchaser after receipt by the Board of Directors of Chateau. 

(s) Vote Required; No Chateau Common Stock Appraisal Rights. The affirmative vote of 
the holders of two-thtrds of the outstanding shares of Chateau Common Stock (the "Chateau Stockholder 
Approval") and, except as provided in Section 2. l(d) to the Chateau Disclosure Letter, the approval by a 
maJonty in interest of the OP Umt Holders (the "Chateau Partner Approval"), and, unless the Series A 
Units are redeemed m the circumstance in which there shall be a Second Closing Date, the approval of 
two-thirds of the outstandmg Senes A Units, are the only vote and approval required to approve the 
Mergers and the other transacttons contemplated by the Transaction Documents. The holders of Chateau 
Common Stock are not entitled under applicable Law to appraisal, dissenters' or similar rights as a result 
of the Merger. 

(t) Beneficial Ownership of Chateau Common Stock. Neither Chateau nor the Chateau 
Subsidiaries "beneficially own" (as defined in Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act) any of 
the outstandmg Chateau Common Stock. 

(u) Brokers. Except for the fees and expenses payable to Goldman, Sachs (which fees have 
been disclosed m wntmg to Purchaser), no broker, investment banker or other Person is entitled to any 
broker's, finder's or other s1m1lar fee or cormmssion m connection with the transactions contemplated by 
the Transaction Documents based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Chateau. 

(v) Investment Company Act of 1940. Neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidiaries 
is, or at the Effective Time will be, required to be registered as an investment company under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. 

(w) Contracts. 

(i) Section 2.1 (w)(1) of the Chateau Disclosure Lener hsts all Material Contracts of 
Chateau and each Chateau Subsidiary. Except as set forth on Section 2. l(w)(i) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter or in the Chateau SEC Documents, each Matenal Contract is valid, bmding and enforceable and in 
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full force and effect. For purposes of this Agreement, with respect to Chateau, Chateau OP and each 
other Chateau Subsidiary, "Matenal Contracts" shall mean (i) any loan or credit agreement, indenture, 
note, bond, debenture or any other document or agreement evidencing a cap1tahzed lease obligation or 
other Indebtedness to any Person, includmg any such Indebtedness that may be incurred pursuant to an 
agreement already executed, other than Indebtedness in a principal amount less than $250,000 m the 
aggregate, (i1) each ground lease (under which Chateau or a Chateau Subsidiary ts lessee), (iii) each 
matenal corrumtment, contractual obligation, borrowmg, capital expenditure, agreement to acquire real 
property, or transaction entered into by Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary which may result in total 
payments by or liability of Chateau or any Chateau Subs1d1ary in excess of $250,000, (iv) any other 
agreements filed or required to be filed as exhibits to the Chateau SEC Documents pursuant to Item 
601(b)(I0) of Regulation S·K of Title 17, Part 229 of the Code of Federal Regulations, (v) all contracts or 
arrangements between Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary, on the one hand, and any director, officer, 
employee, equityholder or affiliate of Chateau (or any of their respective affiliates), on the other hand; 
(vi) all change in control or sunilar agreements or (vii) all other contracts and agreements that are material 
to Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or the conduct of the bus mess of Chateau and 
the Chateau Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or the absence of which would, in the aggregate, have a 
Chateau Material Adverse Effect. 

(n) All mortgages (and deeds of trust) on any of the assets of Chateau or any of the 
Chateau Subsidianes (mc1uding Chateau OP) are listed in Sect10n 2. I(w)(ir) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter hereto. The Mergers and the other transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents will 
not trigger any due-on-sale provision (or sirrular provision) in, or constitute an event of default under, any 
of such mortgages (and deeds of trust), except as set forth in Section 2. l(w)(ii) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter and will not reqwre the consent of any mortgage lender, except as set forth in Section 2.1 (w)(ii) of 
the Chateau Disclosure Letter. 

(iii) Except as set forth m Section 2.1 (w)(iii) of the Chateau Disclo,sure Letter, there 
is no confidentiality agreement, non-competition agreement or other contract or agreement that contains 
covenants that restrict Chateau's ability to conduct 1ts business in any location in a manner that is material 
to the business of Chateau or the Chateau Subsidianes. 

(iv) Except as set forth m Section 2. l(w)(iv) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, there 
are no mdemmficat10n agreements entered into by and between Chateau and any director or officer of 
Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidianes. 

(x) Dissenters' Rights. Except as provided under Section 10-208 of the MRULPA with 
respect to the Partnership Merger, no dissenters' or appraisal rights shall be available to holders of any 
securities of Chateau or any Affihates of Chateau with respect to the Merger or the other transactions 
contemplated by the Transaction Documents. 

(y) State Takeover Statutes: Partners Solicitation Materials. Each of Chateau and Chateau 
OP has approved, or caused to be approved, this Agreement and the Transaction Documents and the 
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and has taken all actions and done all thmgs necessary to 
exempt this Agreement, the Transaction Documents, the Mergers and the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement and the Transaction Documents from operation of any "fair price," "business 
combination," "moratorium," "control share acquisition," or any other takeover or anti-takeover statute or 
similar statute enacted under federal or state Laws of the United States or similar statute or regulation or 
any "nghts plan" or "excess share" provisions (a "Takeover Statute"), mcluding all such action necessary 
such that each such Takeover Statute does not apply to this Agreement, the Transaction Documents, the 
Mergers, or any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby. No Takeover Statute of the State of 
Maryland, includmg the control share acquisition proVIsions of Sections 3-701 et seq. of the MGCL or the 
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business combination provisions of Sections 3-601 et seq. of the MGCL applies or purports to apply to 
this Agreement, the Transaction Documents, the Mergers or any of the other transactions contemplated 
hereby or thereby. 

(z) Affiliate Transactions. Except as disclosed m this Section 2. l(z) or Section 2. l(w)(i) of 
the Chateau Disclosure Letter, (A) no affiliate of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary provides or causes to 
be provided and no affiliate of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary has provided or caused to be provided, 
to Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary, any assets, loans, advances, services or facilities and (B) neither 
Chateau nor any Chateau Subsidiary provides or causes to be provided, and no affiliate of Chateau or any 
Chateau Subsidiary has proVIded or caused to be provided, to any such affiliate, any assets, loans, 
advances, services or facilities. Except as disclosed in Section 2.l(z) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, 
neither Chateau nor any Chateau Subsidiary has had any other significant busmess relationships with any 
affiliate of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary 

Section 2.2 Representations and Warranties of Purchaser. Each of Parent and Purchaser 
represents and warrants to Chateau and Chateau OP as follows: 

(a) Organization. Standing and Corporate Power of Purchaser, Merger Sub and Partnership 
Merger Sub. Each of Parent and Purchaser is a limited liability company duly formed, validly existing 
and in good standmg under the laws of the State of Delaware. Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub 
shall, after their formation, be limited liability companies duly formed, validly existing and in good 
standing under the State of Maryland. Purchaser has made available to Chateau complete and correct 
copies of its articles of organization and operatmg agreement and shall make available complete and 
correct copies of Merger Sub's and Partnership Merger Sub's certificate of formation and operating 
agreement. Each of Parent and Purchaser is, and shall cause Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub to 
be, duly qualified or licensed to do business and in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the nature 
of their businesses or the ownership, operation or leasing of their properties makes such qualification or 
licensing necessary, other than m such Jurisdictions where the failure to be so qualified or licensed 
individually or m the aggregate, would not have a material adverse effect on the ability of Parent, 
Purchaser, Merger Sub or Partnership Merger Sub to perform any of its or their obligations hereunder or 
consummate any of the transact10ns contemplated hereby (a "Purchaser Material Adverse Effect"). All 
membership interests in the Merger Sub have been duly authonzed, validly issued and are owned by 
Purchaser free and clean of all Liens. All membership interests in the Partnership Merger Sub have been 
duly authorized and validly issued and are owned by Merger Sub, or otherwise wholly owned indirectly 
by Parent, free and clear of all Liens. Purchaser has heretofore made available to Chateau complete and 
correct copies of the Limited Liability Company Agreements of each of Purchaser and Parent (including 
all amendments thereto through the date hereof), all of which are hsted on Section 2.2(e) of the of the 
disclosure letter dated as of the date of this Agreement and dehvered to Chateau in connection with the 
execution hereof (the "Purchaser Disclosure Letter") (collectively, the "Hometown Operating 
Agreements"), which are the orgamzattonal documents for Parent and Purchaser, respectively, as of the 
date hereof. 

(b) Capital Structure. 

(1) Capital Structure. 

(A) As of the date of this Agreement, the outstandmg equity interests (1) of 
Parent consist of membership interests held by Washington State Investment Board and Hometown 
Residential Manager, LLC and (2) of Purchaser consist of membership interests held by Parent and by 
Hometown Residential Manager, LLC, and Series A Convertible Operatmg Company Preference Units 
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held by Sunshine Valley, Ltd., a California limited partnership, and successors and transferees of 
Sunshine Valley, Ltd. 

(B) As of the date of this Agreement, except as set forth above in this 
Section 2.2(b), no membership mterests or other voting secuntJ.es of Parent or Purchaser were issued, 
reserved for issuance or outstandmg. All outstanding membership interests of Parent and Purchaser are 
duly authorized, validly issued, fully patd and nonassessable and not subject to preemptive rights. 

(C) 
Subsidiary outstandmg. 

There is no Voting Debt of Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser 

(D) The liquidation preference of each Partnership Security 1mmed1ately 
following 1ts issuance shall be $29.25 . 

(ii) Miscellaneous. 

(A) Except as set forth in this Section 2.2 or m Section 2.2(b)(ii)(A) of the 
Purchaser Disclosure Letter), there are issued and outstanding or reserved for issuance: (1) no 
membership interests, Voting Debt or other voting securities of Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser 
Subsidiary; (2) no securities of Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser Subsidiary, or securities or assets of 
any other entity convertible into or exchangeable for membership interests, Voting Debt or other voting 
securities of Parent, Purchaser, or any Purchaser Subsidiary, and (3) no options, warrants, calls, rights 
(includmg preemptive rights), commitments or agreements to which Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser 
Subsidiary is a party or by which 1t is bound in any case obligatmg Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser 
Subsidiary to issue, deliver, sell, purchase, redeem or acquire, or cause to be issued, delivered, sold, 
purchased, redeemed or acqmred, additional membership mterests, Voting Debt or other votmg securtties 
of Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser Subsidiary, or obligating Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser 
Subsidiary to grant, extend or enter mto any such option, warrant, call, right, commitment or agreement. 

(B) Except for the Transaction Documents, there are not any agreements, 
voting trusts or other agreements or understandings to which Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser 
Subsidiary is a party or by which it is bound relating to the votmg of any membership interests or other 
securities of Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser Subsidiary. Except as set forth in the applicable 
organizational documents of any Parent, Purchaser or any Purchaser Subsidiary or as imposed and 
required by lenders m connection with bankruptcy remote or special purpose entities that are Subsidiaries, 
there are no restrictions on Parent 's or Purchaser's ability to vote the equity interests of Purchaser or any 
Purchaser Subsidiary. 

(c) Authority: No Violations: Consents and Approvals. 

(i) Each of Parent and Purchaser has, and Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub 
will have, all requisite power and authority to enter into the Transaction Documents to which they are 
parties and to consummate the transact10ns contemplated hereby or thereby. The execution and delivery 
of the Transaction Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby 
have been (or will be in the case of Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub) duly authorized by all 
necessary action on the part of Parent, Purchaser, Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub. Parent has 
received unanimous approval from its Advtsory Board to approve the Agreement, the Mergers, the 
Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and no consent or approval 
of its members is required for any of such transactions. 
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(ii) The Transaction Documents to which Parent, Purchaser, Merger Sub and 
Partnership Merger Sub are or will be parties have been or will be duly executed and delivered by each of 
Parent, Purchaser, Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub, as the case may be, and assuming the 
Transaction Documents to which Parent, Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries is a party 
constitute the valid and binding obligation of Parent, Purchaser or Purchaser Subsidiary, as the case may 
be, constitute or will constitute a vahd and bmding obhgation of each of Parent, Purchaser, Merger Sub 
and Partnership Merger Sub, as the case may be, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject as to 
enforceability, to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other Laws of general 
applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights and to general principles of equity (regardless of 
whether such enforceability 1s considered in a proceeding m eqmty or at Law). 

(iii) The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents to which it is a party 
do not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, and compliance with 
the provisions hereof or thereof, will not, conflict with, or result in any violation of, or default (with or 
without notice or lapse of time, or both) under, or give rise to a right of termination, cancellation or 
acceleration of any material obligation, or give rise to a nght of purchase under, result in the creation of 
any Lien upon any .of the properties or assets of Parent or Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries 
under, require the consent or approval of any third-party lender or otherwise result in a material detriment 
to Parent or Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries under, any provision of (A) the certificate of 
formation and operating agreement of Parent or Purchaser or any provision of the comparable charter or 
organizational documents of any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries, (B) any Material Contract applicable to 
Parent or Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries, the respective properties or assets of Parent or 
Purchaser, or any guarantee by Parent or Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries, (C) any joint 
venture or other ownership arrangement or (D) assuming the consents, approvals, authorizations or 
permits and filings or notifications referred to m Section 2.2(c)(iv) are duly and timely obtained or made, 
any judgment, order, decree or Law applicable to Parent or Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries 
or any of their respective properties or assets, other than, in the case of clauses (B), (C) and (D), any such 
conflicts, violations, defaults, nghts, Liens or detriments that, individually or m the aggregate, would not 
reasonably be expected to matenally impair the ability of Parent or Purchaser, Merger Sub or Partnership 
Merger Sub to perform its obligations hereunder or thereunder or prevent the consummation of any of the 
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby or result in a Purchaser Material Adverse Effect. For 
purposes of this Agreement, with respect to Parent, Purchaser and each Purchaser Subsidiary, "Material 
Contracts" shall mean (i) any loan or credit agreement, mdenture, note, bond, debenture or any other 
document or agreement evidencing a capitalized lease obligation or other Indebtedness to any Person, 
including any such Indebtedness that may be incurred pursuant to an agreement already executed, other 
than Indebtedness ma principal amount less than $250,000 m the aggregate, (ii) each ground lease (under 
which Parent, Purchaser or a Purchaser Subsidiary 1s lessee), (iii) each material commitment, contractual 
obligation, borrowing, capital expenditure, agreement to acquire real property, or transaction entered into 
by Parent, Purchaser or a Purchaser Subsidiary which may result in total payments by or liability of 
Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary in excess of $250,000, (iv) contracts or arrangements between Parent, 
Purchaser or a Purchaser Subsidiary, on the one hand, and any director, officer, employee, equityholder or 
affiliate of Parent (or any of the1T respective affiliates), on the other hand; (v) all change in control or 
similar agreements or (vi) all other contracts and agreements that are matenal to Parent, Purchaser and the 
Purchaser Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or the conduct of the busmess of Parent, Purchaser and the 
Purchaser Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or the absence of wh1ch would, in the aggregate, have a 
Purchaser Material Adverse Effect. 

(iv) No consent, approval, order or authonzation of, or registration, declaration or 
filing with, or penmt from any Governmental Entity is required by or w1th respect to Parent or Purchaser 
or any of the Purchaser Subsid1anes m connection with the execution and delivery by Parent or Purchaser, 
Merger Sub or the Partnership Merger Sub of the Transaction Documents to which Purchaser, Merger 
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Sub or Partnership Merger Sub is a party or the conswnmation by Purchaser, Merger Sub or Partnership 
Merger Sub of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, except for: (A) the filing with the SEC of 
such reports under Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and such other compliance with the Securities Act 
and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder as may be required in connection with this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby; (B) the filing of the Articles of Merger and the 
Articles of Partnership Merger with, and acceptance for recording of the Articles of Merger by, the 
Department; and (C) any such consent, approval, order, authonzatton, registration, declaration, filmg or 
permit that the failure to obtain or make would not reasonably be expected to matenally rmpair the ability 
of Parent or Purchaser, Merger Sub or Partnerslup Merger Sub to perform 1ts obligations hereunder or 
prevent the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby or result in a 
Purchaser Material Adverse Effect. 

(d) Litigation. There 1s no smt, action or proceedmg pending, or, to the Knowledge of 
Parent, Purchaser, Merger Sub or Partnership Merger Sub, threatened against or affecting Purchaser or 
any other Purchaser Subsidiary that would be hkely to prevent the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement. 

(e) Financial Condition of Purchaser: Operatmg Agreements. Parent has provided to 
Chateau true, complete and correct copies of the audited consolidated financial statements of Parent and 
Purchaser and the Purchaser Subsidiaries for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 and 
unaudited consolidated financial statements of Purchaser and the Purchaser Subsidiaries for the fiscal 
penod ended March 31, 2003, and of the Hometown Operatmg Agreements. Such financial statements 
have been prepared m accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis during the periods involved 
(except as may be indicated in the notes thereto) and fairly presented, in accordance with apphcable 
requirements of GAAP (subject, in the case of the unaudited financial statements, to normal recurring 
adjustments, none of which are matenal), the consolidated financial pos1tlon of Parent, Purchaser and the 
Purchaser Subsidiaries as of their respective dates and the consolidated statements o( income and the 
consohdated statements of cash flows of Parent, Purchaser and the Purchaser Subsidiaries for the periods 
presented therein. Since March 31, 2003, there has not been a material adverse effect on the business, 
assets, liabilities, properties, condition (financial or otherwise) or results of operations of Parent, 
Purchaser and the Purchaser Subs1dianes taken as a whole. 

(f) Transaction Fmancmg. The unfunded portion of the capital commitment to Parent of and 
approved by the Washmgton State Investment Board, together with cash and cash eqmvalents available to 
Parent and Purchaser, exceeds $800 milhon. All of such capital commitment 1s subject to call by the 
Advisory Board of Parent without the consent or any other action of the Washington State Investment 
Board or any other third party. Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a description of the Financing 
contemplated as of the date hereof to be used by Purchaser to complete the Mergers and the other 
transactions contemplated hereby. Parent, Purchaser, Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub will have 
at Closing all funds necessary to fund thetr obligations under this Agreement and the other Transaction 
Documents and shall include a mmimum of $500,000,000 of Washmgton State Investment Board's 
capital commitment to Parent. 

(g) No Undisclosed Material Liabilities. Except as disclosed in the financial statements 
referred to in Section 2.2(e), as set forth m Section 2.2(g) of the Purchaser Disclosure Letter or as 
otherwise would not reasonably be expected to have a Purchaser Material Adverse Effect, there are no 
liabilities of Parent, Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries, whether accrued, contingent, absolute 
or determined, other than: (i) liabilities adequately provided for on the balance sheet of Purchaser dated as 
of December 31 , 2002 (including the notes thereto); or (ii) liabilities incurred in the ordmary course of 
business subsequent to December 31, 2002. 
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(h) No Default. Except as set forth in Section 2.2(h) of the Purchaser Disclosure Letter, 
neither Purchaser nor any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries is in default or violation (and no event has 
occurred which, w1th notice or the lapse of time or both, would constitute a default or violation) of any 
term, condition or proVIsion of (i) the certificate of formation or operating agreement of Purchaser or any 
of the organizational documents of any of the Purchaser Subsidianes, (ii) any loan or credit agreement, 
note, or any bond, mortgage or indenture, to which Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries is now 
a party or by which Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries or any of their respective properties or 
assets 1s bound, or (iii) any order, writ, injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation applicable to 
Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries, except m the case of (ii) and (iii) for defaults or violations 
which, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Purchaser Material 
Adverse Effect. 

(i) Interim Operations of the Merger Sub and Partnership Merger Sub. The Merger Sub and 
Partnership Merger Sub, as of the date of their formations and as of the Effective Time, except for 
obligations or liabilities mcurred in connection with their orgamzation and the transactions, agreements 
and arrangements contemplated by this Agreement, will have incurred no other material obligations or 
liabilities and have no assets. 

ARTICLE III 

COVENANTS RELATING TO CONDUCT OF BUSINESS PENDING THE MERGER 

Section 3.1 Conduct of Business by Chateau and Chateau OP and ROC. 

(a) During the penod from the date of this Agreement to the Effective Time, Chateau shall, 
and shall cause each of the Chateau Subsidiaries (mcludmg Chateau OP) to use all commercially 
reasonable efforts to, carry on its businesses in the usual, regular and ordinary course in substantially the 
same manner as heretofore conducted and consistent with past practice and use commercially reasonable 
efforts to preserve intact (1) its current business organization, goodwill, assets, ongoing businesses, and 
(ii) Chateau's status as a REIT withm the meaning of the Code. Durmg the period from the date of this 
Agreement to the Effective Time, Chateau shall, and shall cause each of the Chateau Subsidiaries 
(mcludmg Chateau OP) which has been classified for federal mcome tax purposes as a partnership to 
preserve its status as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and not enter mto or amend a Limited 
Partner Tax Agreement. Chateau will promptly deliver to Purchaser true and correct copies of any report, 
statement, schedule or other document filed with the SEC by Chateau subsequent to the date of this 
Agreement; and Chateau will promptly notify Purchaser of any litigation pending or threatened having, to 
the knowledge of Chateau, potential liability to Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries m excess of 
$200,000 or any complaint, mvesttgation or heanng, of which Chateau has Knowledge, by a 
Governmental Entity involving Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidianes. 

(b) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, dunng the period from the date of this 
Agreement to the earlter of the termmation of this Agreement or the Effective Time, except as set forth in 
Section 3.1 (b) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, as otherwise contemplated by this Agreement or to the 
extent consented to in wntmg m advance by Purchaser, Chateau and Chateau OP and each other Chateau 
Subsidiary shall not engage m, authorize or agree to any of the followmg: 

(i) take any action that would prevent or delay the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents; 

(1i) (A) declare, set aside or pay any dividends on, or make any other distributions in 
respect of, any of Chateau's capital stock or the partnership interests, stock or other equity interests in any 
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Chateau Subsidiary that is not directly or md1Tectly wholly owned by Chateau, except (l) the 
authorization and payment of quarterly dividends with respect to the Chateau Common Stock on any 
quarterly anniversaries of prior dividend record and payment dates in accordance with past practice, and 
at the same rate per share as the most recent quarterly dividend, (2) at the Closing, m an amount equal to 
(x) the fraction equal (A) the number of days following the most recent such dividend payment date up to 
but not including the Closing Date divided by (B) 91.25, multiplied by (y) the same quarterly dividend 
rate, provided that, with respect to clauses ( l) and (2), Chateau shall notlfy Purchaser in writing of the 
proposed record date for any such distnbution at least IO days prior to such date, (3) a distribution per OP 
Unit in the same amount as a dividend per share of Chateau Common Stock permitted pursuant to clauses 
(1), and (2) above, with the same record and payment dates as such dividends on Chateau Common Stock, 
(4) quarterly distributions with respect to the Chateau Senes A OP Units which are required by the terms 
of the Chateau OP Agreement, and (5) any distribution (or an increase in a distribution) by Chateau that is 
the minimum amount necessary for Chateau to maintain REIT status, or avoid the incurrence of any 
Taxes under Section 857 of the Code, avoid the imposition of any excise Taxes under Section 4981 of the 
Code; provided. however, that any such distribution or increase referred to m this clause (5) shall reduce 
the Merger Consideration dollar for dollar, and shall be determined by taking into account that the 
Common Stock Merger Consideration is a distnbution qualifying for the dividends paid deduction under 
Sections 561 and 562 of the Code, (B) spht, combme or reclassify any capital stock, partnership interests 
or other equity interests or issue or authonze the issuance of any other securities in respect of, in lieu of or 
in substitution for shares of such capital stock, partnership interests or other equity mterests, or take any 
similar action described in Section 1.7(d) or Section 1.9(d) or (C) purchase, redeem (except for the 
redemption of OP Units in accordance with their terms) or otherwise acqutre any shares of Chateau's 
capital stock or the partnership interests, stock or other equity mterests in any Chateau Subsidiary or any 
options, warrants or rights to acqu1Te, or security convertible into, shares of Chateau' s capital stock or the 
partnership interests, stock or other equity interests in any Chateau Subsidiary, except to repurchase 
shares of Chateau Common Stock issued under any Chateau Opt10n Plan or in connection with the use of 
Chateau Common Stock to pay the exercise price or Tax withholding obligation upon the exercise of a 
Chateau Option as presently pennitted under the Chateau Option Plans; 

(iii) issue, deliver, sell or grant any option or other material nght in respect of any 
shares of capital stock, any other votmg or redeemable securities (including OP Units or other partnership 
interests) of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary or any secunties convertible into, or any rights, warrants 
or options to acquire, any such shares, votmg secunties or convertible or redeemable securities, except 
(A) to Chateau or a Chateau Subsidiary, (B) as permitted or requ1red under the Chateau OP Agreement in 
effect of the date hereof, (C) m connection with the exercise of outstanding Chateau Stock Options under 
the Chateau Option Plan or the exchange of OP Units for shares of Chateau Common Stock, and (D) in 
connection with conversion of any of Chateau or Chateau OP convertible secuntles outstanding as of the 
date hereof; 

(iv) amend the Chateau Charter or the Chateau By-laws, the Chateau OP Agreement 
or any other comparable charter or organizational documents of any Chateau Subsidiary, except as 
otherwise contemplated by this Agreement; 

(v) except as set forth in Section 3.I(b)(v) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, merge, 
consolidate or enter mto any other business combination transaction with any Person; 

(vi) except as set forth m Section 3.1 (b)(vi) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, (A) 
acquire, enter into any option to acquire, or exercise an option or other right or election or enter mto any 
other commitment or contractual obligation (each, a "Commitment") for the acquisition of any real 
property or other transaction ( other than any Comnu tment referred to in Section 3 .1 (b )(vi) of the Chateau 
Disclosure Letter) involving nonrefundable deposits; (B) make any capital expenditures, commence 
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construction of, or enter mto any Comnutment to develop or construct other real estate projects other than 
any Commitment referred to in or contemplated by Section 3. l(b)(vi) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter, or 
(C) incur additional Indebtedness or guarantee the Indebtedness of another Person, except under its 
revolving line(s) of credit and Commitments for Indebtedness incurred m accordance with 
Section 3.l(b)(vi) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter; 

(vii) sell, mortgage, lease, subject to Lien or otherwise encumber or dispose of any of 
the Chateau Properties, or other assets, or assign or encumber the right to receive income, dividends, 
distnbutions and the hke or agree to do any of the foregoing, except as referred tom or contemplated by 
Section 3 .1 (b )( vii) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter; 

( viii) issue or sell any debt securities or warrants or other nghts to acquire debt 
secunties of Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary, enter mto any "keep well" or other agreement to 
maintain any financial statement cond1t1on of another Person or enter mto any arrangement having the 
economic effect of any of the foregoing; 

(ix) except for matters disclosed in Section 3 .1 (b )(ix) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter, prepay, refinance or amend any existing Indebtedness or make any mvestments in any other 
Person m excess of $250,000 in the aggregate; 

(x) make or rescmd any matenal election relatmg to Taxes (unless Chateau 
reasonably determines that such action ts required by Law or necessary to preserve Chateau's status as a 
REIT or the partnership status of Chateau OP or any other Chateau Subsidiary which files Tax Returns as 
a partnership for federal tax purposes); provided, however, that nothing in this Agreement shall preclude 
Chateau from designating dividends patd by it as "capital gam dividends" within the meaning of 
Section 857 of the Code; 

(xi) (A) change in any matenal respect (except as may be required by Law) any of its 
methods, pnnciples or practices of accounting m effect or (B) settle or compromise any claim, action, 
suit, litigation, proceeding, arbitration, investigation, audit or controversy relating to Taxes, except in the 
case of settlements or compromises relatmg to Taxes on real property or sales Taxes in an amount not to 
exceed, individually or m the aggregate, $250,000, or change any of its methods of reporting income or 
deductions for federal income tax purposes from those employed in the preparation of its federal income 
Tax Return for the taxable year ended December 31, 2001, except as may be required by the SEC, 
changes in applicable Law or GAAP; 

(xii) adopt any new employee benefit plan, mcenttve plan, severance plan, bonus plan, 
stock option or similar plan, grant new stock appreciation rights or amend any existing Chateau Employee 
Benefit Plan, or enter into or amend any employment agreement or similar agreement or arrangement or 
grant or become obligated to grant any increase in the compensation of officers or employees, except such 
changes as are requtred by Law; 

(xin) enter mto or amend or otherwise modify any material agreement or arrangement 
with Persons that are Affiliates or, as of the date of this Agreement, are employees or directors of Chateau 
or any Chateau Subsidiary without prior written notice to Purchaser and the approval of a majority of the 
"independent" members of the Board of Directors of Chateau; 

(xiv) except as otherwise penmtted or contemplated by this Agreement, authorize, 
recommend, propose or announce an intention to adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation or 
dissolution of Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries; 
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(xv) fail to use commercially reasonable best efforts to maintain with financially 
responsible insurance companies insurance m such amounts and against such risks and losses as are a 
customary for companies engaged in their respective businesses; 

(xvi) fail to use commercially reasonable best efforts to comply or remain in 
compliance with all terms and provisions of any agreement relating to any outstanding Indebtedness of 
Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary; 

(xvti) enter mto any agreement that contains a change of control or similar provision 
that would be violated by the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereunder (and Chateau 
shall use its reasonable best efforts to bring about the deletion of any such provision, including any such 
provision in its existing loan comnutments with Archon Fmanc1al); or 

(xviii) take, permtt or cause any action or omission inconsistent with any of the 
foregoing. 

( c) During the period from the date of this Agreement to the Effective Time, Chateau shall, 
and shall cause each of the Chateau Subsid1anes (including Chateau OP) to, consult and cooperate with 
Purchaser with respect to all real estate tax reassessments and tax certiorari matters. 

Section 3.2 Conduct of Busmess by Parent and Purchaser. 

(a) During the period from the date of this Agreement to the Effective Time, Parent and 
Purchaser shall, and shall cause each of the Purchaser Subsidiaries to use all commercially reasonable 
efforts to, cany on its business in the usual, regular and ordinary course in substantially the same manner 
as heretofore conducted and, to the extent consistently therewith, use commercially reasonable efforts to 
preserve intact in all material respects its current business orgamzation, goodwill and ongoing businesses. 
Parent will promptly notify Chateau of any litigation having, to the lmowledge of Parent, potential 
liability to Parent, Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries in excess of $500,000 or any complaint, 
mvestigation or hearing, of which Parent has Knowledge, by a Governmental Entity involving Parent, 
Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidiaries. 

(b) Without hmiting the generality of the foregoing, during the period from the date of this 
Agreement to the earlier of the termination of this Agreement or the Effective Time, except as set forth in 
Section 3.2(b) of the Purchaser Disclosure Letter, as otherwise contemplated by this Agreement or to the 
extent consented to by Chateau, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, neither Parent nor 
Purchaser shall engage in or authorize or agree to any of the followmg: 

(1) take any action that would prevent or materially delay the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents; 

(ii) take any action the result of which would require the consent of the Washington 
State Investment Board to the capital call required in connection with the Financing; 

(iit) merge, consolidate or enter mto any other busmess combination transaction with 
any Person, other than any such transactions in the aggregate less than or equal to $100,000,000; 

(1v) except as otherwise permitted or contemplated by this Agreement, authonze, 
recommend, propose or announce an mtentlon to adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation or 
dissolution of Parent, Purchaser or any of the Purchaser Subsidianes; 
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(v) agree in writtng or otherwise to take any action inconsistent with any of the 
foregoing; 

(vi) take any action that would be proh1b1ted under the terms of the Partnership 
Securities were they outstanding from and after the date hereof; and 

(vti) take any action that reduces the consolidated net worth of Purchaser to less than 
$150,000,000. 

Section 4.1 

ARTICLE IV 

ADDITIONAL COVENANTS 

Preparation of the Proxy Statement: Stockholders' Meeting. 

(a) As soon as practicable following the date of this Agreement, Chateau shall prepare and 
file with the SEC a prehmmary Proxy Statement (and Chateau shall use its commercially reasonable 
efforts to so file such prehminary Proxy Statement as promptly as practicable), in form and substance 
reasonably satisfactory to Parent, with indication of such satisfaction not to be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed. Each of Chateau and Parent shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to have the Proxy 
Statement cleared by the SEC for mailing to the Chateau stockholders as promptly as practicable after 
such filing. Chateau will notify Parent promptly followmg the receipt by Chateau of any comments from 
the SEC and of any request by the SEC for amendments or supplements to the Proxy Statement or for 
additional information and will supply Parent with copies of all correspondence between Chateau or any 
of its representatives and the SEC w1th respect to the Proxy Statement. The Proxy Statement shall 
comply in all material respects with all apphcable requirements of the Law. Chateau shall date the Proxy 
Statement as of the approximate date of mailing to its stockholders and shall use its commercially 
reasonable efforts to cause the Proxy Statement to be mailed to its stockholders at the earliest practicable 
date. Whenever any event occurs wh1ch is required to be set forth in an amendment or supplement to the 
Proxy Statement, (i) Parent or Chateau, as the case may be, shall promptly mform the other of such 
occurrences, (11) Chateau shall prepare and file with the SEC any such amendment or supplement to the 
Proxy Statement, m a form reasonably satisfactory to Parent, with indication of such satisfaction not to be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed, (111) each of Chateau and Parent shall use its commercially reasonable 
efforts to have any such amendment or supplement cleared for mailing, to the extent necessary, to 
Chateau stockholders as promptly as practicable after such filmg, and (1v) Chateau shall use its 
commercially reasonable efforts to have any such amendment or supplement mailed to its stockholders at 
the earliest practicable date. All filings with the SEC, including the Proxy Statement, and all mailings to 
the Chateau stockholders in connection with the Merger, including the Proxy Statement, shall be subject 
to the prior review, comment and consent of Parent (not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed). Parent 
will furnish to Chateau the mformation relatmg to it and/or Purchaser required by the Exchange Act to be 
set forth m the Proxy Statement. Chateau agrees to use its commercially reasonable efforts, after 
consultation with Parent, to respond promptly to any comments made by the SEC with respect to the 
Proxy Statement and any prelimmary version thereof filed by 1t and cause such Proxy Statement to be 
mailed to Chateau 's stockholders at the earliest practicable time. Subject to Sections 4.6 and 6.1, Chateau 
shall include in the Proxy Statement the recommendations of the Chateau Board of Directors that the 
Chateau's stockholders vote in favor of the approval and adoption of this Agreement and the Mergers and 
other transactions contemplated hereby. 

(b) Chateau will, as soon as practicable followmg the date on which the Proxy Statement 1s 
cleared by the SEC, duly call, give notice of, convene and hold the Chateau Stockholder Meeting (but in 
no event shall such meetmg be held sooner than ten days followmg the date the Proxy Statement is mailed 
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to its stockholders, for the purpose of obtaining the Chateau Stockholder Approval. Subject to 
Section 6.1, Chateau will, through the unanimous action of its Board of Directors, advise and recommend 
to its stockholders approval of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Transaction 
Documents and further covenants that the Proxy Statement will include such recommendation; provided, 
however, that should a quorum not be obtained at the Chateau Stockholder Meetmg, or if fewer shares of 
Chateau Common Stock than the number requtred therefor are voted m favor of approval and adoption of 
the transactions contemplated hereby, the Chateau Stockholder Meeting shall be postponed or adjourned 
from time to time m order to penmt addit10nal time for soliciting and obtaining additional proxies or 
votes. 

Section 4.2 Partner Solicitation Materials: Debt Tender and Consent Solicitation. 

(a) As promptly as reasonably practicable following the date of this Agreement, Parent, 
Purchaser, Chateau and Chateau OP shall prepare certain solicitation materials (the "Partner Solicitation 
Materials"), which will be used by Purchaser as a private placement memorandum to offer the Partnership 
Secunty to the OP Unit Holders and by Chateau and Chateau OP to solicit the Chateau Partner Approval. 
Such Partner Solicitation Materials shall be prepared by Purchaser, Chateau and Chateau OP in 
compliance with appltcable law and shall mclude information about Parent and/or Purchaser, a 
descnption of the transaction, description of available appraisal nghts for OP Unit Holders, the federal 
income tax consequences of the transaction and other matters that the parties reasonably determine are to 
be specified therein. The parties shall reasonably cooperate with each other in the preparation of the 
Partner Solicitation Materials. All Partner Solicitation Materials, and all mailings to the Chateau OP Unit 
Holders in connection with the Partnership Merger, mcludmg the Partner Solicitation Materials, shall be 
subject to the prior review, comment and consent of Purchaser (not to be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed). Purchaser will furmsh to Chateau the mformatton relating to it and/or Parent required by 
applicable Law to be set forth in the Partner Solicitation Materials. Chateau shall use its commercially 
reasonable efforts, after consultatton with the other parties hereto, to respond promptly ,to any comments 
made by any Governmental Entity, 1f any, with respect to the Partner Solicitation Materials and any 
preliminary version thereof filed by it and cause such Partner Solicitation Materials to be mailed to OP 
Unit Holders at the earliest practicable time. SubJect to Sections 4.6 and 6.1, Chateau shall include in the 
Partner Solicitation Matenals the unanimous recommendations of the Chateau and ROC Board of 
Directors that OP Unit Holders vote in favor of the approval and adoption of this Agreement and the 
Partnership Merger, and other transact10ns contemplated hereby. 

(b) Subject to Sect10ns 4.6 and 6.1, Chateau and ROC shall seek the written consents and 
approvals of the OP Urut Holders and Senes A Umt Holders to the Chateau Partner Approval and 
recommend to the OP Unit Holders approval of such matters, and include such recommendation in the 
Partner Solicitation Materials. 

( c) As promptly as reasonably practicable following the date of this Agreement, Parent shall 
prepare a form of elect10n in form and substance reasonably acceptable to Chateau and Chateau OP (the 
"Form of Election"), pursuant to which each Eligible OP Umt Holder (as defined below) will specify (an 
"Election") (A) the number of OP Umts (which must equal or exceed 5,500 OP Units, or 3,500 OP Units, 
as applicable) which it demes to have converted into the right to receive the Partnership Security and (B) 
the number of OP Units which it desires to have converted into the right to receive cash in the Partnership 
Merger. In order to be eligible to elect to receive the Partnership Security m the Partnership Merger, an 
OP Unit Holder must, in Parent's reasonable judgment: qualify as an "accredited investor" under the 
Secunties Act; provided. however. that 1f in Purchaser's reasonable Judgment (after being advised by 
outside counsel), based on Purchaser's (and such counsel's) review of such OP Unit Holder's responses 
to the Form of Election and such other customary matters as are reasonably taken into account by Parent 
and its counsel, such OP Unit Holder would not be eligible as a result of any action or maction taken by 
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such OP Umt Holder or any of its affiliates or Representatives, or as a result of the status or attributes of 
such OP Unit Holder or any of its affiliates or Representatives, to continue as a limited partner of the 
Surviving Partnership m accordance with this Agreement without registration of such holder's OP Units 
or the offer or sale of Partnership Securities to such holder under applicable securities Laws or state 
secunttes or blue sky laws, such OP Umt Holder shall have no right to make an Election hereunder, and 
provided farther that in no event shall any such holder of OP Units have a nght to make an Election 
hereunder if the effect of issuing Partnership Secunties to such holder would be to result in the issuance 
of Partnership Securities to more than 98 partners for purposes of Treasury Regulation 1.7704-l(h) (it 
being understood and agreed that for purposes of this lirrutation, holders of OP Units seeking to make an 
Election shall be evaluated and disallowed from making such an Election based upon the number of OP 
Units held by such holders, with the holder of the smallest number of OP Umts being excluded first, and 
then the holder of the second smallest number of OP Units, and so forth unttl the condition in this proviso 
has been satisfied). Any determinations made by Parent pursuant to the provisions of this Section 4.2(c) 
shall be made by Parent only after being advised by outside counsel and taking into account any opinion 
of counsel from Clifford Chance US LLP or any counsel to any of the OP Unit Holder(s) who have 
submitted a Form of Election, and only after allowing the relevant OP Umt Holder(s) an opportunity to 
amend, correct or cure any matter arising m connection the Elect10n or the Form of Election. For 
purposes hereof "Eligible OP Umt Holder" means (x) an OP Unit Holder beneficially owning and 
electing to convert at least 5,500 OP Umts, or (y) any group of affiliated OP Unit Holders beneficially 
owning and electing to convert at least 5,500 OP Umts in the aggregate, and who arrange that that all of 
such OP Units and the Partnership Secunties to be received m respect thereof in accordance herewith will 
be owned and held within one newly formed entity which will become a single limited partner of the 
Surviving Partnership (any such entity, a "Particmatmg OP Holder Vehicle" ), or (z) any group of 
unaffiliated OP Unit Holders beneficially owning and electing to convert at least 3,500 OP Units 
individually, and who arrange that that all of such OP Umts and the Partnership Securities to be received 
in respect thereof m accordance herewtth will be owned and held within a Participating OP Holder 
Vehicle, and provided that there shall be only one such Parhc1patmg OP Holder Vehicle permitted to 
participate pursuant to tins clause (z). 

(d) The Partnership Secunty shall have the terms set forth on Exhibit C hereto (the 
"Partnership Security Terms"), reasonably acceptable to Parent and Chateau. Any OP Unit Holder 
electing option (A) as provided m Section 4.2(c) must also agree to become a party to the Limited 
Partnership Agreement of the Surviving Partnership and, at its election, may become a party to the Tax 
Protection Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exh1b1t E (the "Tax Protection 
Agreement"). Chateau shall have the nght to complete Schedule 1 to the Tax Protection Agreement and 
to allocate up to $200,000,000 of Protected Amounts (as defined m the Tax Protection Agreement) to the 
Contributing OP Unit Holders, and to complete Schedules 2(a) and 2(b) to the Tax Protection Agreement 
to allocate the "Aggregate 704(c) Amount" (which may not exceed $97,000,000) with respect to the 
properties identified thereon and to the "Partner's Share of 704(c) Amount" among the Continuing OP 
Unitholders. Parent shall cause any Subsidiary of Parent identified on the signature page of the Tax 
Protect10n Agreement to, and Chateau OP to, become a party to the Tax Protect10n Agreement. 

(e) Concurrently with the mailing of the Proxy Statement to Chateau stockholders, Parent 
shall mail Forms of Election to OP Unit Holders, together with the Partner Solicitation Materials. An 
election to subscribe for the Partnership Secunties shall be effective only if a properly executed Form of 
Election 1s received by Parent pnor to 5:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time, on the second business day 
precedmg the Chateau Stockholder Meetmg. If an OP Unit Holder fails to return a duly completed Form 
of Election withm the hme penod specified ahove and does not duly perfect its appraisal rights pursuant 
to the MRULPA, such OP Unit Holder shall be deemed to have elected to receive cash upon the 
conversion of its OP Units m the Partnership Merger. Parent and Chateau by mutual agreement shall 
have the nght to make rules , not mconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, governing the vahdity of 
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Forms of Election and the issuance and delivery of Partnership Securities m the Partnership Merger. 
Parent shall, in its reasonable discretton, determme whether a Form of Election has been properly 
completed, signed and submitted or revoked. 

(f) Purchaser covenants and agrees that, concurrently with the Closing, it will cause the 
Surviving Partnership to enter into, with each OP Unit Holder who validly elects to receive Partnership 
Securities in the Partnership Merger, the Limited Liability Company Agreement of the Surviving 
Partnership, and will reasonably cooperate with such OP Unit Holders so that such OP Unit Holders 
become members of Purchaser and enjoy the full rights and benefits of the Partnership Securities. 

(g) In the event Purchaser, directly or indirectly, desires to make one or more tender offers or 
consent solicitations with respect to any or all of the outstanding Indebtedness of Chateau or any of the 
Chateau Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Debt Offer"), Chateau and each Chateau Subsidiary shall 
reasonably cooperate with Purchaser in the preparation of such offer or consent solicitation and forms of 
the related letter of transmittal and summary advertisement, as well as all other solicitations, information 
and exhibits (collectively, the "Debt Offer Documents"), and shall otherwise reasonably cooperate with 
Purchaser in connection with the Debt Offer. Each of Purchaser and Chateau and each Chateau 
Subsidiary agrees promptly to correct any mformation provided by it for use in the Debt Offer Documents 
1f and to the extent that it shall have become false or misleading in any material respect. 

(h) The parties shall reasonably cooperate with each other with respect to the matters set 
forth in this Section 4.2, and intend that the offer of the Partnership Secunty shall be conducted as a 
private placement, exempt from the registration reqmrements of the Secunties Act. 

Section 4.3 Access to Information; Confidentiality. Chateau shall, and shall cause each of 
the Chateau Subsidiaries to, afford to Parent and its officers, employees, accountants, counsel, financial 
advisors and other representatives, reasonable access upon reasonable prior notice and during normal 
business hours during the period pnor to the Effective Time to all its properties (includin'g for the purpose 
of conducting Phase I environmental assessments and such other environmental testing as shall be 
deemed desirable by Purchaser or its mortgage lender), books, contracts, commitments, personnel and 
records and, during such period, Chateau shall, and shall cause each of the Chateau Subsidiaries to, 
furnish promptly to Parent (a) a copy of each report, schedule, registration statement and other document 
filed by it during such period pursuant to the requirements of federal or state securities Laws and (b) all 
other information concerning its business, properties and personnel as Parent may reasonably request. No 
investigation under this Section 4.3 or otherwise shall affect any of Chateau's representations or 
warranties contained m this Agreement or any condition to the obligations of the parties under this 
Agreement. Each of Chateau and Parent wtll hold, and will cause its respective officers, employees, 
accountants, counsel, financial advisors and other representatives and Affiliates to hold, any nonpublic 
information in confidence to the extent reqmred by, and in accordance with, and will comply with the 
prov1S1ons of the letter agreement between Chateau and Purchaser dated as of April 22, 2003 (the 
"Confidentiality Agreement"). 

Section 4.4 Reasonable Efforts. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, each of Parent and Chateau agrees to use its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be 
taken, all actions and to do, or cause to be done, and to assist and cooperate with the other m doing, all 
things necessary, proper or advisable to fulfill all conditions applicable to such party pursuant to this 
Agreement and to consummate and make effective, in the most expeditious manner practicable, the 
Merger, the Partnership Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents, 
including (1) the obtaining of all necessary actions or nonact10ns, waivers, consents and approvals from 
Governmental Entities and the making of all necessary registrations and filings and the taking of all 
reasonable steps as may be necessary or desirable to obtam an approval, waiver or exemption from any 
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Governmental Entity, (11) the obtaining of all necessary consents, approvals, waivers or exemption from 
non-governmental third parties; and (iu) the execution and delivery of any additional instruments 
necessary or desirable to consummate the transactions contemplated by, and to fully carry out the 
purposes of, this Agreement. In addition, each of Parent and Chateau agrees to use their reasonable best 
efforts to defend any lawsuits or other legal proceedmgs, whether judicial or administrative, challenging 
the Merger, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents, including 
seekmg to have any stay, temporary restraming order, inJunction, or restraining order or other order 
adversely affecting the ability of the parties to consummate the transactions contemplated by the 
Transaction Documents entered by any court or other Governmental Entity vacated or reversed. If, at any 
time after the Effective Time, any further action is necessary or desirable to carry out the purpose of this 
Agreement, the proper officers and directors of Chateau and Purchaser shall take all such necessary 
action. From the date of this Agreement through the Effective Time, Chateau shall timely file, or cause to 
be filed, with the SEC all Chateau SEC Documents required to be so filed. Chateau shall take all 
necessary actions to make Affiliates of Purchaser the managing member or managing members, or 
general partner or general partners, as the case may be, of the Surviving Company and the Surviving 
Partnership. 

Section 4.5 Tax Treatment. 

(a) Purchase Price Allocation. On or prior to the Closing Date, Purchaser shall, with the 
consent of Chateau and Chateau OP (each such consent not to be unreasonably withheld), reach 
agreement as to the manner m which the considerat10n to be paid pursuant to this agreement, together 
with any assumed liabilities (the "Allocable Consideration") shall be allocated among the assets of 
Chateau and Chateau OP. Such allocation shall be made m the manner required by Section 1060 of the 
Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder. In making such allocation the fair market values as 
reasonably determmed by the parties shall apply. Chateau, Chateau OP and Purchaser hereby agree that 
IRS Form 8594 will be timely filed based on such fair market values, except as may be required by a 
Determination. 

(b) Tax Treatment of the Merger. Except as may be required by a Determination, the parties 
shall treat the Merger for all income tax purposes as a taxable purchase of assets by Purchaser in 
exchange for the allocable Merger Consideration for all mcome tax purposes, and a liquidating 
d1stnbution of the Common Stock Merger Consideration to the shareholders of Chateau within the 
meanmg of Section 562(b)(l) of the Code, including filing Chateau final Tax Returns consistent with 
such treatment, and no party shall take any position inconsistent with such treatment. 

(c) Tax Treatment of the Partnershm Merger. Except as may be required by a Determination, 
the parties shall treat the Partnership Merger, for all income tax purposes as (i) a sale by the Selling OP 
Unit Holders of their OP Units m Chateau OP to Purchaser m exchange for cash (and ii) for Continuing 
OP Unit Holders a tax-deferred exchange of their former partnership interest in Chateau OP for 
Partnership Securities, mclud:ing filing Chateau OP Tax Returns consistent with such treatment, and no 
party shall take any position inconsistent with such treatment. For Continuing OP Unit Holders, the 
Partnership Merger shall be treated as a tax-deferred contnbution of the OP Umts in exchange for 
partnership securities under Section 721 of the Code. 

(d) Consistency Required. Neither Purchaser nor Chateau will take (or permit its Affiliates 
to take) any action foJlowing the Closing that 1s mconsistent with Chateau's status as a REIT for any 
period, except as may be required by a Detemunation. 
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Sect10n 4 .6 No Sohc1tation of Transactions. 

(a) SubJect to Section 6.1 , during the term of this Agreement, Chateau shall not, and shall not 
authorize or permit, directly or indirectly, any officer, director, employee, agent, investment banker, 
financial advisor, consultant, attorney, accountant, broker, finder or other representative (each, a 
"Representative") of Chateau or any of its Affiliates to, directly or indirectly, (i) initiate, solicit, 
encourage or facilitate (including by way of furmshing or disclosing nonpublic information or furnishing 
assistance) any inquines or the making of any proposal or other action that constitutes, or may reasonably 
be expected to lead to, or with respect to, any Competing Transaction (as defined herein), (ii) explore, 
enter into, maintain, or continue d1scuss1ons or otherwise negotiate with any Person ( other than Purchaser 
or Purchaser's Affiliates or their respective Affiliates' Representatives) in furtherance of such inquiries, 
proposal or action, or to obtain or otherwise with respect to a Competing Transaction, or (iii) enter into 
any agreement, arrangement or understanding requiring or causing Chateau or any of its Affiliates to 
abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the Mergers or the other transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement and the other Transaction Documents. 

(b) Subject to Section 6.1, Chateau Board of Directors shall not (i) withdraw or modify, or 
propose to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to Purchaser, its recommendations in favor of the 
Mergers, or (ii) approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or recommend, any Competing 
Transaction. 

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, a "Competing Transaction" shall mean any inquiry, offer 
or proposal regardmg any of the following (other than the transact10ns expressly provided for in this 
Agreement) involvmg Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary: (i) any merger, consolidation, share exchange, 
recapitalization, busmess combinatrnn, reclassification, or other similar transaction; (ii) any sale, lease, 
exchange, mortgage, pledge, transfer or other disposition of 50% or more of the assets of Chateau and its 
subsidianes, taken as a whole, in a smgle transaction or series ofrelated transactions; (iii) any tender offer 
or exchange offer for 50% or more of the outstanding shares of Chateau or the filing of a registration 
statement under the Secunt1es Act m connection therewith; or (iv) any public announcement of a 
proposal, plan or intention to do any of the foregoing or any agreement to engage in any of the foregoing. 

Section 4. 7 Pubhc Announcements. Chateau and Parent shall consult with each other before 
issuing, or permittmg their respective Affiliates to issue, any press release or otherwise makmg any public 
statements with respect to this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction 
Documents and shall not tssue any such press release or make any such public statement w1thout the prior 
consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided, however, that a 
party may, without the pnor consent of the other party, issue such press release or make such public 
statement as may be required by Law or the applicable rules of any stock exchange if it has used its 
reasonable best efforts to consult with the other party and to obtain such party's consent but has been 
unable to do so in a timely manner. In this regard, the parties shall make a Joint public announcement (the 
form and substance of which Chateau and Parent shall mutually agree to in advance) of the transactions 
contemplated by the Transaction Documents no later than (1) the close of trading on the New York Stock 
Exchange on the day this Agreement 1s signed, 1f such signmg occurs during a business day or (11) the 
openmg of tradmg on the New York Stock Exchange on the business day following the date on which this 
Agreement 1s signed, if such signing does not occur durmg a business day. 

Section 4.8 Transfer and Gains Taxes. Purchaser shall, with Chateau's good faith, 
cooperation and assistance, prepare, execute and file, or cause to be prepared, executed and filed, all 
returns, questionnaires, applications or other documents regarding any real property transfer or gains, 
sales, use, transfer, value added stock transfer and stamp Taxes, any transfer, recording, registration and 
other fees and any similar Taxes which become payable in connection with the transactions contemplated 
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by this Agreement (together, with any related mterests, penalties or additions to Tax, "Transfer and Gains 
Taxes"). From and after the Effective Time, Purchaser shall pay or cause to be paid all Transfer and 
Gains Taxes without deductions withheld from any amounts payable to the holders of the shares of 
Chateau Commons Stock or the OP Units. 

Section 4.9 Employee Arrangements. 

(a) Chateau Severance Agreements. Following the Closing Date, Purchaser shall honor, and 
shall cause the Purchaser Subsidiaries to honor, in accordance with their terms all Chateau Severance 
Agreements. Without lilllltmg the generality of the foregomg, Purchaser expressly agrees that the Merger 
shall constitute a change of control under the Chateau Severance Agreements listed in Section 4.9(a) of 
the Chateau Disclosure Letter. In addition, Purchaser expressly agrees that in the event that any Person 
who is party to a Chateau Severance Agreement listed on Section 4.9(a) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter 
is offered continued employment with Purchaser and its affiliates after the Closing and such Person 
accepts such continued employment, Purchaser shall pay to such Person, in equal monthly installments 
over a four-month period following the Closing Date, the aggregate benefits to which such Person would 
be entitled to receive under his or her respective Chateau Severance Agreement following a Termination 
in connection with a change of control (as defined therein a "Termination Event"), in satisfaction of such 
Person's rights and benefits under such Chateau Severance Agreement; provided, however, that if, 
followmg the Closing Date and pnor to the expiration of the four-month penod after the Closing Date, the 
employment of such Person with Purchaser 1s terminated by Purchaser, Purchaser shall pay to such 
Person on the date of such tenninat1on of employment all of the remaining installment payments due to 
such Person under such Chateau Severance Agreement. 

(b) Benefit Plans. Upon and after the Effective Time, for a period of no less than two years, 
Purchaser (or its successors or assigns) shall provide benefits to the employees of Chateau that are no less 
favorable in the aggregate to such employees of Chateau than those provided to other similarly situated 
employees of Purchaser at any applicable time after the tenrunation of the benefits provided to such 
employees of Chateau and the Chateau Subsidianes. With respect to any benefit plan of Purchaser which 
is an "employee benefit plan" as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA and any other service based benefits 
(including vacations) in which the employees of Chateau may participate, (A) solely for purposes of 
determmmg ehgibihty to participate, vesting and entitlement to benefits but not for purposes of accrual of 
benefits (except in the case of accrued vacation, sick or personal time), service with Chateau or any 
Chateau Subsidiary shall be tre~ted as servtce with Purchaser; provided, however, that such service shall 
not be recognized to the extent that such recognition would result ma duphcation of benefits under both a 
Chateau Employee Benefit Plan and a benefit plan of Purchaser (or is not otherwise recognized for such 
purposes under the benefit plans of Purchaser) and (B) Purchaser shall credit the amount of any 
copayments and deductibles incurred by such employee under any such sirmlar plan during the calendar 
year prior to the Effective Time. Without lmuting the generality of the foregoing, Purchaser shall not 
treat any Cbateau employee as a "new" employee for purposes of any exclusions under any health or 
similar plan of Purchaser for a pre-existmg medical condition, and will make appropriate arrangements 
Wlth its insurance carrier(s) to ensure such result. As of the Effective Time, Purchaser shall make, or 
cause Chateau to make, all employer matching (whether or not otherwise discretionary) and profit sharing 
contributtons (whether or not otherwise discretionary) accrued as of the Effective Time by Chateau to its 
401(k) Profit Sharing Plan With respect to compensation earned by participants prior to and through the 
Effective Time, and any conditions to the making of such contributions requiring continued service after 
the Effective Time shall be waived; proVlded, that the amount required to be so contributed as employer 
matching contributions shall not exceed (i) $347,000 times (ii) the Fraction (as defined in the next 
sentence); and provided, further, that the amount required to be so contnbuted as profit sharing 
contributions shall not exceed (1) $514,000 times (11) the Fraction. For these purposes, the Fraction means 
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(A) the number of days from January 1, 2003 through the date on which the Effective Time occurs, 
inclusive, divided by (B) 365. 

Section 4.10 Indemnification: Directors' and Officers ' Insurance. 

(a) In the event of any threatened or actual claim, action, suit, demand, proceeding or 
investigation, whether civil, criminal or administrative, including any such claim, action, suit, demand, 
proceeding or investigation m which any person who is now, or has been at any time prior to the date 
hereof, or who becomes prior to the Effective Time (each, a "Claim"), a director or officer of Chateau 
(the "Indemnified Parties") is, or 1s threatened to be, made a party based m whole or in part on, or arising 
in whole or in part out of, or pertaining to the fact that he 1s or was a director, officer, employee, fiduciary 
or agent of Chateau, or is or was servmg at the request of Chateau as a director, officer, employee, 
fiduciary or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. It is 
understood and agreed that Chateau shall indemmfy and hold harmless, and after the Effective Time the 
Survivmg Company, the Surviving Partnership, Parent and Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless, 
as and to the full extent permitted by applicable law, each Indemnified Party against any losses, claims, 
damages, liabilities, costs, expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), judgments, fines 
and amounts paid m settlement (with Purchaser's prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld 
or delayed) m connection with any such threatened or actual claim, action, suit, demand, proceeding or 
investigation, and m the event of any such threatened or actual claim, action, suit, demand, proceeding or 
investigation (whether asserted or ansing before or after the Effective Time), (A) Chateau, and the 
Surviving Company, the Surviving Partnership, Parent and Purchaser after the Effective Time, shall 
promptly pay expenses m advance of the final disposition of any claim, suit, proceedmg or investigation 
to each Indemmfied Party to the full extent permitted by law, subject to the provision by such Indemnified 
Party of such affirmation as may be required under applicable Maryland law and of an undertakmg to 
reimburse the amounts so advanced in the event of a final non-appealable determination by a court of 
competent jurisdiction that such Indemnified Party is not entitled to such amounts, (B) the Indemnified 
Parties may retam one counsel satisfactory to them and reasonably approved by Purchaser, and Chateau, 
and the Surviving Company, the Surviving Partnership, Parent and Purchaser after the Effective Time, 
shall pay all reasonable fees and expenses of such counsel for the Indemnified Parties within 30 days after 
statements therefor are received (and no other fees and expenses of counsel shall be payable or 
reimbursable pursuant to this Section), and (C) Chateau, the Surviving Company and Purchaser will use 
their respective reasonable best efforts to assist in the vigorous defense of any such matter; provided, 
however, that the Surv1vmg Company and Purchaser shall have no obligation hereunder to any 
Indemnified Party when and if a court of competent jurisdiction shall ultimately determine, and such 
determmatton shall have become final and non-appealable, that indemnification of such Indemnified 
Party m the manner contemplated hereby 1s prohibited by applicable law. Any Indemnified Party wishing 
to claim indemnification under this Section 4.10, upon learning of any such claim, action, suit, demand, 
proceeding or investigation, shall notify promptly Chateau and, after the Effective Time, the Surviving 
Company and Purchaser, thereof; provided that the failure to so promptly notify shall not affect the 
obligations of Chateau, the SUI'Vlvmg Company and Purchaser except and only to the extent such failure 
to so promptly notify prejudices such party. 

(b) Purchaser and the Merger Sub agree that all rights to indemnification existing in favor of, 
and all limitations of the personal hability of, the directors, officers, employees and agents of Chateau and 
the Chateau Subsidianes provided for m the Chateau Charter or Chateau By-laws as in effect as of the 
date hereof with respect to matters occurring prior to the Effective Time, including the Merger, shall 
continue in full force and effect for a period of not less than six years from the Effective Time; provided, 
however, that all rights to mdemmfication m respect of any Claims asserted or made within such period 
shall continue until the disposition of such Claim. Pnor to the Effective Time, Chateau shall purchase an 
extended reporting period endorsement under Chateau 's existing directors' and officers ' liability 

-41-



insurance coverage for Chateau's directors and officers, m a form reasonably acceptable to Chateau 
which shall provide such directors and officers with coverage for six years following the Effective Time 
of not less than the existing coverage under, and have other terms not materially less favorable on the 
whole to, the insured persons than the directors' and officers' liability insurance coverage presently 
maintained by Chateau; provided, however, that in no event shall Purchaser or its affiliates be required to 
expend more than an aggregate amount equal to 500% of the most recent annual premium paid by 
Chateau ( which amount under the current policy is set forth in Section 4.10 of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter), whether expended over time or paid in a lump sum or otherwise, to maintain or procure insurance 
coverage pursuant to this Section 4.10; and, provided, farther that if the annual premiums of such 
insurance coverage exceed such amount, Purchaser shall be obligated to obtam or to cause to be obtained 
a policy with the greatest coverage avatlable for a cost not exceeding such amount. 

(c) Tlus Section 4.10 is intended for the irrevocable benefit of, and to grant third party rights 
to, the Indemnified Parties and shall be bindmg on all successors and assigns of Purchaser, Chateau and 
the Surviving Company. Each of the Indemmfied Parties shall be entitled to enforce the covenants 
contained in this Section 4.10. 

(d) In the event that Purchaser or the Survivmg Company or any of its successors or assigns 
(i) consolidates with or merges into any other Person or entity and shall not be the continuing or 
Surviving Company or entity of such consohdation or merger or (ii) transfers or conveys all or 
substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person or entity, then, and in each such case, proper 
provision shall be made so that the successors and assigns of Purchaser and the Surviving Company, as 
the case may be, assume the obliganons set forth m this Section 4.10. 

SectJ.on 4.11 Assistance. From and after the date of this Agreement, if Purchaser requests, 
Chateau and the Chateau Subsidiaries shall cooperate, and shall use their connnerc1ally reasonable efforts 
to cause Chateau' s attorneys, accountants and other representatives to cooperate, in all reasonable 
respects m connection with any financmg efforts (including the refinancmg or assumption of existing 
Indebtedness) of Purchaser or its Affihates (including proVJding reasonable assistance in the preparation 
of one or more offering circulars, pnvate placement memoranda, registration statements or other offering 
documents relating to debt or equity financing) and any other filmgs that may be made by Purchaser or its 
Affiliates, mcluding, if applicable, with the SEC, all at the sole expense of Purchaser (or its Affiliates). 
Chateau shall reasonably cooperate with Purchaser and the Merger Sub and the Partnership Merger Sub in 
obtaining surveys, title commitments or policies, engineering reports, estoppel certificates, environmental 
reports and appraisals with respect to the Chateau Properties and in otherwise satisfying any of 
Purchaser' s mortgage lenders ' reqmrements (1t being understood that such activities shall be conducted at 
Purchaser 's expense) or the reqmrements of any of Chateau ' or Chateau Subsidiaries' existing mortgage 
lenders. 

Section 4.12 Proxy Solicitor. Chateau shall engage D.F. Kmg as its proxy solicitor to assist in 
the solicitation of proxies from stockholders relating to the Chateau Stock.holder Approval and the 
approval of the OP Umt Holders in connection with the Chateau Partner Approval. 

Section 4.13 Resignations. Upon the wntten request of Purchaser, (i) Chateau shall cause any 
or all of the directors (or persons occupying sunilar positions in any limited liability company or other 
entity) and/or officers of Chateau and each Chateau Subsidiary to resign or be removed or, as to officers, 
to resign or be terminated, effective as of the Closing. 

Section 4.14 Information Supplied. None of Chateau, Chateau OP, Parent or Purchaser shall 
supply information for inclusion or mcorporation by reference in the Proxy Statement that will, at the date 
mailed to Chateau stockholders, at the time of the Chateau Stockholder Meeting or at the Effective Time, 
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contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated 
therein or necessary m order to make the statements therem, in light of the ctrcumstances under which 
they are made, not misleading. None of Chateau, Chateau OP, Parent or Purchaser shall supply 
information for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the Partner Solicitation Materials that will, at 
the date mailed to OP Unit Holders or at the Effective Time, contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the 
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. If at any 
time pnor to the Effective Time any event Wlth respect to Chateau or Chateau OP or the other Chateau 
Subsidiaries, or with respect to other information supplied by Chateau or Chateau OP for inclusion in the 
Proxy Statement or the Partner Solicitation Materials, as the case may be, shall occur which is required to 
be described in an amendment of, or a supplement to, the Proxy Statement or the Partner Solicitation 
Materials, Chateau or Chateau OP, as the case may be, shall so describe such event, and shall promptly 
file such amendment or supplement (if required to be filed) with the SEC. 

Section 4.15 ROC Restructuring. Prior to the Merger and as a condition to its consummation, 
Chateau shall cause ROC to merge with and mto Chateau with Chateau bemg the survivmg company in 
such merger, and the sole merger consideration m such merger received by the stockholders of ROC shall 
be Chateau Common Stock. The maximum aggregate amount of Chateau Common Stock to be issued in 
such merger (other than Chateau Common Stock issued to Chateau, which Chateau Common Stock so 
issued to Chateau shall be cancelled in such merger for no consideration) shall be no more than 1,000 
shares of Chateau Common Stock. 

Sect10n 4.16 Required Financing. Purchaser and Parent agree to arrange the Fmancing (as 
defined herem) and to satisfy the conditions set forth in the Financing Agreements. Purchaser shall keep 
Chateau informed of the status of 1ts arrangements with respect to the Financing. Purchaser shall provide 
wntten notice to Chateau within 24 hours of any matenal developments affecting the status of the 
Financing. 

Section 4.17 Tax Sharmg Arrangements. Any and all existing Tax sharing or similar 
arrangements (whether or not wntten) binding Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary shall be terminated 
immediately prior to the Closing. After the Closing, neither Chateau nor any Chateau Subsidiary 
(including Chateau OP) shall have any rights or liabilities thereunder. 

Section 4.18 Further Assurance Regarding Florida Statute. Chateau and the Chateau 
Subsidiaries shall at any time prior to Closing deliver an affidavit in form and substance reasonably 
acceptable to Purchaser satisfying the requtrements of Florida Statutes Section 723.071 and 723.072 to 
the effect that neither Chateau nor any of the Chateau Subsidiaries has engaged in an "offer" or solicited 
an offer for the assets that are the subject of these transaction. 

ARTICLE V 

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 

Section 5.1 Conditions to Each Party's Obligat10n to Effect the Merger. The respective 
obligat10ns of Chateau and Purchaser to effect the Merger and to consummate the other transactions 
contemplated by the Transaction Documents on the Closing Date are subJect to the satisfaction or waiver 
on or prior to the Closmg Date of the following conditions: 

(a) Stockholders Approval. The Chateau Stockholder Approval shall have been obtained. 

(b) OP Unit Holder Approval. The Chateau Partner Approval shall have been obtained. 
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(c) No Injunctions or Restraints. No temporary restraining order, statute, rule, regulation, 
decree, ruling, prelimmary or permanent mJunction or other order issued by any court of competent 
jurisdiction or other legal restraint or prohibit10n enacted, entered, promulgated, issued or enforced by any 
Governmental Ennty preventing the consummation of the Merger or any of the other transactions or 
agreements contemplated by the Transaction Documents shall be in effect. 

( d) Other Approvals. All consents, approvals, permits and authorizations required to be 
obtained from any Governmental Entity as indicated in Section 2. l(d)(iii) of the Chateau Disclosure 
Letter in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other Transaction 
Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby shall have been 
made or obtained (as the case may be). 

· Section 5 .2 Conditions to Obligations of Parent and Purchaser. The obligations of Parent and 
Purchaser to effect the Mergers and to consummate the other transactions contemplated by the 
Transaction Documents on the Closmg Date are further subject to the following conditions, any one or 
more of which may be waived by Parent and Purchaser: 

(a) Representations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties of Chateau, 
Chateau OP and ROC set forth m this Agreement shall be true and correct (without giving effect to any 
materiality, Chateau Material Adverse Effect or any similar qualification or limitation in any 
representation and warranty (any such quahfication or limitation, a "Chateau Matenality Qualifier")) as of 
the date of this Agreement and on and as of the Closing Date, as though made on and as of the Closing 
Date (except to the extent any representation or warranty is expressly limited by its terms to a specified 
date, the accuracy of whtch will be determined as of such specified date), except where the failure of such 
representations and warranties m the aggregate to be true and correct (without giving effect to any 
Chateau Materiality Qualifier) would not or would not reasonably be likely to have a Chateau Material 
Adverse Effect. 

(b) Performance of Obligations of Chateau. Chateau OP, Chateau and ROC shall have 
performed or complied with all obligations required to be performed or complied with by them under this 
Agreement at or prior to the Effective Time that are subject to a Chateau Materiality Qualifier, and shall 
have performed or complied with in all material respects all obligations required to be performed or 
complied with by them under this Agreement at or prior to the Effective Time that are not so subject to a 
Chateau Materiality Qualifier, and Purchaser shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of Chateau 
by the Chief Executive Officer and the CluefFinancial Officer of Chateau to such effect. 

(c) Matenal Adverse Change. Smee the date of this Agreement, no Chateau Material 
Adverse Effect shall have occurred. Purchaser shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of 
Chateau by the Chief Executive Officer and the Cluef Financial Officer of Chateau to such effect. 

(d) Opinion Relating to REIT and Partnership Status. Purchaser shall have received an 
opinion dated as of the Closing Date of Clifford Chance US LLP, in a form and substance reasonably 
satisfactory to Purchaser, regardmg (a) the qualification of Chateau as a REIT under the Code and (b) the 
classification of Chateau OP as a partnership and not as a publicly traded partnership within the meaning 
of Section 7704(b) of the Code for federal income tax purposes. For purposes of such opinion, Clifford 
Chance US LLP may rely on (in addition to customary exceptions, qualifications assumptions and 
representations for opm1ons of this type) assumptions to the effect that (A) Chateau will satisfy its REIT 
distribution requirements for its final taxable year (as a result of the Merger or otherwise), and (B) no 
action will be taken following the Merger that is mconsistent with Chateau's status as a REIT for any 
period prior to the Merger. 
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(e) Consents. All consents and waivers from third parties necessary, set forth in 
Section 5 .2( e) of the Chateau Disclosure Letter m connection with the consummation of the Merger and 
the other transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents shall have been obtained, other than 
such consents and waivers from third parties, which, if not obtained, would not reasonably be expected to 
have, indiVIdually or in the aggregate, a Chateau Material Adverse Effect. 

(f) FIRPTA Certificates. Purchaser shall have received a FIR.PTA Certificate signed on 
behalf ofChateau by the Chief Executive Officer and the ChiefFmancial Officer of Chateau. 

Section 5.3 Conditions to Obligations of Chateau. The obligations of Chateau OP, Chateau 
and ROC to effect the Mergers and to consummate the other transactions contemplated by the Transaction 
Documents on the Closing Date are further subject to the following conditions, any one or more of which 
may be waived by Chateau: 

(a) Representations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties of Parent, 
Purchaser set forth in this Agreement shall be true and correct (without givmg effect to any materiality, 
Purchaser Material Adverse Effect or any similar qualification or limitation in any representation and 
warranty (any such qualification or limitation, a "Purchaser Materiality Qualifier")) as of the date hereof 
and on and as of the Closing Date, as though made on and as of the Closing Date ( except to the extent any 
representation or warranty is expressly limited by its terms to a specified date, the accuracy of which will 
be determined as of such specified date), except where the failure of such representations and warranties 
to be in the aggregate true and correct (without givmg effect to any Purchaser Materiality Qualifier) 
would not or would not reasonably be hkely to have a Purchaser Material Adverse Effect, and Chateau 
shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of Purchaser by a duly authonzed representative of 
Purchaser, in such capacity, to such effect. 

(b) Performance of Obligations of Purchaser. Parent, Purchaser, Merger Sub and Partnership 
Merger Sub shall have performed or complied with all obligations required to be performed or complied 
with by them under this Agreement at or prior to the Effective Time that are subject to a Purchaser 
Materiality Qualifier, and shall have performed or complied with in all material respects all obligations 
required to be performed or comphed Wlth by them under this Agreement at or prior to the Effective Time 
that are not so subJect to a Purchaser Matenality Quahfier, and Chateau shall have received a certificate 
signed on behalf of Purchaser by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of Purchaser 
to such effect. 

(c) Material Adverse Change. Smee the date of this Agreement, there shall have occurred no 
Purchaser Matenal Adverse Effect. Chateau shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of 
Purchaser by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Purchaser to such effect. 

(d) Opinion Relating to Partnership Status. Chateau shall have received a written opinion of 
Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz or Pircher, Nichols & Meeks addressed to the OP Unit Holders, dated as 
of the Closing Date, in a form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Chateau, regarding the 
classification of Parent and Purchaser either as a disregarded entity or as a partnership and not as an 
association taxable as a corporation for federal income tax purposes. For purposes of such opinion, 
Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz or Pircher, Nichols & Meeks may rely on customary exceptions, 
qualifications, assumptions and representations for opimons of this type. 
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ARTICLE VI 

BOARD ACTIONS 

Section 6.1 Board Actions. Notwithstanding Section 4.6 or any other provision of this 
Agreement to the contrary, pnor to the Effective Time: 

(a) In the event that after the date hereof, Chateau or any Representative of Chateau or any of 
its Affiliates receives an unsolicited bona fide written inquiry or proposal from a third party with respect 
to a Competing Transaction, Chateau shall notify Purchaser orally and in writing (as promptly as 
practicable but in any event within 24 hours) of all of the relevant details relating thereto (including the 
identity of the parties, price and other terms thereof), including any modification, amendment or change 
in respect thereto, includmg relating to a Competing Transaction, and shall promptly furnish to Purchaser 
m writmg a copy of any mqutry or proposal m add1tton to any mformation provided to or by any third 
party relatmg thereto. Chateau may furnish information to, or enter into discussions or negotiations with, 
such third party if, and only to the extent that, (A) the Board of Directors of Chateau after consultation 
with and having considered the advice of independent legal counsel, determines m good faith that 
(x) such Competing Transaction would, if consummated, constitute a Supenor Competing Transaction (as 
defined herein), and (y) such action 1s necessary for the directors of Chateau to comply with their legal 
duties to Chateau's stockholders and OP Umtholders under applicable Law and (B) prior to taking such 
action, Chateau (x) provides reasonable notice to Purchaser (but many event no later than 36 hours before 
taking such action) to the effect that 1t is takmg such action and (y) receives from such third party an 
executed confidentiality or standstill agreement m reasonably customary form, the terms of which, as 
applicable to such third party, in any event are at least as stringent as those apphcable to Purchaser in the 
Confidentiality Agreement. Before providing any information to or entering mto discussions or 
negotiations with any third party in connection with a Competing Transaction by such third party to the 
extent permitted pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence, Chateau shall notify Purchaser of any 
Competing Transaction (including the matenal tenns and conditions thereof and the identity of the person 
making it) as promptly as practicable after its receipt thereof (and in any event, no later than 24 hours 
from receipt), and shall provide Purchaser with a copy of any written Competmg Transaction or 
amendments or supplements thereto, and shall thereafter promptly mform Purchaser of the status of any 
discussions or negotiations wtth such a third party, and any matenal changes to the terms and conditions 
of such Competing Transaction, and shall promptly give Purchaser a copy of any mformation delivered to 
such third party that has not previously been reviewed by Purchaser. Immediately after the execution and 
delivery ofthis Agreement, Chateau will, and will cause its subsidianes and affiliates, and their respective 
Representatives to, cease and terminate any existing activities, discussions or negot1at1ons with any 
parties conducted heretofore with respect to any possible Competing Transaction. Chateau agrees that it 
will take the necessary steps to promptly mform the indivtduals or entities referred to in the first sentence 
hereof of the obligations undertaken in this Section 6.1 (a). Chateau shall keep Purchaser fully apprised of 
the status (including amendments and proposed amendments) of any proposal relating to a Competing 
Transaction on a current basis, including promptly providing to Purchaser copies of any written 
commumcations between Chateau and any Person relating to a Competmg Transaction. 

(b) Notwithstanding Section 4.6 or any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, but 
subject to this Section 6.l(b), the Board of Directors of Chateau may, provided that it gives Purchaser five 
full business days' prior wntten not1ce of its intention to do so, withdraw or modify, or propose to 
withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to Purchaser, its approval or recommendation of this Agreement 
or the Mergers, may approve or recommend a Competing Transaction (or amendment or supplement 
thereto), or cause Chateau or Chateau OP to enter into an agreement w1th respect thereto, if and only to 
the extent that, the Board of Directors of Chateau, after consultation with and havmg considered the 
advice of mdependent legal counsel and an investment bank of nationally recognized reputation, 
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determines in good faith (after takmg mto account any proposal that may have been made by Purchaser at 
such time) that (x) a bona fide written proposal from a third party for a Competmg Transaction received 
after the date hereof that was not, directly or indirectly, imttated, solicited or encouraged or knowingly 
facilitated by Chateau or any Chateau Subsidiary or their respective Representatives is more favorable to 
the stockholders of Chateau and the holders of the OP Units than the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement, and is reasonably capable of being consummated, and (y) such action is necessary for the 
directors of Chateau to comply with their legal duties to the Chateau stockholders and OP Unitholders 
under applicable Law (a "Supenor Competmg Transaction"). Any such withdrawal or modification of 
the recommendation shall not change the approval of the Chateau Board of Directors for purposes of 
causmg any Takeover Statute or other state Law to be inapplicable to the transactions contemplated 
hereby. For purposes of this Section 6. l(b), a Competmg Transaction shall exclude any financing or 
refinancing transaction. 

( c) Nothing contained in this Section 6.1 shall prohibit Chateau from taking and disclosing to 
its stockholders a positron contemplated by Rule 14e-2(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act or from 
making any disclosure to the Chateau stockholders which, in the good faith reasonable judgment of the 
Board of Directors of Chateau, based on the advice of independent legal counsel, is required under 
applicable Law. 

ARTICLE VII 

TERMINATION, AMENDMENT AND WAIVER 

Section 7.1 Termination. Subject to Section 7.2, this Agreement may be terminated at any 
time prior to the filing of the Articles of Merger with the Department, whether before or after the Chateau 
Stockholder Approval is obtained: 

(a) by mutual written consent duly authorized by the Advisory Board of Purchaser and the 
Board of Directors of Purchaser and Chateau; 

(b) by Purchaser, upon a breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on 
the part of Chateau, Chateau OP or ROC set forth m this Agreement, or if any representation or warranty 
of Chateau shall have become untrue, m either case such that the conditions set forth in Section 5.2(a) or 
(b), as the case may be, would be mcapable of being satisfied by December 31, 2003 (as otherwise 
extended by mutual wntten agreement by Chateau and Purchaser, the "Outside Date"); 

(c) by Chateau, upon a breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the 
part of Parent or Purchaser set forth in this Agreement, or if any representanon or warranty of Parent or 
Purchaser, shall have become untrue, in either case such that the conditions set forth in Section 5.3(a) or 
(b), as the case may be, would be incapable of being satisfied by the Outside Date; 

(d) by either Purchaser or Chateau, if any Judgment, mjunct1on, order, decree or action by 
any Governmental Entity of competent authority preventing the consummation of the Merger shall have 
become final and nonappealable; 

(e) by either Purchaser or Chateau, if the Mergers shall not have been consummated before 
the Outside Date; provided, however, that a party that has materially breached a representation, warranty 
or covenant of such party set forth m this Agreement and not cured such breach by the Outside Date shall 
not be entitled to exercise its nght to tennmate under this Section 7 .1 ( e ); 
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(f) by Purchaser 1f, upon a vote at a duly held Chateau Stockholder Meeting, the Chateau 
Stockholder Approval shall not have been obtained, as contemplated by Section 4.l(a), or if the Chateau 
Partner Approval shall not have been obtained, as contemplated by Section 4.2; 

(g) by Chateau, if the Board of Directors of Chateau shall have otherwise fully complied 
with the terms of this Agreement, including pursuant to Section 6.1, but shall have withdrawn, modified 
or qualified m any manner adverse to Purchaser its approval or recommendation of the Merger or this 
Agreement in connection with, or approved or recommended, a Supenor Competing Transaction; or 

(h) by Purchaser, if (1) pnor to the approval of this Agreement at the Chateau Stockholder 
Meeting, the Board of Directors of Chateau shall have withdrawn or modified in any manner adverse to 
Purchaser its approval or recommendation of the Merger or this Agreement m connection with, or 
approved or recommended, any Competing Transact10n, (ii) Chateau or Chateau OP shall have entered 
into any agreement with respect to any Competing Transaction, or (iii) the Board of Directors of Chateau 
shall have resolved to do any of the foregomg. 

A termmating party shall provide written notice of termmation to the other parties specifying with 
particularity the reason for such termmation. If more than one provision in this Section 7.1 is available to 
a terminatmg party in connection with a termination, a terminating party may rely on any and all available 
provisions in this Section 7.1 for any such termination. 

Section 7.2 Expenses. 

(a) Except as otherwise specified m this Section 7.2 or agreed m writing by the parties, all 
out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement, the Mergers and the other 
transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such cost or expense. 

' 
(b) Chateau agrees that 1f this Agreement shall be terminated pursuant to Section 7.l(b) or 

7. l(f) (and in the case of any such tennmation, Purchaser has not materially breached its representations 
and warranties or covenants ( or has cured any such breach prior to the date of the Chateau Stockholder 
Meeting)), then Chateau will pay to Purchaser, or as directed by Purchaser, an amount equal to the 
Purchaser Break-Up Expenses (as defined herein). Chateau also agrees that if this Agreement (i) is 
terminated pursuant to Section 7.l(f) (and in the case of any such termination, Purchaser has not 
matenally breached its representations and warranties or covenants (or has cured any such breach prior to 
the date of the Chateau Stockholder Meeting)) and within one year of any such termination Chateau or 
Chateau OP shall consummate a Competing Transaction or execute a definitive agreement providing for a 
Competing Transaction (but excluding for this purpose a Competing Transaction that is a financing or 
refinancing), (11) 1s termmated pursuant to Section 7. l (g) or (h), or (rn) is terminated pursuant to 
Section 7.l(e) and within one year of any such termination Chateau or Chateau OP shall consummate a 
Competmg Transaction or execute a definitive agreement providing for a Competing Transaction (but 
excluding for this purpose a Competing Transaction that is a financing or refinancing), then, Chateau 
shall pay to Purchaser, or as directed by Purchaser, an amount equal to the Purchaser Break-Up Fee (as 
defined herein) and, if not previously paid, the Purchaser Break-Up Expenses. Payment of any of such 
amounts shall be made, as directed by Purchaser, by wire transfer of immediately available funds 
promptly, but in no event later than two business days after the amount is due as provided herein. For 
purposes of this Agreement, the "Purchaser Break-Up Fee" shall be an amount equal to $40,000,000. For 
purposes of this Agreement, the "Purchaser Break-Up Expenses" shall be an amount equal to Purchaser's 
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the other transactions 
contemplated hereby (i.ncluding all fees and expenses of attorneys, accountants, investment bankers, 
experts, financing sources and other advisors and consultants) but in no event in an amount greater than 
$15,000,000. Payment of any of such amounts shall be made, as directed by Purchaser, by wire transfer 
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of immediately available funds promptly, but in no event later than two busmess days after the amount is 
due as provided herein, or, m the event of any termination by Chateau, simultaneously with and as a 
condition to the effechveness of such termination. 

(c) If this Agreement shall be termmated pursuant to Sechon 7.l(c), then Purchaser 
thereupon shall be liable to pay to Chateau an amount equal to the Chateau Break-Up Expenses. For 
purposes of this Agreement, the "Chateau Break-Up Expenses" shall be an amount equal to the lesser of 
(i) Chateau's out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby (mcludmg all fees and expenses of attorneys, accountants, investment bankers, 
experts, financing sources and other advisors and consultants) but m no event in an amount greater than 
$5,000,000 (such amount bemg referred to in this Section 7.2(c) as the "Chateau Expense Base Amount") 
and (ii) the sum of (A) the maximum amount that can be paid to Chateau without causing it to fail to meet 
the REIT Requirements determined as if the payment of such amount did not constitute income described 
in Section 856(c)(2) and (3) of the Code ("Qualifying Income"), as determined by independent 
accountants to Chateau and (B) in the event Chateau receives a Chateau Break-Up Tax Opinion indicating 
that either (x) Chateau's receipt of the Chateau Expense Base Amount would either constitute Qualifying 
Income or would be excluded from Chateau's gross income for purposes of Section 856(c)(2) and (3) of 
the Code (the "REIT Regu1rements") or that receipt by Chateau of the remaming balance of the C}J.ateau 
Expense Base Amount following the receipt of and pursuant to such ruling would not be deemed 
constructively received prior thereto or (y) m outside counsel's opinion the receipt by Chateau of the 
Chateau Expense Base Amount should not cause Chateau to fail to qualify as a REIT, the Chateau 
Expense Base Amount less the amount payable under clause (A) above. In the event that Chateau is not 
able to receive the full Chateau Expense Base Amount, Purchaser shall place the unpaid amount (i.e., the 
difference between the Chateau Expense Base Amount and the Chateau Break-Up Expenses) in escrow 
and shall not release any portion thereof to Chateau unless and until Purchaser receives any one or 
combination of the followmg: (i) a letter(s) from Chateau's outside counsel or independent accountants 
mdicating the maximum amount that can be paid at that time to Chateau without causmg Chateau to fat! 
to meet the REIT Requirements for any relevant taxable year, together with an IRS ruling or opinion of 
tax counsel to the effect that such payment would not be treated as included m income for any prior 
taxable year, in which event such maximum amount shall be paid to Chateau, or (ii) a Chateau Break-Up 
Tax Opinion ind1catmg that either Chateau' s receipt of the Chateau Expense Base Amount would satisfy, 
in whole or m part, the REIT Requirements or Chateau's receipt of the Chateau Expense Base Amount 
should not cause Chateau to fail to qualify as a REIT, in which event Purchaser shall pay to Chateau the 
unpaid Chateau Expense Base Amount or the maximum amount stated m the letter referred to in (i) 
above. Purchaser's obligation to pay any unpaid portion of the Chateau Break-Up Expenses (provided 
Purchaser has otherwise complied with its obligations under this provision) shall tenninate (and any 
amount still held in such escrow shall be released to Purchaser) on the date that is five years from the date 
the Chateau Break-Up Expenses first become due under this Agreement. 

(d) The foregoing provis10ns of this Section 7.2 have been agreed to by each of the parties 
hereto in order to induce the other parties to enter mto this Agreement and to consummate the Mergers 
and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, it being agreed and aclrnowledged by each of 
them that the execution of this Agreement by them constitutes full and reasonable consideration for such 
provisions. 

(e) In the event that either Purchaser or Chateau is requ1red to file suit to seek all or a portion 
of the amounts payable under this Section 7.2, and such party prevails in such litigation, such party shall 
be entitled to all expenses, includmg attorneys ' fees and expenses, which it has incurred in enforcing its 
nghts under this Section 7.2. 
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Section 7 .3 Effect of Termination. In the event of termination of this Agreement by either 
Chateau or Purchaser as provided in Section 7 .1, this Agreement shall forthwith become void and have no 
effect, without any liability or obligation on the part of Purchaser or Chateau, other than the last sentence 
of Section 4.3, Section 7 .2, this Section 7.3 and Article VIIl and except to the extent that such termination 
results from a willful breach by a party of any of 1ts representations, warranties, covenants or agreements 
set forth m this Agreement or a failure or refusal by such party to consummate the transactions 
contemplated hereby when such party was obligated to do so in accordance with the terms hereof. 

Section 7.4 Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by the parties in writmg by 
action of their respective Boards of Directors at any time before or after the Chateau Stockholder 
Approval is obtained and prior to the filing of the Articles of Merger for the Merger with the Department; 
provided, however, that, after the Chateau Stockholder Approval is obtained, no such amendment, 
modification or supplement shall alter the amount or change the form of the Merger Consideration to be 
delivered to Chateau's stockholders or alter or change any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement if 
such alteration or change would adversely affect Chateau's stockholders. 

Section 7.5 Extension; Waiver. At any time prior to the Effective Time, each of Chateau and 
Purchaser may (a) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts of the other 
party, (b) waive any inaccuracies in the representations and warranties of the other party contained in this 
Agreement or m any document delivered pursuant to this Agreement or (c) subJect to the provisions of 
Section 7.4, waive compliance with any of the agreements or conditions of the other party contained in 
this Agreement. Any agreement on the part of a party to any such extension or waiver shall be vahd only 
tf set forth in an instrument m wnting signed on behalf of such party. The failure of any party to this 
Agreement to assert any of its nghts under this Agreement or otherwise shall not constitute a waiver of 
those rights. 

ARTICLE VIII 

GEI\"ERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 8.1 Nonsurvival of Representations and Warranties. None of the representations and 
warranties m this Agreement or m any instrument delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the 
Effective Time. This Section 8.1 shall not limit any covenant or agreement of the parties which by its 
terms contemplates performance after the Effective Time. 

Section 8.2 Notices. All notices, requests, claims, demands and other communications under 
this Agreement shall be m writing and shall be deemed given if delivered personally, sent by overnight 
courier (providmg proof of delivery) to the parties or sent by telecopy (proVldmg confirmation of 
transmission) at the following addresses or telecopy numbers ( or at such other address or telecopy number 
for a party as shall be specified by hke notice): 

(a) 1f to Purchaser or Parent, to 

Hometown America, L.L.C. 
150 North Wacker Drive 
Suite 800 
Chicago, IL 60606 
Attn: Thomas J. Coorsh 
Fax: (312) 499-3601 
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with a copy to: 

Wachtell, Liyton, Rosen & Katz 
51 West 52n Street 
New York, NY 10019 
Attn: Adam 0. Emmerich, Esq. 
Fax: (212) 403-2234 

(b) 1f to Chateau or Chateau OP or ROC to 

Chateau Communities, Inc. 
6160 South Syracuse Way 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
Attn: Rees F. Davis 
Fax: (303) 741-3715 

with a copy to: 

Clifford Chance US LLP 
200 Park A venue 
New York, NY 10166 
Attn: Jay L. Bernstein, Esq. 

Roger D. Singer, Esq. 
Fax: (212) 878-8375 

Section 8.3 Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to a Section, such 
reference shall be to a Section of this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. The table of contents and 
headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the 
meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. Whenever the words "include," "includes" or "including" 
are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words "without limitation." 

Section 8.4 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all 
of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when one or more 
counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties. 

Section 8.5 Entire Agreement: No Third-Party Benefic1anes. This Agreement, the 
Confidentiality Agreement and the other agreements entered into in connection with the transactions 
(1) constitute the entire agreement and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both written 
and oral, between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and, (ii) except for the 
provisions of Article I and Sections 4.9(a) and (b) and 4.10, are not intended to confer upon any Person 
other than the parties hereto any nghts or remedies. 

Section 8.6 Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Tnal. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE 
GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF 
MARYLAND WITHOUT REGARD TO ANY APPLICABLE PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF 
LAW. EACH PARTY HERETO IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN 
ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT 
OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE ACTIONS 
OF SUCH PARTY IN THE NEGOTIATION, ADMINISTRATION, PERFORl\.fANCE AND 
ENFORCEMENT THEREOF. 
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Section 8.7 Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or 
obligations under this Agreement shall be assigned or delegated, in whole or m part, by operation of Law 
or otherwise by any of the parties without the prior wntten consent of the other parties. Subject to the 
preceding sentence, this Agreement will be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, 
the parties and their respective successors and assigns. 

Section 8.8 Enforcement. The parties agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event 
that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their specific terms 
or were otherwise breached. It is accordmgly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to an injunction or 
mjuncttons to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions of 
this Agreement in any court of the United States located in the State of Maryland or in any Maryland 
State court, this being m addit10n to any other remedy to which they are entitled at Law or in equity. In 
addition, each of the parties hereto (1) consents to submit itself exclusively to the personal jurisdiction of 
the Umted States District Court in Maryland or any Maryland State court as well as the jurisdiction of any 
court from which an appeal may be taken from such courts m the event any dispute arises out of this 
Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including for the purpose of any 
litigation, proceeding or other action arising out of such party's obligations under or with respect to this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and (ti) agrees that 1t will not attempt to deny or 
defeat such personal jurisdiction by motion or other request for leave from any such court and expressly 
waives any and all objections such party may have to venue in such courts. 

Section 8.9 Exhibits; Disclosure Letter. All Exhibits and Schedules attached herein and the 
Chateau Disclosure Letter are intended to be and hereby are specifically made a part of this Agreement. 

Section 9.1 

ARTICLE IX 

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS 

Certain Definitions. 

"Affiliate" of any Person means another Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more 
mtermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such first Person. 

"Chateau Employee Benefit Plans" means all "employee benefit plans," as defined m 
Section 3(3) of ERISA, Chateau Pension Plans and all other employee compensation and benefit plans, 
agreements, programs, arrangements, or practices, mcludmg severance pay, payroll practices, sick leave, 
vacation pay, salary contmuation for disability, consulting or other compensation agreements, retirement, 
deferred compensation, bonus (including any retention bonus plan), long-term incentive, stock option, 
stock purchase, hospitalization, medical msurance, hfe insurance and scholarship programs, in each case 
that is sponsored or maintamed by Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidiaries or with respect to which 
Chateau or any of the Chateau Subsidianes is a party, is obligated to contribute, or has any liability 
(contingent or otherwise). 

"Chateau Subsidiary" means Chateau OP and each other Subsidiary (as defined herein) of 
Chateau. 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"FIRPTA Certificate" shall mean a certificate m form and substance reasonably satisfactory to 
Purchaser duly executed and acknowledged certifying facts that would exempt from any withholding 
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requirement under Section 1445 of the Code any consideration distributed in or in connection with the 
Mergers for any United States real property interests being transferred pursuant to this Agreement. 

"Indebtedness" shall mean with respect to any Person, without duplication (a) all indebtedness of 
such Person for borrowed money, whether secured or unsecured, (b) all obligations of such Person under 
such conditional sale or other title retention agreements relating to property purchased by such Person, (c) 
all lease obligations (capital or other) of such Person, (d) all obligat10ns of such Person under interest rate 
or currency hedging transact10ns (valued at the termmation value thereof), (e) all guarantees of such 
Person of any such indebtedness of any other Person, and (f) any agreements to provide any of the 
foregoing. 

"Knowledge" where used herem with respect to Chateau and any Chateau Subsidiary shall mean 
the actual (and not constructive or imputed) knowledge, after reasonable investigation, of the persons 
named in Section 9.1 of the Chateau Disclosure Letter and where used with respect to Parent and 
Purchaser shall mean the actual (and not constructive or imputed) knowledge, after reasonable 
mvestigation, of Richard G. Cline, Jr. , Thomas J. Coorsh, and Patnck C. Zihs. 

"Law" means any statute, law, regulation, rule, order, decree, code, judgment, ordinance 
(including zonmg law or building code) or any other applicable requirement of any Governmental Entity 
applicable to Purchaser or Chateau or any of their respective Subsidianes or any of the Chateau 
Properties. 

"Letter" has the meaning set forth on Schedule 9 .1 

"Limited Partner Tax Agreements" shall mean any agreement pursuant to which (a) any liability 
to partners in Chateau OP or to any transferors of property to Chateau or any of its Subsidiaries relating to 
Taxes may arise, whether or not as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement; (b) Chateau or any of its Subsidianes have agreed to any or all of the following: (1) maintain 
a minimum level of debt or continue a part1cular debt, (ti) retain or not dispose of assets for a period of 
time that has not smce expired, (ni) make or refrain from making Tax elections, (1v) operate (or refram 
from operating) in a particular manner, (v) only dispose of assets m a particular manner; or (c) limited 
partners of a partnership have guaranteed debt of the Chateau OP or any other partnership or agreed to 
indemnify another person for a liab1hty of or that relates to a partnership. 

"Person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, 
association, trust, unincorporated organization or other entity. 

"Purchaser Subsidiary" means the Merger Sub and each other Subsidiary of Purchaser. 

"Subsidiary" of any Person means any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, Joint 
venture or other legal entity of which such Person ( either directly or through or together with another 
Subsidiary of such Person) owns 50% or more of the voting stock, value of or other equity interests 
(voting or non-voting) of such corporation, partnership, hmited liability company, joint venture or other 
legal entity. For purposes of tlus Agreement, Chateau OP, ROC and each of their Subsidiaries, and any 
title holding companies controlled by any of them or Chateau shall be deemed a Subsidiary of Chateau. 

"Tax" or "Taxes" Tax shall mean any federal, state, local and foreign income, gross receipts, 
license, withholding, property, recording, stamp, sales, use, franchise, employment, payroll, excise, 
environmental and other taxes, tariffs or governmental charges of any nature whatsoever, together with 
penalties, interest or additions thereto, whether disputed or not. 
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"Tax Return" shall mean any return, declaration, report, claim for refund, or information return or 
statement relating to Taxes, includmg any schedule or attachment thereto, and including any amendment 
thereof. 

"Voting Debt" shall mean bonds, debentures, notes or other Indebtedness havtng the right to vote 
(or convertible into, or exchangeable for, secunt1es havmg the right to vote) on any matters on which 
holders of equity interests m Chateau, any Chateau Subsidiary, Purchaser or the Merger Sub, as 
applicable, may vote. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Hometown America, LLC, Hometown America Holdings, L.L.C., 
Chatcau Communities, Inc, ROC Communities, Inc. and CP Limited Partnership have caused thii 
Agreement to be signed by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized, all as of the date first 
written above. 

HOMETOWN AMERICA, L.L.C. 

By: Hometown Residential Manager, L.L.C., 
a Delaw re Limited Liability Company, 
Mana 

HOMETOWN AMERJCA HOLDINGS, L.L.C. 

By: Hometown Residential Manager, L.L.C., 
a Delaware Limited Liability Company, 
Mana r 

CHA TEAU COMMUNITIES, INC. 

By: e:::::::::::::: ~ 
Frame: Rees F. Davis, Jr. 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

ROC COMMUNITIES, INC. 

By: ~ ~ 
Name: Rees F. Davis, Jr. 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

CP LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

By: Chatcau Communities, Inc., its general partner 
and ROC Communities, lnc., its other general 
partner 

By:~~ 
Name: Rees F. Davis, Jr. 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
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AGREEMENT AS TO TRANSFER OF 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION CERTIFICATED UTILITIES 

This AGREEMENT AS TO TRANSFER OF FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMMISSION CERTIFICATED UTILITIES (this "Agreement"), is dated as of July 14, 2003, 
by and among Hometown America, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company ("Purchaser"), 
Hometown America Holdings, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company and a member of 
Purchaser ("Parent"), CP Limited Partnership, a Maryland limited partnership ("Chateau OP"), 
Chateau Communities, Inc., a Maryland corporation and a general partner of Chateau OP 
("Chateau"), and ROC Communities, Inc., a Maryland corporation and the other general partner 
of Chateau OP ("ROC"), whereby the parties agree as follows: 

RECITALS 

1. Purchaser, Parent, Chateau OP, Chateau and ROC are parties to that certain 
Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of May 29, 2003 (together with related agreements, the 
"Merger Agreement"). 

2. Parent and Purchaser have formed two Maryland limited liability companies 
(referred to herein as the "Merger Sub" and the "Partnership Merger Sub") both of which are 
wholly-owned by Purchaser. 

3. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Chateau will be merged with and 
into the Merger Sub, with the Merger Sub continuing as the surviving entity in the merger (the 
"Merger"). Chateau is holder of the following FPSC certificate of authorization: 

Wastewater certificate No. 298-S m Lee County, Florida, providing 
wastewater service to the Del Tura community. 

4. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, immediately prior to the Merger, 
Partnership Merger Sub shall merge with and into Chateau OP (the "Partnership Merger" and 
together with the Merger the "Mergers"), with Chateau OP the surviving entity. Chateau OP is 
the general partner of CWS Communities LP. CWS Communities LP will survive the 
Partnership Merger. CWS Communities LP is the holder of the following FPSC certificates of 
authonzation: 

a. Water certificate No. 518-W in Lake County, Florida, providing water 
service to the Haselton Village Mobile Home Park. 

b. Water certificate No. 277-W and wastewater certificate No. 223-S in 
Seminole County, Florida, providing service as CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley to, 
inter alia, Palm Valley Mobile Home Park. 

c. Water certificate No. 525-W and wastewater certificate 454-S in 
Highlands County, Florida, providing water and wastewater service as CWS Communities LP 
d/b/a Crystal Lake Club to Crystal Lake Mobile Home Park. 
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5. Section 367.071 (1), Fla. Stat. (2002), specifies that no utility shall sell, assign, or 
transfer its certificate of authorization, facilities or any portion thereof, or majority organizational 
control (hereinafter referred to as "Transfer") without detennination and approval of the Florida 
Public Service Commission ("FPSC") that said Transfer is in the public interest and that the 
buyer, assignee, or transferee will fulfill the commitments, obligations, and representations of the 
utility; however a Transfer may occur prior to FPSC approval if the contract for said Transfer is 
made contingent upon FPSC approval; 

6. It is expected that the majority organizational control of each certificated utility 
listed in paragraphs 3.a. and 4.a. - c. above (the "Certificated Utilities'') will change on the date 
of the consummation of the Merger m accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement; and 

7. The parties desire to Transfer the Certificated Utihties prior to FPSC approval 
consistent with the provisions of§ 367.071(1), Fla. Stat. (2002) in the event FPSC approval is 
not obtained prior to the consummation of the Merger; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings 
contained herein, subject to and on the terms and conditions herein set forth, and in recognition 
of the requirements of§ 367.071(1), Fla. Stat. (2002), and the authority of the FPSC, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

1. In the event FPSC approval 1s not obtained prior to the consummation of the 
Merger, Transfer of the Certificated Utiht1es will be made contingent upon FPSC approval. 

2. This Agreement has no effect upon the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by the Merger Agreement, except to the extent it pertains to the Transfer of the 
Certificated Utilities. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this 
Agreement does not amend or modify any of the terms of the Merger Agreement, and in the 
event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the 
Merger Agreement, the tenns of the Merger Agreement shall control. 

3. If one or more applications for Transfer are not approved by the FPSC, then (i) 
only the Transfer relating directly to the particular Certificated Utility at issue shall be affected; 
and (ii) until such application or applications for Transfer are approved, Chateau shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to assist Purchaser in securing the <lpproval of the FPSC to the 
Transfer. 

[The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank] 
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rN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been signed by a duly authorized officer 
and on behalf of each of the parties hereto as of the date first written above. 

TAL:4395&:l 

HO:tvmTOWN AMERICA, L.L.C. 

HOMETOWN A1v1ERICA HOLDINGS, L.L.C. 

By: Hometown Residential M$ager, L.L.C., 
a Delaware limited liability company, 
Mana r 



ClIATEAU COMMUNITIE.S, INC. 

By: _-.- < ~ 

Name: Rees F. Davis, J-,:. 
TitI.e: Chieflru:cutive Officer 

ROC COM.MUNmES. iNC. 

~-~ By. 
Name: Ree$ F. Da~ Jr. 
Title: Cb:id'Executi.ve Officer 

CP LIMITED PAR'INERSHIP 

By: Chateau Communiti~ Inc., its geneial partner 
and ROC Comnnmities_ Inc.~ its other general 
partner 

B ~..h_.. y: 
Name: Rees F. Dav.is, Ir. 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
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al/ ERNST & YOUNG • Ernst & Young UP 
Sears Tower 
233 South Wacker Drive 
Chicago, Ill inois 60606-6301 

Report of Independent Auditors 

The Members 
Hometown America, L.L.C. 

• Phone: (312) 879-2000 
www.ey.com 

We have audited the accompanying historical-cost consolidated balance sheets of 
Hometown America, L.L.C. (the Company) as of September 18, 2002 and December 31, 
2001, and the related historical-cost consolidated statements of operations, changes in 
members' capital, and cash flows for the period from January 1, 2002 through 
September 18, 2002, and the year ended December 31, 200 L We have also audited the 
supplemental current•value consolidated balance sheets of Hometown America, L.L.C. as 
of September 18, 2002 and December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the historical-cost financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Hometown America, L.L.C. as 
of September 18, 2002 and December 31, 2001, and the consolidated results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the period from January 1, 2002 through September 18, 
2002, and the year ended December 31, 2001, in confomrity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States. 

As described in Note 14, the supplemental current-value consolidated balance sheets have 
been prepared by management to present relevant financial information that is not 
provided by the historical-cost consolidated financial statements and are not intended to 
be a presentation in confomrity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. In addition, the supplemental current-value consolidated balance sheets do 
not purport to present the net realizable, liquidation, or market value of the Company as a 
whole; however, the revaluation capital of the Company in 2002 is reflective of a 
purchase transaction on September 19, 2002. 

0211-0363915 A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Globa l 1 
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El.I ERNST & YOUNG • Ernst & Young LLP 

In our opinion, the supplemental current-value consolidated balance sheets referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein on the basis 
of accounting described in Note 14. 

February 21, 2003 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

September 18 
2002 

Historical- Current-
Cost Basis Value Basis 

Assets 
Investment in rental property: 

Land $ 63,950,500 $ -
Buildings 66,956,700 
Land improvements 212,827,500 
Construction in process 828,000 

344,562,700 428,603,600 
Accumulated depreciation (3919841700) 

Net investment in rental property 304,578,000 428,603,600 

Rental property held for sale 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,953,400 2,953,400 
Notes receivable, net 3,420,100 3,420,100 
Inventory 5,750,300 5,750,300 
Rents, interest, and other receivables 930,300 930,300 
Deferred financing costs, net 2,366,800 
Corporate fixed assets, net 1,843,300 1,843,300 
Escrow deposits 50,000 50,000 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 611691800 611691800 
Total assets $328,062,000 $449,720,800 

Liabilities and members' capital 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued 
expenses $ 3,334,600 $ 3,334,600 

Accrued real estate taxes 2,992,600 2,992,600 
Rents received in advance and 

security deposits 3,698,000 3,698,000 
Mortgage notes payable 215,308,500 212,941,700 
Capital lease obligations 10,418,700 10,418,700 
Revolving credit facilities 55,814,700 55,814,700 
Convertible notes payable 2,074,400 2,074,400 
Preference units 514332500 5,433,500 

Total liabilities 299,075,000 296,708,200 
Minority interests 54,000 54,000 
Members' capital 28,933,000 
Revaluation capital - Current-value 

basis 152!958,600 

December 31 
2001 

Historical- Current-
Cost Basis Value Basis 

$ 58,200,400 $ 
60,538,900 

193,089,200 
330,000 

312,158,500 362,247,900 
(29,753,900) 
282,404,600 362,247,900 

19,200,000 19,200,000 
1,399,000 1,399,000 
3,563,700 3,563,700 
5,870,700 5,870,700 
1,466,500 1,466,500 
2,168,800 
2,139,700 2,139,700 

125,000 125,000 
4,051,200 3,962,300 

$322,389,200 $399,974,800 

$ 4,075,700 $ 4,075,700 
1,182,600 1,182,600 

2,559,300 2,559,300 
206,603,700 208,417,500 

10,419,100 10,419,100 
54,186,800 54,186,800 

2,141,000 2,141,000 
1,929,800 1,929,800 

283,098,000 284,911,800 
54,000 54,000 

39,237,200 

115,009,000 
Total liabilities and members' capital $328,062,000 $449,720,800 $322,389,200 $399,974,800 

See accompanying notes. 
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I 
I Hometown America, L.L.C. 

I Consolidated Statements of Operations 

I Period from 
January 1, 2002 

I 
through Year ended 

September 18, December 31, 
2002 2001 

Revenues: 

I Rental income $32,235,700 $41,017,000 
Interest and other income 211,700 536,400 
Management fees (third party) 712400 105,700 

I Total revenues 32,518,800 41,659,100 

Expenses: 

I 
Property operating and maintenance 8,326,600 10,391 ,100 
General and administrative 2,029,400 3,300,700 
Real estate taxes and insurance 3,037,600 3,765,200 
Portfolio management 407,500 508,000 

I Property management 1,695,400 2,093,300 
Restructuring costs 912,600 

Total operating expenses 1524962500 20,970,900 

I Operating income 17,022,300 20,688,200 
Less: Interest expense 1126862700 17,723,200 
Income before home sales operations, impairment 

I 
of investment in rental property, and depreciation 
and amortization 5,335,600 2,965,000 

I 
Results from home sales operation: 

Net proceeds from home sales 7,383,500 17,446,100 
Less: 

Cost of goods sold (5,375,400) (15,064,800) 

I General and administrative (1,502,700) (3,969,300) 
Inventory valuation adjustment {430,900~ 

Sales operations 5052400 {2,018,900} 

I 
Income before impairment of investment in 

rental property, and depreciation and 
amortization 5,841,000 946,100 

Impairment of investment in rental property 4,343,000 3,012,700 

I Depreciation 10,959,200 14,262,500 
Amortization 541,600 787,400 
Depreciation of corporate fixed assets 369,600 287,000 

I Amortization of other Carlsberg assets 882800 133,200 
Net loss $(10,461,200) $(17,536,700) 

I See accompanying notes. 
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- - --- ............... -------------
Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members' Capital 

State Street 
Bankaod 

Public Trost William 
Northwestern Employees' Company,as Hometown Traoswestern Washington Gearyaod 
Mutual Lire Retirement Allstate Life Trustee of America Hometown State Carlsberg Total 
Insurance Association Insurance Ameritech Communities, AmericaJ lmestmeot AITdiated Other Members' 
Comean.t: of Colorado Compan! Pension Trust Inc.. L.L.C. Board Entities Investors Ca~ital 

Balaoce al 
January l, 2001 $5,889,900 $7.362,300 $7,.362,300 $7,362,300 $441,700 $1,767.000 $16,197,200 $374,600 $ - $46,757,300 

Contributions l,269,800 1,587,300 1,587,300 I.587,300 95,200 38l,OOO 3.492.100 - 16,600 10,016,.600 
Net loss (2,210,500) (2,763,200) (2,763,200) (2. 763,200~ (165,800) (<i63,200) (6,079,000) (126,900) {1,700) (17,536,700) 
Balance at 

December 31, 200 l 4,949,200 6,186,400 6,186,400 6,186,400 371,100 1,484,800 13,610,300 247,700 14,900 39,237,200 
Con1ribu1ions - - - - - - - - 157,000 157,000 
Ne,t l.oss (1,316,200) 02645~00) (l264St200) (116452200) ,(98,700) (3941900) (3,619!600) (75,600) (20,600} (10,461,200) 
Balance at 

September 18. 2002 $3,633,000 $4,541,200 $4,541,200 $4,541,300 $272,400 $1,089,900 $ 9,990,700 _t112,!_00 _ $151,300 $28,933,000 

See accompan yi11g notes. 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash F1ows 

Operating activities 
Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Impairment of investment in real estate 
Write-down of inventory to market 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Inventory 
Rents, interest, and other receivables 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 
Accrued real estate taxes 
Rents received in advance and security deposits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Acquisitions of properties 
Proceeds from sale of property 
Land sales at properties 
Disposition of other fixed assets 
Capital improvements 
Purchase of corporate fixed assets 
Escrow deposits on pending acquisitions 
Application of escrow deposits on closed acquisitions 
Purchases of notes receivable 
Principal collections on notes receivable 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing activities 
Capital contributions from members 
Other capital contributions 
Proceeds from revolving credit facilities 
Payments on revolving credit facilities 
Proceeds from properties financed 
Principal payments on mortgage notes payable 
Payment of deferred financing costs 
Net cash provided by fmancing activities 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Supplemental disclosure 
Cash paid for interest 

Summary of noncash investing and financing activities 
Transfer of rental property held for sale 

See accompanying notes. 
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Period from 
January 1, 2002 

through 
September 18, 

2002 

$(10,461,200) 

4,343,000 

11,328,800 
630,400 

120,400 
536,200 

(2,207,400) 
(741,100) 

1,810,000 
111381700 
6,497,800 

(34,531,900) 
19,200,000 

728,500 

(3,674,200) 
(73,200) 

(3,627,000) 
3,702,000 
(327,700) 
4711300 

(18,132,200) 

157,000 
58,423,800 

(56,795,900) 
29,838,000 

(17,694,500) 
(73916002 

13,1881800 
1,544,400 
1,3991000 

$ 2;953,400 

$11,723,000 

$ 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2001 

$(17,536,700) 

3,012,700 
430,900 

14,549,500 
920,600 

885,400 
(480,100) 
645,800 

(141,000) 
144,500 
589,700 

3,021,300 

(72,932,600) 

5,190,800 
237,000 

(5,613,000) 
(311,500) 

(1,311,000) 
1,907,000 
(267,300) 
343,100 

(72,757,500) 

10,000,000 
16,600 

30,040.200 
(43 ,727,100) 
81,239,800 
(7,144,100) 
p,187,3002 
69,238,100 

(498,100) 
1,897,100 

$ 1,399,000 

$ 18,230,400 

$ 19,200,000 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

September 18, 2002 

1. Organization of the Company and Basis of Presentation 

Hometown America, L.L.C. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the Company), 
was formed on December 15, 1997 (inception), as a Delaware Limited Liability 
Company. The Company was fonned for the purpose of acquiring, developing, holding, 
and operating manufactured housing communities. 

At September 18, 2002, the Company owned 38 properties (the Properties) located in 
13 states concentrated primarily in the Midwest and Southeast, consisting of 13,435 
developed sites. The Company also receives a fee for managing one other community 
with 130 sites for an unrelated third-party owner. In addition, the Company participates 
in 2 ground lease agreements in which the Company manages the properties, consisting 
of 345 total sites, and retains all income generated by these properties. 

The operations of the Company are conducted through certain entities that are owned or 
controlled by the Company. Hometown America, L.L.C. is the entity through which the 
Company conducts substantially all of its operations. Hometown America Communities, 
Inc. (Manager), a 1 % member of the Company, provides management services to the 
Company. Hometown America Management, L.L.C. provides ancillary services with 
respect to the Properties, including home sales and resale brokerage, home financing, and 
other resident services. The Company's home sales operations are conducted at each 
community, under Hometown America Management, L.P. This activity is treated as a 
separate reporting segment. 

Members are issued Operating Company Units (OC Units) evidencing each member's 
equity interest in the Company. Net income or loss for the period is generally allocated to 
all members in proportion to each member's share of the outstanding OC Units issued. 

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement, if during 
any fiscal year there is a change in any member's ownership of OC Units, the allocation 
of net income and loss shall be determined by the Manager by any method deterotined by 
the Manager to take into account the members' varying interests. In 2002 and 2001, 
allocations of losses are based upon each member's ownership interest in the Company at 
September 18, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively. 

0211·0363915 7 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Organization of the Company and Basis of Presentation (continued} 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company and all majority-owned or controlled subsidiaries. All material intercompany 
accounts between majority-owned or controlle-d subsidiaries are eliminated. Included in 
minority interest is a 2% interest held by an affiliate of Newport Pacific Capital 
Company, Inc., which is the Company's managing minority partner in Mesa Ridge, 
L.L.C. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Rental Property 

Rental property is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. In accordance with 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment 
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets", the Company evaluates rental properties for 
impairment when conditions exist that may indicate that it is probable that the sum of 
expected future cash flows (undiscounted) from a rental property is less than its carrying 
value. Upon determination that a permanent impairment has occurred, rental properties 
are reduced to fair market value. 

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets. The Company uses a 40-year estimated life for buildings acquired and a 15-year 
estimated life for structural and land improvements, a 10 to 15 year estimated life for 
building upgrades and a 3 to 7 year estimated life for furniture, fixtures and equipment. 
Expenditures for ordinary maintenance and repairs are expensed to operations as incurred 
and significant renovations and improvements that improve the asset and/or extend the 
useful life of the asset are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful life. 

021 !-0363915 8 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ( continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Corporate Fixed Assets 

Corporate fixed assets consist of furniture, fixtures, and equipment. Depreciation is 
computed on a straight-line basis over a 3 to 7 year estimated useful life. Accumulated 
depreciation at September 18, 2002, and December 31, 2001, was $1,321,000 and 
$951.400, respectively. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid accounts and investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less, to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash 
in bank deposit accounts, which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The 
Company believes that it is not ex.posed to any significant concentrations of credit risks 
on cash and cash equivalents. 

Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable generally are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balance, net of 
any unamortized discounts. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. 
Discounts are amortized to income using the effective interest method. 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market and consists of new and used 
manufactured homes, including all set up costs and amenities. 

Deferred Financing Costs 

Deferred financing costs include fees and costs, such as appraisal, ongmation and 
attorney fees, and loan points, incurred to obtain long.term financing. Deferred financing 
costs are amonized over the tenns of the respective loans. Unamonized deferred 
financing fees are expensed when debt is retired before the maturity date. Amortization 
expense related to deferred financing costs was $541,600 for the period from January 1, 
2002 through September 18, 2002, and $787,400 for the year ended December 31, 2001. 

0211-0363915 9 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Income Taxes 

No provision is made in the accompanying financial statements for federal, state, or local 
income taxes as each member is individually responsible for reporting its proportionate 
share of the Company's income or loss. 

Revenue Recognition 

Rental income attributable to leases is recorded when earned from tenants. Leases entered 
into by tenants range from month-to-month to one year and are renewable by mutual 
agreement of the Company and resident or, in some cases, as provided by statute. Sales of 
manufactured homes are recorded and profit is recognized when the sale has been 
completed and the Company has received full payment for the home. 

Options and Warrants 

The Company has elected to apply the prov1S1ons of Accounting Principles Board 
Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" (APB 25), in the 
computation of compensation expense. Under APB 25's intrinsic value method, 
compensation expense is determined by computing the excess of the estimated market 
price of the OC units over the exercise price on the measurement date. For options, there 
is no intrinsic value on the measurement date and no compensation expense is 
recognized. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of 
Financial Instruments" requires disclosure of fair value infonnation about financial 
instruments, whether or not recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. Considerable 
judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value. 
Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts 
that the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market 
assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated 
fair value amounts. 

021 1-036391, 10 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

In the normal course of business, the Company invests in various financial assets and 
incurs financial liabilities. The fair value estimates of financial instruments presented 
below are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company might pay or 
receive in actual market transactions. As a number of the Company's significant assets 
and liabilities are not considered financial instruments, the disclosures below do not 
reflect fair value for the Company as a whole. 

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable and escrow deposits 
approximates fair value because of the short-term nature of those assets. 

The fair value of mortgage notes payable as of September 18, 2002, approximated their 
cost. The fair value of mortgage notes payable as of December 31, 2001 was 
$208,417,500. These values were determined based upon discounted cash flows, using 
interest rates currently available to the Company on similar borrowings. However, due to 
restrictions on transferability and prepayment, the Company would be unable to refinance 
its properties to obtain such calculated fair values of mortgage notes payable. 

The fair value of the variable rate revolving credit facilities approximates their carrying 
value. 

3. Rental Property 

Land improvements consist primarily of improvements made to land, such as landscaping 
and infrastructure. Buildings consist of pennanent buildings in the communities, such as 
clubhouses, laundry facilities, maintenance storage facilities, and furniture, fixtures and 
equipment. 

On May 31, 2002, the Company acquired a 25.7% controlling interest in Country 
Heritage in Dundee, Michigan for a purchase price of $6,969,000. The acquisition was 
funded with a mortgage note payable secured by a deed of trust, as well as the issuance of 
preference units to the seller (see Note 9). Country Heritage consists of 213 developed 
sites. 

On June 6, 2002, the Company acquired Crescent Run in Mesa, Arizona, for a purchase 
price of $9,627,800. Crescent Run consists of 330 developed sites. 

0211-0363915 11 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

3. Rental Property (continued) 

On June 28, 2002, the Company acquired a 49% controlling interest in Rawsonville 
Woods in Belleville, Michigan for a purchase price of $17,935,100. The acquisition was 
funded with a mortgage note payable secured by a deed of trust, as well as the issuance of 
preference units to the seller (see Note 9). Rawsonville Woods consists :,f 536 developed 
sites. 

On March 1, 2001, the Company acquired University Lakes in Miami, Florida, for a 
purchase price of $41,584,700. University Lakes consists of 1,153 developed sites. 

On March 6, 2001, the Company acquired Brookside Vi11age in Dallas, Texas, for a 
purchase price of $8,907,000, which includes a note receivable for $267,300. Brookside 
Village consists of 396 developed sites. 

On August 22, 2001, the Company acquired a 49% controlling interest in Belle Villa in 
Belleville, Michigan for a purchase price of $13,590,600. The acquisition was funded 
with a mortgage note payable secured by a deed of trust, as well as the issuance of 
preference units to the seller (see Note 9). Belle Villa consists of 422 developed sites. 

On August 31, 2001, the Company acquired Country Club in Tucson, Arizona, for a 
purchase price of $5,267,600. Country Club consists of 245 developed sites. 

On October 18, 2001, the Company acquired Cedar Knoll in Waterloo, Iowa, for a 
purchase price of $3,850,000. Cedar Knoll consists of 290 developed sites. 

021 J-036391.S 12 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Notes Receivable 

At September 18, 2002, and December 31, 2001, notes receivable consisted of the 
following: 

Secured by Mobile Home Parks 
Note receivable secured by a first trust deed on Carefree Country 

with fixed monthly principal and interest payments at 10.75%, 

maturing July 2008. 
Note receivable secured by a first trust deed on Five Seasons Cedar 

Falls with fixed monthly interest only payments at 7.75%, 

maturing September 2020. 
Secured by Lots and Mobile Homes 
Various note receivables from individuals secured by lots and 

mobile homes with fixed monthly principal and interest 
payments. Interest accrues at rates between 9% and 15% and the 
notes mature through November 2012. 

Total notes receivable 

5. Revolving Credit Facilities and Mortgage Notes Payable 

2002 2001 

$1,432,500 $1,535,500 

1,271,800 1,323,700 

715,800 704,500 

$3,420,100 $3,563,700 

At September 18, 2002, and December 31, 2001, revolving credit facilities and mortgage 
notes payable consisted of the following: 

Revolving line of credit (Bankers Trust/Deutsche Bank) with a 
commitment amount of $58.8 million. The line bore interest at 
LIBOR plus .875%, based on defined terms. The line of credit 
bore an average interest rate of 2.9% during the period of 
July 1, 2002 through September 18, 2002. 

Revolving line of credit (Deutsche Financial) with a $5 million 
ceiling secured by liens against manufactured home inventory. 
This line was paid in full and terminated during August 2002. 

Revolving line of credit (Green Tree Financial/Conseco) with a 
$5 million ceiling secured by liens against manufactured borne 
inventory. This line was paid in full and terminated during 
Ju,,: 2002. 

Total revolving credit facilities 

0211-03639lj 

.2002 

$ SS,814,700 

$ 55,814,700 

2001 

$ 51,917,100 

1,048,400 

1,221,300 

$ 54,186,800 

13 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

' I 
I 

Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

S. Revolving Credit Facilities and Mortgage Notes Payable (continued) 

Note payable to Wells Fargo bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
7.22%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing January 2003. The note is secured by a mortgage on 
Lake Village. 

Note payable to Criimi Mae bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
7 .83%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing October 2003. The note is secured by a deed of trust 
on Whispering Pines. 

Note payable to Criimi Mae bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
7.83%, with monthly interest payments, maturing October 
2003. The note is secured by a deed of trust on Whispering 
Pines. 

Note payable to Heller Financial bearing interest at a fixed rate 
of 8.27%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing November 2005. The note is secured by a mortgage 
on Alatia Riverfront. 

Construction loan payable to Vanderbilt Mortgage bearing 
accrual rate interest of 10.00%, with a pay rate of prime plus 
1.50%. This loan was paid in full in August 2002. The loan 
was secured by a deed of trust on Keenland Estates. 

Note payable to Pacific Life bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
8.125%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing October 2003. In addition, a letter of credit totaling 
$220,000 has been provided under this loan to secure 
obligations of the Company. The note is secured by a deed of 
trust on Landmark. 

Note payable to Capital of America bearing interest at a fixed 
rate of7.26%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing January 2008. The note was secured by a deed of 
trust on Sun Life, and was paid in full in conjunction with the 
sale of this property in January 2002. 

0211·0363915 

2002 

$ 6,906,800 $ 

4,523,900 

159,200 

891,300 

6,382,200 

2001 

7,016,000 

4,594,200 

159,200 

906,600 

1,592,800 

6,557,100 

14,916,400 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

5. Revolving Credit Facilities and Mortgage Notes Payable (continued) 

2002 2001 
Note payable to Sun America bearing interest at a fixed rate of 

7.15%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing March 2006. The note is secured by a deed of trust 
on Country Lakes. $ 11,446,900 $ 11,526,800 

Note payable to Sun America bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
7.06%, interest only through July 2001, with scheduled 
principal payments thereafter, maturing July 2004. The note is 
secured by a deed of trust on Cloverleaf Farms and Cloverleaf 
Forest. 9,501,500 9,578,900 

Note payable to Sun America bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
7.84%, with monthly principal and interest payments 
amortizing over 30 years, maturing December 2004. The note 
is secured by a deed of trust on six properties (Cedar Terrace, 
Five Seasons Davenport, Meadow Glen, Santa Barbara, Silver 
Creek, and Silver Leaf). 19,563,400 19,692,600 

Note payable to Lautrec bearing interest at a fixed rate of 8.30%, 
with monthly principal and interest payments, maturing 
September 2023. This note was issued as a wrap around 
mortgage, with the underlying note payable to Pacific Life. 
The note is secured by a deed of trust on Lake Worth. 16,628,900 16,695,400 

Floating rate credit facility (GE Capital) with a commitment of 
$56 million bearing interest at LIBOR plus 2.4%, with 
monthly interest only payments, maturing April 2003. The 
current note balance is secured by deeds of trust on 11 
properties (Cedar Knoll, Country Club, Country Heritage, 
Evergreen, Li'l Wolf, Mallard Lake, Marion Village, Mesa 
Ridge, Pine Ridge, Shady Grove, and Timbercrest). 53,188,000 46,210,000 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

S. Revolving Credit Facilities and Mortgage Notes Payable (continued) 

2002 

Note payable to ORIX Capital Markets bearing interest at a 
fixed rate of 7 .31 %, with monthly principal and interest 
payments, maturing April 2013. The note is secured by a deed 
of trust on Sunshine Valley. $ 5,649,100 $ 

Note payable to Aegon bearing interest at a fixed rate of 9.04%, 
with monthly principal and interest payments, maturing 
January 2013. The note is secured by a deed of trust on 
Encantada. 6,017,400 

Note payable to GE Capital bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
7.70%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing November 2010. The note is secured by a deed of 
trust on Royal Crest. 4,333,700 

Note payable to Sun America bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
7 .50%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing August 2008. The note is secured by a deed of trust 
on Brookside Village 6,225,600 

Note payable to Sun America bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
7 .40%, interest only through March 2002, with scheduled 
principal payments thereafter, maturing March 2011. The note 
is secured by a deed of trust on University Lakes. 31,879,200 

Note payable to Sun America bearing interest at a fix.cd rate of 
7 .20%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing March 2006. The note is secured by a deed of trust 
on Highland. 3,158,300 

Note payable to American General Annuity Insurance Company 
bearing interest at a fix.ed rate of 6.9%, with monthly principal 
and interest payments, maturing December 2006. The note is 
secured by a deed of trust on Belle Villa Lake and Meadows. 9,533,500 

0211-0363915 

2001 

5,698,300 

6,051,400 

4,360,900 

6,267,100 

32,000,000 

3,180,000 

9,600,000 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

S. Revolving Credit Facilities and Mortgage Notes Payable (continued) 

2002 2001 

Note payable to Sun America bearing interest at a fixed rate 
of 7 .0%, with monthly principal and interest payments, 
maturing May 2008. The note is secured by a deed of 
trust on Crescent Run. 

Note payable to Wachovia Bank, N.A. bearing interest at a 
fixed rate of 6.25% with monthly principal and interest 
payments, maturing June 2007. In addition, letters of 
credit totaling $1,408,250 have been provided to secure 
obligations of the Company. The note is secured by a 
deed of trust on Ra wsonvil le Woods. 

Total mortgage notes payable 

$ 4,941,900 $ 

14,377,700 

$215,308,500 $206,603,700 

The overall effective interest rate for the period from July 1, 2002 through September 18, 
2002, was approximately 6.0%. 

Aggregate payments of principal on long-term borrowings for each of the next five years 
and thereafter are as follows: 

Year 
September 19 through December 31, 2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
Thereafter 

021 l..036391S 

Amount 

$ 56,294,100 
72,473,000 
29,906,200 
2,167,600 

24,427,400 
1,229,400 

84,625,500 
$271,123,200 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ( continued) 

6, Capital Leases 

During 2000, the Company entered into 99-year ground leases for Cheron Village and 
Birchwood that are categorized as capital leases. Capital asset balances were $6,338,400 
(net of $473,600 depreciation) and $3,373,500 (net of $233,100 depreciation), 
respectively, for Cheron Village and Birchwood, as of September 18, 2002. These 
balances are included in land improvements on the balance sheet. 

Aggregate capital lease payments for each of the next five years and thereafter are as 
fol1ows: 

Year 
September 19 through December 31, 2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
Thereafter 

Less: Amount representing interest at 7 .8% 
Net minimum capital lease payments 

7. Stock Option Plan 

Amount 

$ 203,300 
813,200 
813,200 
813,200 
813,200 
813,200 

74,138,000 
78,407,300 
67,988,600 

$10,418,700 

Pursuant to the Company's 1997 Option Plan, 5,964 options convertible into OC Units 
have been awarded to several current and former full-time employees. The strike-price of 
these options range between $1,000 and $1,295 per share. Under the terms of the 1997 
Plan, these options vest over a three-year period, so that as of September 18, 2002, and 
December 31, 2001, approximately 5,085 and 3,370 options were vested, respectively. 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

8. Warrants Issued 

The Company has granted to Transwestem Hometown America, L.L.C. (''THA") the 
right to purchase warrants to acquire membership units in the Company. The number of 
units that may be acquired will equal 25% of the aggregate number of membership units 
to be issued in connection with required capital contributions from the original members 
in the Company. The warrants may be exercised at any time up to June 30, 2008 (10th 

anniversary of end of Lock Period as defined in the Partnership Agreement). 

The exercise price will equal the same price per membership unit paid by the members, 
subject to certain adjustments. As of September 18, 2002, and December 31, 2001, THA 
owned warrants to acquire 19,885 membership units in the Company. 

9. Convertible Notes Payable and Preference Units 

As part of the Country Heritage joint venture agreement, $1,608,500 of preference units 
(74.3%) were issued to the seller. The Company is obligated to pay quarterly 
distributions of 8% per annum on the preference units. The Company may purchase the 
preference units for $1,608,500 at any time after May 31, 2003, at the Company's 
discretion. The Company is obligated to purchase the preference units by May 31, 2012. 

As part of the Rawsonville Woods joint venture agreement, $1,895,200 of preference 
units (51%) were issued to the seller. The Company is obligated to pay quarterly 
distributions of 8% per annum on the preference units. The Company may purchase the 
preference units for $1,895,200 at any time after June 28, 2009, at the Company's 
discretion. The Company is obligated to purchase the preference units by June 28, 2012. 

As part of the Sunshine Valley acquisition, the Company issued $2,141,000 of 
convertible notes payable to the seller, which are convertible into either cash or 
equivalent OC Units, at the seller's discretion. The Company incurs 10% interest on the 
convertible notes payable, 7% of which is paid out in quarterly installments, while the 
remaining 3% is accrued and payable when the OC Units are converted. The seller may 
convert all or part of the convertible notes payable into cash at any time on April 1 or 
October 1 of each year (with a $25,000 minimum threshold requirement), prior to the 
Company completing an Initial Public Offering (fl>O) of common units. Otherwise, the 
seller may convert part or all of the convertible notes payable into OC Units at any one 
time prior to the fl>O completion, with the same $25,000 minimum threshold. The 
convertible notes payable are convertible into QC Units at the then current OC Unit 
value. 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

9. Convertible Notes Payable and Preference Units (continued) 

If an IPO event does not occur prior to June 9, 2008, all remaining convertible notes 
payable must be converted into either cash or OC Units at the then current OC Unit 
value. If the !PO is completed prior to June 9, 2008, the seller may convert any remaining 
convertible notes payable into cash or QC Units in any increments above $25,000 after 
the IPO completion date. 

As part of the Belle Villa joint venture agreement, $1,929,800 of preference units (5 I%) 
were issued to the seller. The Company is obligated to pay quarterly distributions of 8% 
per annum on the preference units. The Company may purchase the preference uni ts for 
$1,929,800 at any time at the Company's discretion. The Company is obligated to 
purchase the preference units by August 22, 2011. 

10. Related Party Transactions 

Portfolio Management Fee 

The Manager pays Transwestem Investment Company (an affiliated entity of the 
Manager through September 18, 2002) a portfolio management fee pursuant to the 
Portfolio Management Agreement. The annual portfolio management fee is one-half of 
one percent of the Company's net current value, as defined. Total portfolio management 
fees were $407,500 for the period from January 1 through September 18, 2002, and 
$508,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. 

Overhead Sharing Agreement 

The Company pays a pro rata share of rent and various office occupancy expenses to 
Transwestem Investment Company in connection with the operations of its Chicago 
corporate office. Total overhead fees were $210,400 for the period from January 1 
through September 18, 2002, and $212,600 for the year ended December 31, 2001. 

11. Restructuring Costs 

During 2001, the Company announced its intention to close its corporate office in Santa 
Monica, California. The transition of all the duties and certain employees from Santa 
Monica to the Chicago, Illinois office was in process as of December 31, 2001, and 
completed in 2002. The Company reflected restructuring costs related to this relocation 
totaling $912,600, in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2001. 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

12. Impairment of Investment in Rental Property 

As of September 18, 2002, the Company wrote down the net book value of Cedar 
Terrace, Evergreen, Fort We-ar, Keenland and Lakeside by $4,343,000. As of 
December 31, 2001, the Company wrote down the net book value of Sun Life and 
Keenland by $3,012,700. 

13. Sale of Property 

The Company sold its Sun Life property, consisting of 765 sites, in January 2002 for 
proceeds of $19,200,000. The Company wrote down the net book value of Sun Life to 
$19,200,000, as of December 31, 2001 (see Note 12). Therefore, there was no material 
gain or loss realized at the time of sale of this property. Proceeds from the sale were used 
to reduce the amounts outstanding on the Company's revolving line of credit. 

14. Current Value Basis Accounting 

The current value basis consolidated balance sheet has been prepared by management to 
present financial information that is not provided by historical cost basis consolidated 
financial statements. In addition, the current value basis consolidated balance sheet does 
not purport to present the net realizable, liquidation, or market value of the Company as a 
whole. Furthermore, amounts ultimately realized by the Company from the disposition of 
the assets may v-ary significantly from the current values presented. 

Current values of real estate were detennined by management on the basis of 
comparative values of sirnil-ar properties, discounted cash flow analysis, or independent 
appraisals. The current value of notes receivable and notes payable is estimated based on 
the tenns of the financial instruments compared to m-arket rates of similar instruments. 
The current value of corporate fixed assets is estimated to be equivalent to net book 
value. Deferred financing costs and other intangibles were deemed to have no current 
value. 

15. Subsequent Event 

On September 19, 2002, all of the outstanding OC Units of Hometown America, L.L.C. 
were acquired by the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). As part of this 
acquisition, Hometown America Holdings, L.L.C. (together with its consolidated 
subsidiaries, Holdings) was formed as the new p-arent company of Hometown America, 
L.L.C. WSIB currently owns approximately 98.7% of Holdings. The remaining 1.3% is 
owned by Hometown Residential Manager, L.L.C., which is comprised of an internal 
mam.gement group of Holdings. The purchase price for WSIB 's additional interest of 
approximately $100 million was based upon the fair value of Hometown America, L.L.C. 
on September 19, 2002. 
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Hometown America, L.L.C. 
Officers, Directors, Members, and Manager 

Hometown America, L.L.C. has no officers or directors. It has two members and 
is manager-managed. The names and addresses of the members and the manager are 
below. 

Members of Hometown America. L.L.C. 

Washington State Investment Board 
2100 Evergreen Park Drive 
Olympia, Washington 98502 

Manager of Hometown America. L.L.C. 

Hometown Residential Manager, L.L.C. 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Hometown America Holdings, 
L.L.C. 

150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Hometown Residential Manager, L.L.C. does not have directors and also is 
manager-managed. The names and addresses of the members, manager and officers are 
below. 

Members of Hometown Residential Manager. L.L.C. 

Barry C. McCabe, 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Thomas J. Coorsh, 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Manager of Hometown Residential Manager. L.L.C. 

Richard G. Cline 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Attachment E 

Patrick C. Zilis, 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Stephen H. Braun 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 



Officers of Hometown Residential Manager. L.L.C. 

Richard G. Cline 
Chief Executive Officer & Assistant Secretary 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Barry C. McCabe, 
President & Chief Operating Officer 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Thomas J. Coorsh, 
Chief Financial Officer 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 
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EugeneJ.M.Leone 
Secretary 
Pircher, Nichols & Meeks 
900 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 1050 
Chicago, IL 60611 

Patrick C. Zilis, 
Senior Vice President 
150 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL 60606 
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Utilities Experience of Hometown America, L.L.C. 

Hometown America subsidiaries operate three unregulated facilities in Florida. 
Hometown Alafia, LLC operates an aeration wastewater treatment plant at Alafia 
Riverfront, 8763 Barcin Circle, Riverview, FL 33569. The treatment plant is not in a 
PSC jurisdiction county (Hillsborough County). In addition, the facility does not charge 
for sewer services. Hometown Lake Village, LP operates an aeration wastewater 
treatment plant and a reverse osmosis water system at Lake Village, 400 Lake Drive, 
Nokomis, FL 34275. These systems are exempt because there is no charge for water and 
sewer services. Hometown Lake Worth, LLC operates a well water system at 5160 Lake 
Worth Road, Lake Worth, FL 33463. The system is in the process of being hooked up to 
Palm Beach County Utilities. It is exempt because there is no charge for water. 

Hometown America subsidiaries operate two Texas utility companies regulated 
by the Texas Natural Resources Conservation Commission (TNRCC). Hometown 
Meadow Glen Utility Service, LP operates an aeration wastewater treatment plant at 600 
Glen Vista Drive, Keller, TX. Hometown Timbercrest Utility, LP operates both a well 
water system and an aeration wastewater treatment plant at 25903 Elmfield Drive, 
Spring, TX. 

Hometown America subsidiaries operate two community public water systems 
permitted by the Iowa Department of Natural Resources and regulated by the Iowa 
Utilities Board. These are Hometown Silver Creek, LLC with a system at 4930 N. 
Dittmer St., Davenport, IA 52806 and Hometown Five Seasons, LLC with a system at 
5112 N. Fairmount St., Davenport, IA 52806. Another subsidiary, Hometown Lakeside, 
LLC operates an unregulated well water system and an unregulated lagoon sewage 
system at 11325 140th St., Davenport, IA 52804. The two Lakeside systems are exempt 
because there is no charge for water or sewer. 

Hometown Rawsonville Woods, LLC operates an unregulated aeration waste 
water treatment plant at 10825 Rawsonville Rd., Belleville, MI 48111. It is exempt from 
regulation because there is no charge for sewer service. 

Hometown America subsidiaries operate two unregulated water and one 
unregulated sewer plant in Pennsylvania. Hometown Li'l Wolf operates a well water 
system and an aeration waste water treatment plant at 3411 Li'l Wolf Drive, Orefield, PA 
18069. Hometown Mountain View, LLC operates a well water system at 4401 
Timberline Road, B-181, Walnutport, PA 18088. These Pennsylvania systems are 
unregulated because they do not charge consumers. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Joint Application for Approval ) 
of the Transfer of Majority Organizational ) 
Control of Del Tura Phase I, LLC ) Docket No. 
and CWS Communities LP as the ) 
Result of the Acquisition by Hometown ) 
America, L.L.C. of the Stock ) 
of Chateau Communities, Inc. ) 

STATE OF: ILLINOIS 
COUNTY OF: coo1<. 

AFFIDAVIT 

--------

I, Barry C. McCabe, President of Hometown Residential Manager, L.L.C., the Manager 

of Hometown America, L.L.C. (applicant), do solemnly swear or affirm that the books, records, 

and original source documents of the Utilities shall be maintained in Florida, in compliance with 

Fla. Ad.min. Code R. 25-30.115(1), at the manufactured housing communities where the 

wasterwater and water utility facilities are located. 

For CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley, 
Certificate Nos. 277-W and 223-S in Seminole County: 

For CWS Communities LP 
Certificate No. 518-W in Lake County: 

For Del Tura Phase I, LLC 
Certificate No. 298-S in Lee County: 

Attachment G 

Palm Valley 
3700 Palm Valley Circle 
Oviedo, Florida 32765 

Haselton Village 
14 Coral Street 
Eustis, Florida 32726 

Del Tura 
18621 North Tamiami Trail 
North Ft. Myers, Florida 32903 



Further Affiant sayeth not. 

-~ 1-4:: c ____ B_ARR........., ... Y~C~. ~!,f''-l'f+_C--"AB---L.I.E_, -----d-a-te __ _ 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this t25/:.i day of August 2003 by Barry C. McCabe, 
President of Hometown Residential Manager, L.L.C., the Manager of Hometown America, 

L.L.C. 

Personally known to me _L 
Identification produced Type of identification~ 

OFFICIAl. SEAL No 1gnature 
Notary Public· State of llllnols A'tZ G/f 4 L . ,dl/4 r4((/ 

ROGER L. BURTON Print, Type, or Stamp Commissioned 
MyConm. 1:xp1,.. F9bn.Jary 21 • 2007 Name of Notary Public 

2 
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SUNDSTROM 
& MINDLIN, LLP 

2548 BlAIRSTONE PINES DRIVE 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 

At t o rn eys Co un se l o r s FILED 11/18/2022 
DOCUMENT NO. 11427-2022 
FPSC - COMMISSION CLERK 

November 18, 2022 

PHONE (850) 877-6555 
FAX (850) 656-4029 

www.sfflaw.com 

Mr. Adam Teitzman, Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: Docket No. 20220156-WS; Application for name change on Certificate Nos. 277-W and 
223-S in Seminole County from CWS Communities, LP d/b/a Palm Valley Utilities to 
Hometown Palm Valley, LLC d/b/a Palm Valley Utilities 
Our File No. 48073.01 

Dear Mr. Teitzman, 

I am filing this letter in response to the deficiency letter dated November 7, 2022 received 
in the above-referenced docket from Shaw Stiller, Senior Attorney. I have tried to identify below 
the responses to the various deficiencies outlined in the letter. 

1. Paragraph 2 of the Application for Name Change states that "[i]n 2019, due to a 
corporate reorganization, the water and sewer utility assets of CWS Communities, LP 
were transferred to Hometown Palm Valley, LLC." 

a. Fully describe the corporate reorganization. 

Utility Response: The utility was conveyed as part of an overall larger transaction in connection 
with the refinancing of the Palm Valley mobile home park assets including the utility. In order 
to facilitate that financing, Hometown America Communities conveyed the Palm Valley assets 
into a newly created single purpose entity. As such, CWS Communities conveyed the Palm 
Valley assets together with the water and sewer utility assets to its affiliate Hometown Palm 
Valley, LLC via a Quit Claim Deed, Bill of Sale and Assignment. Hometown Palm Valley, LLC 
and CWS Communities, LP are owned and controlled by the same parent entity. As such, this 
conveyance was merely a name change for PSC purposes. As control of the utility did not 
change. 

b. Explain how CWS Communities transferred its water and sewer utility assets to Palm 
Valley, LLC. 

Utility Response: Per above, the conveyance was by Quit Claim Deed, Bill of Sale and 
Assignment. 

c. Provide documents evidencing or memorializing the transfer of the water and sewer 
utility assets ofCWS Communities, LP to Hometown Palm Valley, LLC. 



Mr. Adam Teitzman 
November 18, 2022 
Page 2 

Utility Response: See attached Quit Claim Deed, Bill of Sale and Assignment. 

d. Provide an organizational chart showing CWS Communities, LP, its parent 
company(ies), any sister companies, and any subsidiaries or affiliates, prior to 2019 
corporate reorganization. 

Utility Response: Attached hereto as Exhibit B is an organizational chart showing CWS 
Communities, LP, its parent companies and sister companies and subsidiaries and affiliates prior 
to the 2019 corporate reorganization. 

e. Provide an organizational charge showing CWS Communities, LP and Hometown 
Palm Valley, LLC, their parent company(ies), any sister companies, and any 
subsidiaries or affiliates, following the 2019 reorganization. 

Utility Response: Attached hereto as Exhibit C is an organizational chart showing CWS 
Communities, LP, its parent companies and sister companies and subsidiaries and affiliates 
following to the 2019 corporate reorganization. 

2. Paragraph 2 of the Application for Name Change states that "[t]he ultimate owners of 
the utility did not change and the assets of the utility continue to be owned and operated 
by the same entity which owns the mobile home community served by the systems." 

a. Who was the ultimate owner of the utility prior to and following the 2019 corporate 
reorganization? 

Utility Response: As shown on the above corporate reorganization charts, each entity is owned 
and controlled by the same parent entity Hometown Communities Limited Partnership. 

b. What entity owned the mobile home park community served by the systems prior to 
and following the 2019 corporate reorganization? 

Utility Response: Prior to the 2019 transfer, the utilities and the community were owned by the 
same entity, CWS Communities, LP. As noted above, after the 2019 transfer, the utilities and 
the community were owned by the same entity, Hometown Palm Valley, LLC. 

3. Exhibit B to the Application for Name Change is an Affidavit of Gregory Lynch, which 
states, in part, "that the beneficial ownership and control of the utility and its assets 
have not changed." 

a. Explain what is meant by "beneficial ownership" and describe whether and how it 
differs from "ultimate ownership". 

Utility Response: Beneficial ownership and ultimate ownership are viewed as one and the same. 
They are both intended to cover who the indirect owner of the property level entities was. 

SUNDSTROM & MINDLIN, LLP 
2548 Blairstone Pines Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 



Mr. Adam Teitzman 
November 18, 2022 
Page 3 

b. Please identify the person or entity who has held "beneficial ownership and control of 
the utility" such that neither changed as a result of the 2019 corporate reorganization. 

Utility Response: As shown on the organization charts provided as Exhibit Band C hereto, 
you can see that the beneficial and ultimate ownership did not change. 

I believe the above information fully complies with your request in your November 7th 

letter and that therefore the application should be deemed as complete. Should you have any 
further questions or need any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

FMD/brf 

Enclosures 

cc: Gena Paugh 
Gregory Lynch 
Gary Morse 
Melinda Watts 
Natalia Rivera-Pacheco, Esq. 

Sincerely, 

F. Marshall Deterding 
Of Counsel 

SUNDSTROM & MINDLIN, LLP 
2548 Blairstone Pines Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 



This instrument was prepared by 
and after recording should be returned lo: 

Nancy Nagel, Esquire 
c/o Hometown America 
150 N. Wacker Drive, Suite 2800 
Chicago, IL 60606 
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R?Jc0o1rded Electronica11y 
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CountY, ~h-01 0 
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QUIT-CLAIM DEED 

THIS QUIT-CLAIM DEED is made and entered into effective as ofthc ';>1~ay of .January, 

2019 by and between CWS Communities LP, a Delaware limited partnership, whose mailing 

addt·ess is c/o Hometown America, L.L.C., 150 N. Wacker Drive, Suite 2800, Chicago, Illinois 

60606 (hereinafter referred to as the "Grantor"), and HOMETOWN PALM VALLEY, L.L.C., 

a Delaware limited liability company, whose address is c/o Hometown America, L.L.C., 150 N. 

Wacker Drive, Suite 2800, Chicago, Illinois 60606 (hereinafter refeiTed to as the "Grantee"). 

W I TN E S S ET 1-l: 

That the Granlor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) 

in hand paid to it by the Grantee, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby remise, release, convey and quit-claim 

unto the Grantee forever, all right, title, interest, claim and demand which the Grantor has in and 

to the following described lot, piece or parcel of land, situute, lying and being in the County or 

Seminole, State of Florida, to wit: 

Sec Exhibit A attached hereto and hereby made a purl hereof. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD the same together with all and singular the appurt1::nances 

thereunto belonging or in anywise appertaining, and all the estate, right, title. interest, lien, equity 

and claim whatsoever of the Grantor, either in law or equity, to the propt:r use, benefit and bchoof 

of the Grantee forever. 

Note To Clerk: THE TRANSFER OF THE PROPERTY EVIDENCED 13Y TI-IIS DEED IS A 

TRANSFER OF UNENCUMBERED PROPERTY BETWEEN A PARTNERSHIP (GRANTOR) 

AND A LIMITED LJABILITY (GRANTEE), FOR NO CONSIDERATION, BOTH OF WHICH 

ENTITIES ARE WHOLLY-OWNED (DIRECTLY AND INDIRECTLY) BY THE SAME 

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, Wl·IJCH GJVES THE GRANTOR AND GRANTEE IDENTICAL 

(DIRECT OR INDIRECT) OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY. THE DEED EVIDENCES A 

TRANSFER OF THE PROPERTY FROM THE GRANTOR PARTNERSHIP TO A LIMITED 

LIABILITY COMPANY, Wl-IICI-l ALONG WITJ-1 TI-IE PARTNERSHIP ARE WHOLLY­

OWNED BY AN UPPER TIER LIMITED PARTNERSHJP, EFFECTING /\ DISTRIBUTION 

OF THE PROPERTY BY THE P/\RTNERSIIIP TO ITS PARTNERS (THE SAME LIMITED 

l'al111Vullcy-FI.-QC D~~d 
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PARTNERSHIP THROUGH DIRECT AND INDIRECT OWNERSHIP) AND A 

SUBSEQUENT CONTRIBUTION OF THE PROPERTY BETWEEN BROTHER-SISTER 

ENTITIES HAVING IDENTICAL (DIRECT AND INDIRECT) OWNERSHIP. THUS, IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTES SECTION 201.02, ONLY MINIMUM 

DOCUMENTARY STAMP TAX IS DUE. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this instrument to be executed the day 

and year first above written. 

EXECUTED IN THE PRESENCE OF: 

WITNESS: 

~.,;n ,(}J '<Pf 

STA TE OF ILLINOIS 
COUNTY OF .COOK 

CWS COMMUNITIES LP, a Delaware limited 
partnership 

By: Second Merger Sub, LLC, a Maryland 
limited liability company, its sole general 
partner 

~~~ne: _(k ___ c..._P .... ~t,,,_,~ie<=.=C....,Z=l=lls~---

Title: Co-President 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 1 if day of January, 2019, by 

Bltr,ck C 2j n..s ' as Co- PreS1'dek± . of Second Merger Sub, LLC, 

a Maryland limited liability company, being the sole general partner of CWS Communities LP, a 

Delaware limited partnership, on behalf of the company, who is personally known to me. 

[NOTARY SEAL] ~,~$~J!&fJff!l!?CNJ 
}"--·o~F-F-IC ... IA_L.._S.._E ... A ... L-......., Printed Name: Mar~l\.. ~ odD Y- Al \/0..V--e.."2... 

MARCELA GODOY-ALVAREZ 
Notary Public - State of Illinois 
My Commission Expires Maroh 31, 2021 

rnlmVnlley-FL-QC Deed 
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The Land referred to herein below is situated in the County of Seminole, State of Florida, and is described 
as follows: 

PARCEL I: 

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTIONS 34 AND 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 31 EAST 

SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORI DA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 34, SAID POINT ALSO BEING 

SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 

10, PAGE 100 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN NORTH 00° 

00' 19" WEST A DISTANCE OF 940.14 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 25, OF SAID 

ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK, FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 

00° 00' 19" WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 25 A DISTANCE OF 381.27 FEET 

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 23 OF SAID ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK, SAID POINT 

ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 

SAi D SECTION 34; THENCE NORTH 89° 24' 17" WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOTS 

23 AND 22 OF SAID ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK A DISTANCE OF 1275.40 FEET TO THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 22, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT­

OF-WA Y LINE OF ALAFAYA TRAIL (STATE ROAD 434); THENCE NORTH 00° 05' 57" EAST 

ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE WESTERLY LINE OF LOT 22 A 

DISTANCE OF 95.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, RUN 

SOUTH 89° 06' 21" EAST A DISTANCE OF 1150.29 FEET TO A POINTON THE WESTERLY LINE 

OF THE EASTERLY 125.00 FEET OF THE AFOREMENTIONED LOT 23; THENCE NORTH 00° 00' 

19" WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE A DISTANCE OF 784.41 fo'EET TO THE SOUTHERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PARK ROAD; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LINE NORTH 63° 50' 57" EAST A DISTANCE OF 1216.34 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE 

OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 2625.65 

FEET; THENCE FROM A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 77° IS' 35" EAST RUN 

NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 26° 

56' 05" A DISTANCE OF 1234.31 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 89° 13' 46" EAST A 

DISTANCE OF 799.96 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 31 

EAST; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE RUN NORTH 00° 14' 22" 

EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF­

WAY LINE OF PARK ROAD; THENCE NORTH 89° 13' 46" WEST ALONG SAID NORTHERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINEA DISTANCE Or 799.31 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A NON­

TANGENT CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 2695.65 FEET; THENCE FROM A CHORD BEARING 

OF SOUTH 87° IO' 38" WEST RUN WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC or SAID CURVE THROUGH A 

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07° 06' 06" A DISTANCE OF 334.12 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

DEPARTING SAID ORTHERLY RIGHT-OFWAY LINE RUN NORTH 00° 13' 23" EAST A 

DISTANCE OF 650.0 I FEET; THENCE NORTH 88° 39' 44" EAST A DISTANCE OF 541.43 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 00° 14' 22" EAST A DISTANCE OF 228.21 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 

5 OF ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK UNIT 2, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 43 OF 

THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 89° 09' 59" EAST 

ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 257.88 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 

THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 34; THENCE DEPARTING 

SAID NORTH LINE RUN NORTH 00° 16' 50" EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 

1/4 OF SAID SECTION 34 A DISTANCE OF 1332.68 f,'EET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 

Paln1Valley-FL-QC Deed 
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PARK ROAD; THENCE PROCEED ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY ON A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 

HAYING A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 89° 06' 21" EAST, A RADIUS OF 2695.65 FEET, A 

DELTA OF 03° 25' 49", AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 161.39 FEET A DISTANCE OF 161.39 FEET: 

THENCE SOUTH 89° 13' 46" EAST A DISTANCE OF 194.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING: 

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL BEING AND LYING IN SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 

RANGE 31 EAST, SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL BEING AND LYING IN SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 

RANGE 3 I EAST, SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

PARCEL 2: 

EASEMENT RIGHTS AS SET FORTH IN THAT CERTAIN NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT, 

RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1746, PAGE 1363, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
PARCEL 3: 

THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE EAST 3/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1 /4, LESS THE 

SOUTH 453.34 FEET OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 

NORTHWEST 1/4, ALL IN SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 3 I EAST, SEMINOLE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

PARCEL 4: 

EASEMENT RIGHTS AS SET FORTH IN THAT CERTAIN DEED, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL 

RECORDS BOOK 1349, PAGE 1062, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA. 

PARCEL 5: 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF PARK ROAD AS 

DESCRIBED ON THE PLAT OF ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK UNIT II, PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 

43 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 89° 13' 46" 

WEST ALONG THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF PARK ROAD A DISTANCE OF 604.5 FEET 

FORA POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 01° 52' 48" WEST A DISTANCE OF 367.02 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 88° 36' 09" WEST A DISTANCE OF 354.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01° 36' 27" 

EAST A DISTANCE OF 375.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 

PARK ROAD; THENCE PROCEED ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY ON A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 

HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 89° 06' 21" EAST, A RADIUS OF 2695.65 FEET, A 

DELTA OF 03° 25' 49", AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 161.39 FEET A DISTANCE OF 161.39 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 89°13' 46" EAST A DISTANCE OF 194.61 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL BEING AND LYING IN SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 

RANGE 13 EAST, SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

PARCEL 6: 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR THE VACATION OF A PORTION OF PARK ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY. 

ALL THOSE RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF PARK ROAD AS SHOWN ON THE PLATS OF ORLANDO 

INDUSTRIAL PARK AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 10, PAGE 100, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS 

OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK, UNIT 2, AS 

l'nlmVollcy-FL-QC Deed 
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SECTION 34; THENCE SOUTH 89° 51' 52" EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE 

AFOREMENTIONED SECTION 35 A DISTANCE OF 332.85 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE 

WEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 35; THENCE 

SOUTH 00° 14' 22" WEST ALONG SAID EAST LlNE A DISTANCE OF 1331.94 FEET TO THE 

NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE AFOREMENTIONED LOT 5; THENCE SOUTH 00° 14' 22" WEST 

ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 5 A DISTANCE OF 879.48 FEET TO THE NORTH 

LINE OF THE SOUTH 453.34 FEET OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 

OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 35; THENCE SOUTH 89° 57' 57" EAST A DISTANCE 

OF 334.44 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 

1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 35; THENCE SOUTH 00° 11' 54" WEST A 

DISTANCE OF 453.34 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 

OF THE NORTHWEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 35; THENCE SOUTH 00° 

26' 25" EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 

1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 35 A DISTANCE OF 1315.56 FEET TO THE 

SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF Tl-IE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 35; THENCE NORTH 89° 49' 27" WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH 

LINE A DISTANCE OF 333.26 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF 

THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 35; THENCE NORTH 00° 30' 

22" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 225.24 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF LOT 3 OF AFOREMENTIONED ORLANDO INDUSTRiAL PARK UNIT 2; THENCE 

NORTH 89° 36' 54" WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 3 AND THE 

SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 8 OF THE AFOREMENTIONED ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK A 

DISTANCE OF 1003.37 FEET TO A POINT 424.37 FEET EASTERLY OF THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID LOT 8; THENCE SOUTH 00° 29' 25" EAST A DISTANCE OF 218.33 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 01° 39' 42" EAST A DISTANCE OF 482.28 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89° 36' 50" 

WEST A DISTANCE OF 129.30 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF LOT 13 OF SAID ORLANDO 

INDUSTRIAL PARK; THENCE SOUTH 74° 26' 00" WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF 

SAID LOT 13 A DISTANCE OF 364.01 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89° 36' 50" WEST A DISTANCE OF 

760.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 13; THENCE NORTH 00° 01' 18" WEST 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 13 A DISTANCE OF 387.76 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89° 

37' 58" EAST A DISTANCE OF225.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00° 01' 18" WEST A DISTANCE OF 

18.88 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89° 37' 58" EAST A DISTANCE OF 288.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 

01° 23' 54" WEST A DISTANCE OF 208.09 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89° 37' 58" WEST A DISTANCE 

OF 508.00 FEET TO THE AFOREMENTIONED WESTERLY LINE OF LOT 13; THENCE NORTH 00° 

01' 18" WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE A DISTANCE OF 185.29 FEET TO THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 13; THENCE NORTH 89° 37' 58" WEST A DISTANCE OF 

70.00 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 25 OF SAID ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK; 

THENCE SOUTH 00° 01' 18" EAST ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE A DfSTANCEOF 599.68 FEET 

TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 25; THENCE NORTH 89° 36' 39" WEST ALONG SAID 

SOUTHERLY LINE A DISTANCE OF 670.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. LESS RIGHTS­

OF-WA Y OF RECORD. 

LESS AND EXCEPT: 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF PARK ROAD AS 

DESCRIBED ON THE PLAT OF ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK UNIT II, PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 

43 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 89° 13' 46" 

WEST ALONG THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF PARK ROAD A DISTANCE OF 604.5 FEET 

FORA POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 01° 52' 48" WEST A DISTANCE OF 367.02 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 88° 36' 09" WEST A DISTANCE OF 354.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01° 36' 27" 

EAST A DISTANCE OF 375.52 FEET TO A POlNT ON THE NORTHERLY RlGI-IT-OF-WAY OF 

PnlmYalley-FL-QC DeecJ 
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RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 43, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, LYING EASTERLY OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LINE: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 5, ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK, UNIT 

2, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 43, OF Tl-IE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 13' 46" WEST, ALONG THE NORTHERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PARK ROAD AS RECORDED IN THE PLAT OF ORLANDO 

INDUSTRJAL PARK, UNIT 2, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 43, OF THE PUBLIC 

RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA A DISTANCE OF 799.31 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 

CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 2695.65 FEET; 

THENCE RUN WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE 

OF 07°06' 06" A DISTANCE OF 334.12 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, OF THE LINE 

BEING DESCRIBED HEREIN, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE MOST SOUTHWESTERLY 

CORNER OF A PARCEL OF LAND AS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1763, PAGE 

1207, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE, DEPARTING 

SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE RUN SOUTH 06° 19' 52" EAST, ALONG A LINE BEING 

RADIAL TO THE SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PARK ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 

70.00 FEET, TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

SAID PARK ROAD, ALSO BEING THE POINT OF TERMINATION OF SAID LINE. 

TOGETHER WITH: 

THAT REMAINING NORTHERLY PORTION OF PARCEL 4 AS DESCRIBED IN O.R. BOOK 902, 

PAGE 529 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS MODIFIED BY 

AMENDED RESOLUTION PER O.R. BOOK 1769, PAGE 239, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

PARCEL 7: 

A PORTION OF LOTS 5 AND 6 OF ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK UNIT 2, ACCORDING TO THE 

PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 43 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF · 

SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA, PART OF SAID LOT 6 HAVING BEEN VACATED BY 

RESOLUTIONS FILED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS B.OOK 1171, PAGE 1762, AND FILED IN 

OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3061, PAGE 163, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCE AT NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST I /4 OF THE NORTHEAST I /4 OF 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 31 EAST, RUN NORTH 89° 09' 59"WEST ALONG 

THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 5, ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK UNIT 2, ACCORDING TO THE 

PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 43 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 257.88 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 

CONTINUE NORTH 89° 09' 59" WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 5 AND THE 

NORTH LINE OF LOT 6 OF SAID ORLANDO INDUSTRIAL PARK UNIT 2, 541.33 FEET; THENCE 

LEAVING SAID NORTH LINE RUN SOUTH 00° 13' 23"WEST248.73 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 

88° 39' 44" EAST 541.43 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 14' 22" EAST 228.21 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING. 
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THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 LYING 

WEST OF THE CENTERLINE OF A CREEK; AND THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE EAST 3/4 OF THE 

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4; AND THE EAST 2/3 OF THE WEST 3/4 OF THE 

NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4, ALL IN SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 

31 EAST, SAID LAND BEING AND LYING IN SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA; AND BEING 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 31 EAST, 

SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING FURTHER DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 

31 EAST, SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND RUN THENCE NORTH 89° 52' 09" EAST 332.91 

FEET .(NORTH 89° 45' 42" EAST 332.85 FEET RECORD) ALONG TI-IE NORTH BOUNDARY OF 

SECTION 35 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 89° 47' 40" EAST 

662.10 FEET (NORTH 89° 45' 42" EAST 665.73 RECORD) ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF 

SAID SECTION 35; THENCE SOUTH 00° 15' 18" EAST 1332.93 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89° 49' 23" 

EAST 333.79 FEET (NORTH 89° 42' 41" EAST RECORD) TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 35; THENCE 

CONTINUE ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF BRIGHTON PARK AT CARILLON ACCORDING TO 

THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 42, PAGES 86 THROUGH 89 OF 

THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA, NORTH 89° 49' 23" EAST 283.75 

FEET TO THE CENTERLINE OF A CREEK; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF 

SAID SUBDIVISION SOUTH 09° 24' 12" EAST 271.06 FEET (SOUTH 09° 24' 12" EAST 273.21 FEET 

RECORD); THENCE CONTINUE ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID SUBDIVISION SOUTH 06° 

51' 54" WEST 400.91 FEET (SOUTH 06° 51' 54" WEST 398.91 FEET RECORD); THENCE SOUTH 

89° 47' 41" WEST 278.55 FEET TO THE 40 ACRE LINE; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 89° 47' 41" 

WEST 1003.11 FEET ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF PALM VALLEY MOBILE HOME 

PARK; THENCE NORTH 00° 00' 32" WEST 1998'.68 FEET (NORTH 00° 14' 22" EAST DEED) ALONG 

THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF PALM VALLEY MOBILE HOME PARK TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

PARCEL 9: 

THE EAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 

21 SOUTH, RANGE 31 EAST, SEMINOLE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

Commonly known as: Palm Valley Manufactured Housing Community, 
3700 Palm Valley Circle, Oviedo, Florida 

Property Appraiser's Folio No: 34-2 l-3 l-503-0000-008A 

PalmValley-FL·QC Deed 
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KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that CWS Communities LP, a Delaware limited 
partnership, whose address is c/o Hometown America, L.L.C., 150 N. Wacker Drive, Suite 2800, 
Chicago, Illinois 60606 ("Grantor"), for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00), 
paid by HOMETOWN PALM VALLEY, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company, whose 
address is c/o Hometown America, L.L.C., 150 N. Wacker Drive, Suite 2800, Chicago, Illinois 
60606 ("Grantee"), does hereby without recourse sell, assign, transfer, convey and set over to 
Grantee, its successors and assigns, all of Grantor's rights, title and interest in and to all items of 
personal property ("Personal Property") owned by Grantor presently located at the premises 
commonly known as PALM VALLEY manufactured housing community which is generally 
located at 3700 Palm Valley Circle, Oviedo, Florida (Seminole County). 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD the Personal Property unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, 
forever. 

Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the Personal Property is being transferred "AS IS" and 
"WHERE IS" and Grantee assumes all responsibility to make any repairs to the Personal Property 
at its cost. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have caused this Bill of Sale to be executed 
effective as of January .fil_, 2019. 

Palm Valley, FL-Bill of Sale 

GRANTOR: 

CWS COMMUNITIES LP, 
a Delaware limited partnership 

By: Second Merger Sub, LLC, a Maryland 
limited liability company, its sole general 
partner ~ 

By: ~ ~ 
Name: __ __._Th ..... o .... m .... a ... s_c=u=ra=t=o=lo _____ _ 
Title: Vice President 

GRANTEE: 

HOMETOWN PALM VALLEY, L.L.C., 

~~:=lkm1;:~~~ 
Title: Vice President 
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For and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00), in hand paid, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged 
CWS Communities LP, a Delaware limited partnership ("Assignor") hereby sells, transfers, 
conveys, assigns and sets over unto HOMETOWN PALM VALLEY, L.L.C., a Delaware limited 
liability company ("Assignee"), the following described property (collectively, the "Assigned 
Property"): 

(1) All of Assignor's right, title and interest, as lessor, in and to all leases, licenses and other 
agreements (collectively, "Leases") to occupy all or any portion of the real estate commonly !mown 
as PALM VALLEY manufactured housing community which is generally located at 3700 Palm 
Valley Circle, Oviedo, Florida (Seminole County) (the "Property"), including without limitation, 
all leases ("Leases") affecting the Property together with all rents due, or to become due under each 
such lease, license and agreement on or after the date hereof and all guaranties by third parties of the 
tenants' obligations thereunder; 

(2) All refundable lease security deposits under the Leases; 

(3) All of Assignor's right, title and interest in and to all contracts, agreements, 
guarantees, warranties and indemnities, written or oral, affecting the ownership, operation, 
management and maintenance of the Property including, but not limited to, the Property 
Management Agreement; 

(4) All of Assignor's right, title and interest in and to all (i) plans, models, drawings, 
specifications, blueprints, surveys, engineering reports, environmental reports and other technical 
descriptions or materials relating in any way to the Property, and (ii) licenses, franchises, certificates, 
occupancy and use certificates, permits, authorizations, consents, variances, waivers, approvals and 
the like from any federal, state, county, municipal or other governmental or quasi-governmental 
body, agency, department, board, commission, bureau or other entity or instrumentality affecting the 
ownership, operation or maintenance of the Property; and 

(5) All of Assignor's right, title and interest in and to all tradenames, trademarks, 
copyrights, service marks, logos, designs, plans, drawings, specifications, goodwill, proprietary 
software (and documentation thereof), books and records, and other intellectual and intangible 
property used by Assignor in connection with the ownership, operation and maintenance of the 
Property. 

Assignor hereby retains and assumes the responsibility for any and all losses, claims, 
damages and any and all other liabilities arising out of the Assigned Property prior to the date of this 
assignment. Assignee shall be responsible for any and all claims, losses, damages and liabilities 
arising out of the Assigned Property from this date forward. · 

Palm Valley, FL-Asst Conlracts 
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ASSIGNOR: 

CWS COMMUNITIES LP, 
a Delaware limited partnership 
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By: Second Merger Sub, LLC, a Maryland 
limited liability company, its sole general 
partner 

By: 
Name: ___ T..._.b ... a .... rn .... a .... s ... c ... , .... ,r .... atwow.lo.__ __ _ 
Title: Vice President 

ACCEPTANCE 

Assignee hereby accepts the foregoing assignment as of the date hereof and as of such date hereby 
assumes the performance of all the terms, covenants and conditions of the Assigned Property, 

Date: January ..31, 2019 

Palm Valley, FL-Asst Contracts 

ASSIGNEE: 

HOMETOWN PALM VALLEY, L.L.C., 
a Delaware limited liability company 

By: A c__ 
Name: Tho~olo ---~--,:,--..,..,...---:-----Title: Vice President 

2 
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Palm Valley, FL- Pre 1/31/2019 

Ser1ee A Unit Holders 
(Members-

1% membership Interest) 

Hometown Amertca Holdings, L.L.C. 
a Delaware llmlled lleblllty company 

(Member-
100% Non.Series A Units) 

Hometown Amertca, L.L.C. 
a Delaware limited lleblllty company 

{Sola Member-
100% membership Interest) 

Hometown Resldenllet Manager, L.L.C. 
a Delaware llmlled lleblllly company 

(Manager) 

Hometown Resldentlel Manager, L.L.C. 
(Me nag er) 

pany 
Vartous Limited Partners 
-1% partnership Interest 

(no one owns> 2% Interest) 

Hometown Communities Limited Partnership 
e Maryland llmlled partnership 

Sole Member 
100% membership Interest 

Second Merger Sub, LLC 
a Maryland llmlled llablllty company Limited Partner 

99% partnership Interest 

General Partner 
1% partnership Interest 

CWS Communities LP 
a Delaware limited partnership 

(Fee owner of Palm Valley, FL - Pre 1/31/2019) 



Palm Valley, FL- Post 1/31/2019 

Sertee A Unit Holders 
(Members-

<1% membership Interest) 

Hometown America Holdings, L.L.C. 
a Delawore limited liability company 

(Member -
100'.4 Non-Sortes A Units) 

Hometown Amertca, L.L.C. 
e Delewaro llmllad lleblllty company 

(Sole Member -
100•.4 mambershlp Interest) 

Hometown ResldenUal Manager, L.L.C. 
a Delaware llmlled llablllty company 

(Manager) 

Hometol'tTI Reeldenllel Maneger, L.L.C. 
(Meneger) 

Various Limited Partners 
-1'.4 partnership Interest 

(no one owns:, 2% Interest) 

Hometown Commun!Ues Limited Partnership 
a Maryland limited partnership 

Sole Member 
100'.4 membership lntereat 

Hometown Pelm Volley, L.L.C. 
a Delaware limited llablllty company 

(Current fee owner of Palm Valley, FL- Post 1/31/2019) 
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COMMISSIONERS: 

ANDREW GILES FAY, C HAIRMAN 

ART G RAHAM 
GARY F. C LARK 

MIKE LAROSA 

GABRIELLA P ASSIDOMO 

ST ATE OF FLORIDA 

FILED 11/7/2022 
DOCUMENT NO. 10964-2022 
FPSC - COMMISSION CLERK 

KEITH C. HETRICK 

G ENERAL COUNSEL 

(850) 413-6199 

Public Service Commission 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

F. Marshall Deterding, Esq. 
Sundstrom & Mindlin, LLP 
2548 Blairstone Pines Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
mdeterdling@sfflaw.com 

November 7, 2022 

Re: Docket No. 20220156-WS - Application for name change on Certificate Nos. 
277-W and 223-S in Seminole County from CWS Communities, LP dlb/a Palm 
Valley Utilities to Hometown Palm Valley, LLC dlb/a Palm Valley Utilities. 

Dear. Mr. Deterding: 

Florida Public Service Commission staff has completed its review of your October 3, 
2022, letter providing responses to the deficiency letter dated September 27, 2022. Commission 
staff finds that the notice for name change on Certificate Nos. 277-W and 223-S from CWS 
Communities, LP d/b/a Palm Valley Utilities to Hometown Palm Valley, LLC d/b/a Palm Valley 
Utilities remains deficient. Staff is requesting the below-described information to determine 
whether there has been a change in the ownership or control of the utility or its assets. Rule 28-
30.039(1 ), Florida Administrative Code. 

1. Paragraph 2 of the Application for Name Change states that "[i]n 2019, due to a 
corporate reorganization, the water and sewer utility assets of CWS Communities, 
LP were transferred to Hometown Palm Valley, LLC." 

a. Fully describe the corporate reorganization. 

b. Explain how CWS Communities transferred its water and sewer utility 
assets to Palm Valley, LLC. 

c. Provide documents evidencing or memorializing the transfer of the water 
and sewer utility assets of CWS Communities, LP to Hometown Palm 
Valley, LLC. 

CAPITAL ClRCLE OFFICE CENTER• 2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD• TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-0850 
An Affirmative Action / Equal Opportunity Employer 

PSC Website: http://www.floridapsc.com Internet E-mail: contact@psc.state.fl.us 
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d. Provide an organizational chart showing CWS Communities, LP, its 

parent company(ies), any sister companies, and any subsidiaries or 

affiliates, prior to the 2019 corporate reorganization. 

 

e. Provide an organizational chart showing CWS Communities, LP, and 

Hometown Palm Valley, LLC, their parent company(ies), any sister 

companies, and any subsidiaries or affiliates, following the 2019 corporate 

reorganization. 

 

 

2. Paragraph 2 of the Application for Name Change states that “[t]he ultimate owner 

of the utility did not change and the assets of the utility continue to be owned and 

operated by the same entity which owns the mobile home community served by 

the systems.” 

 

a. Who was the ultimate owner of the utility prior to and following the 2019 

corporate reorganization? 

 

b. What entity owned the mobile home community served by the systems 

prior to and following the 2019 corporate reorganization? 

 

 

3. Exhibit B to the Application for Name Change is an Affidavit of Gregory Lynch, 

which states, in part, “that the beneficial ownership and control of the utility and 

its assets have not changed.” 

 

a. Explain what is meant by “beneficial ownership,” and describe whether 

and how it differs from “ultimate ownership.” 

 

b. Please identify the person or entity who has held “beneficial ownership 

and control of the utility” such that neither changed as a result of the 2019 

corporate reorganization. 

 

 Your notice for name change will not be deemed filed until the deficiencies identified in 

this letter have been corrected. These corrections should be submitted no later than Friday, 
November 18, 2022, to the following address: 

 

 

Office of Commission Clerk 

Florida Public Service Commission 

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 
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 Should you have any questions concerning the information in this letter, please feel free 

to contact Shaw Stiller by phone at (850) 413-6187 or email at sstiller@psc.state.fl.us. Please 

include the docket number on all submissions to the Commission Clerk. 

 

      Respectfully yours, 

 

 

/s/ Shaw Stiller 
Shaw Stiller, Esq. 

Senior Attorney 

 

SPS:crv 



25-30.037 Application for Authority to Transfer. 
 
(4) A transfer of majority organizational control of a regulated utility. Each applicant for a transfer of 

majority organizational control shall file with the Commission the information set forth in paragraphs (a) 
through (d), below. 

(a) A filing fee pursuant to paragraph 25-30.020(2)(c), F.A.C.;  
(b) Proof of noticing pursuant to Rule 25-30.030, F.A.C.;  
(c) The requirements of paragraphs (2)(c), (d), (f), (i), (j), (k), (l), (m), (q), (t) and 

(u), above; and, 
(d) A description of the ownership transfer, including the date the transfer occurred or will occur and a 

description of the resulting ownership interests in the utility. 
 

(2) (c) The certificated name, address, telephone number, certificate number(s), authorized 
representative, and, if available, email address and fax number of the utility/seller; 

(2) (d) The complete name, address, telephone number, Federal Employer Identification Number, 
authorized representative and, if available, email address and fax number of the buyer(s) and the new name 
of the utility if the buyer plans to operate under a different name; 

(2) (f) The nature of the buyer’s business organization, i.e., corporation, limited liability company, 
partnership, limited partnership, sole proprietorship, or association. The buyer must provide documentation 
from the Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations, showing: 

1. The utility’s/buyer’s business name and registration/document number for the business, unless 
operating as a sole proprietor, and, 

2. The utility’s/buyer’s fictitious name and registration number for the fictitious name, if operating 
under a fictitious name; 

(2) (i) A copy of the contract for sale and all auxiliary or supplemental agreements. If the sale, 
assignment, or transfer occurs prior to Commission approval, the contract shall include a provision stating 
that the contract is contingent upon Commission approval; 

(2) (j) The buyer must provide the following documentation of the terms of the transfer: 
1. The date the closing occurred or will occur; 
2. The purchase price and terms of payment; 
3. A list of and the dollar amount of the assets purchased and liabilities assumed or not assumed, 

including those of nonregulated operations or entities; 
4. A description of all consideration between the parties, including promised salaries, retainer fees, 

stock, stock options, and assumption of obligations; 
5. Provisions for the disposition, where applicable, of customer deposits and interest thereon, 

guaranteed revenue contracts, developer agreements, customer advances, debt of the utility, and leases; 
6. A statement that the buyer will fulfill the commitments, obligations and representations of the seller 

with regard to utility matters; 
7. A statement that the buyer has or will obtain the books and records of the seller, including all 

supporting documentation for rate base additions since the last time rate base was established for the utility; 
8. A statement that the utility’s books and records will be maintained using the 1996 National 

Association of Regulatory Utilities Commissioners (NARUC) Uniform System of Accounts (USOA), 
incorporated by reference in Rule 25-30.115, F.A.C.; and, 

9. A statement that the utility’s books and records will be maintained at the utility’s office(s) within 
Florida, or that the utility will comply with the requirements of paragraphs 25-30.110(1)(b) and (c), F.A.C., 
regarding maintenance of utility records at another location or out-of-state. If the records will be 
maintained at the utility’s office(s), the statement should include the location where the utility intends to 
maintain the books and records; 



 
(2) (k) A statement explaining why the transfer is in the public interest; 
(2) (l) To demonstrate the financial ability of the buyer to maintain and operate the acquired utility, 

the buyer shall provide: 
1. A detailed financial statement (balance sheet and income statement), audited if available, of the financial 
condition of the applicant, that shows all assets and liabilities of every kind and character. The financial 
statements shall be for the preceding calendar or fiscal year. The financial statement shall be prepared in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.115, F.A.C.  If available, a statement of the sources and uses of funds shall 
also be provided; and, 

2. A list of all entities, including affiliates, upon which the buyer is relying to provide funding to the 
utility and an explanation of the manner and amount of such funding. The list need not include any person 
or entity holding less than 5 percent ownership interest in the utility. The applicant shall provide copies of 
any financial agreements between the listed entities and the utility and proof of the listed entities’ ability to 
provide funding, such as financial statements; 

(2) (m) To demonstrate the technical ability of the buyer to provide service, the buyer shall provide: 
1. An explanation of the buyer’s experience in the water or wastewater industry; and, 
2. The buyer’s plans for ensuring continued operation of the utility, such as retaining the existing plant 

operator(s) and office personnel, or contracting with outside entities; 
(2) (q) A statement from the buyer that after reasonable investigation, the system being acquired 

appears to be in satisfactory condition and in compliance with all applicable standards set by the 
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) or, if the system is in need of repair or improvement, has 
any outstanding Notice of Violation of any standard set by the DEP or any outstanding consent orders with 
the DEP, the buyer shall provide a description of the repairs or improvements that have been identified, the 
governmental authority that required the repairs or improvements, if applicable, the approximate cost to 
complete the repairs or improvements, and any agreements between the seller and buyer regarding who will 
be responsible for any identified repairs or improvements;  

(2) (t) A statement regarding the disposition of outstanding regulatory assessment fees, fines, or 
refunds owed and which entity will be responsible for paying regulatory assessment fees and filing the 
annual report for the year of the transfer and subsequent years; 

(2) (u) Tariff sheets reflecting any changes resulting from the transfer. Form PSC 1010 (12/15), 
entitled “Water Tariff” and Form PSC 1011 (12/15), entitled “Wastewater Tariff,” which are incorporated 
by reference in Rule 25-30.033, F.A.C., are example tariffs that may be completed by the applicant and 
included in the application. These forms are also available on the Commission’s website, 
www.floridapsc.com; and, 
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